TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, JANUARY 21, 2016, 8:30 AM
2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN HALL

455 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO
AGENDA REVISED(2)

Time | Min Presenter Type
1.1 8:30 Call to Order
Reed Executive Session for the Purpose of Receiving Legal
2.1 830 | ¢ Mahoney Leqal Advice Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the Purpose
g of Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e
3.] 9:30 5 Public Comment on Non-Agenda ltems
9:35 Consideration of Approval of Minutes
4.| Pg. 3 5 Johnston Action a. December 10, 2015 Regular Meeting
8 b. January 11, 2016 Special Meeting
9:40 Consideration of a Resolution Designating Posting Locations
5.| Pg 5 Kennefick Action for the Town’s Ordinances and Public Notices
10
Liquor Licensing Authority:
a. Consideration of Re-certification of the Mountain
9:45 Village Promotional Association and Common
Pg.11 Consumption Area
6. ' 15 Johnston Action b. Consideration of an Application by NVHG Hotel
12 Madeline Operator, LLC dba. Madeline Hotel and
78 Residences Telluride for a Modification of Premises
and Addition of a Related Facility to a Resort
Complex Liquor License
2 1 10:00 | 15 Jensen Informational | Introduction of Bill Jensen, New Chief Executive Officer of
' ' Telluride Ski & Golf
10:15 | 20 Major Work Session | Presentation of Ideas for Gondola Pocket Park
8.
Pg.98
10:35 . . . .
9 P 20 | Stenhammer Action Consideration of Approval of a Capital Expenditure for the
' 189 Telluride Conference Center
10:55 _ . . ,
10l p 10 Mahoney Action Consideration of Re-certification of the Town of Mountain
' g Swain Village Procurement Manual
113
11:05 Finance:
p a. Presentation of the December 31, 2015 Business &
11 1593 30 Swain Presentation Government Activity Report (BAGAR)
' Vergari Action b. Consideration of the November 2015 Financials
155 c. Consideration of the 2017 Budget Process
172
11:35 Broady First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote
12 p 10 Abbott Action on an Ordinance Prohibiting the Possession of Weapons on
' 1794 Town Property
176

=




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA FOR JANUARY 21, 2016

PAGE 2 OF 2

11:45 Broady First Rgaéj_ing, Se'tot\ing ool;_a Péjbli(_: H%aiir;%fgdfCﬁunTcil Vote]:c
: on an Ordinance Amending Section 9.17. of the Town o
13.1 Pg. |10 Abbott Action Mountain Village Municipal Code Related to Discharging
182 Weapons Within the Town
11'55 Broady First Regdidr}g, Settir);gd of a Puglic I—:eqring ?nd gfc;u?_lc_ithote
: on an Ordinance opting Regulations for ighway
14.1 Pg. |10 Abbott Action Vehicles, Utility Type Vehicles, Special Mobile Machinery
188 and Golf Carts on Town Streets
15.] 12:05 | 30 Lunch Break
12:35 Consideration of a Resolution to Approve a R(_avocable
16 P 15 Bangert Action Encroachment Agreement for the Proposed Installation of an
' 9. Address Monument in the Touchdown Drive Road Right-of-
197 Way Adjacent to Lot 421
Consideration of Allowing for Temporary Construction
12:50 Staging in the Touchdown Drive Road Right-of-Way Outside
17. 1 Pg. 15 Bangert Action of the Touchdown Drive, Drive Lanes, Subject to the Owners
203 of Lot 421 Entering into a License Agreement with the Town
Prior to Pulling a Building Permit
1:05
18.| p 30 _ Van Work Session Scop_e of Proposed Amer_ldment to the Tovx_/n Hall Subarea
2(?6 Nimwegen Section of the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan
Council Boards and Commissions Updates:
a. Eco Action Partners -Sherry
b.  Telluride Historical Museum-Sherry
Council c. San Miguel Watershed Coalition — Jett
19.] 1:35 | 20 Informational d. Colorado Flights Alliance — Jansen
Members e.  Transportation & Parking — Maclntire/Benitez
f. Budget & Finance Committee — McKinley/Caton
g. Gondola Committee — McKinley/Caton
h. Mayor’'s Update — Jansen
1:55 Staff Reports:
Pg. Katz _ a. Mountain Munchkins Preschool & Daycare
20. 213 15 Montgomery Informational b. Town Manager
216
2:10
21.| Po. 15 Kennefick Work Session | Grant Process for 2017 Budget
218
Broady Other Business
22.| 2:25 5 Kennefick Informational a. Disaster Declaration Workshop
b. Other Upcoming Meeting Reminders
23.| 2:30 Adjourn

Please note that times are approximate and subject to change.
01/20/2016

ik

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting Town Hall at 970-369-6406 or email: mvclerk@mtnvillage.org.

A minimum of 48 hours advance notice is required so arrangements can be made to locate requested auxiliary aid(s).




WN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A
Mountain Village, Co 81435
970-728-8000

970-728-4342 Fax
myvclerk@mitnvillage.org

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 10, 2015
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA ITEM #4a

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Dan Jansen at 8:32 a.m. on Thursday,
December 10, 2015 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Town Hall Boulevard,

Mountain Village, Colorado.

Attendance:

The following Town Council members were present and acting:

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Marty McKinley, Mayor Pro-Tem
Michelle Sherry

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Bruce Maclntire

Cath Jett via conference call

Also in attendance were:

Kim Montgomery, Town Manager

Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk
Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk

Christina Meilander, Administrative Services Coordinator

David Reed, Town Attorney, via conference call

Bo Nerlin, Assistant Town Attorney

Nichole Zangara, Director of Marketing & Business Development
Kevin Swain, Finance Director

Julie Vergari, Chief Accountant

Chris Broady, Police Chief

Glen Van Nimwegen, Dir. of Planning & Development Services
Deanna Drew, Director of Plazas & Environmental Services
Chris Colter, Director of Transit & Recreation

Sue Kunz, Human Resources Director

Lance Benningkoff

Aurelie Cannella

Carol Custer

Public Comment for Non-Agenda Items (2)

There was no public comment.

Dennis Lankes
Bob Kuehn
Robert Stenhammer
Jolana Vanek
Paul Major
Jesse Johnson
Anton Benitez
Ashley Nager
Marc Nager
Brian Kanaga
Chris Trosper
Kris Holstrom
Douglas Tooley
Ktis Brehn
Ward Bree

Suse Connolly
Heather Knox

Executive Session for the Purpose of a Personnel Matter Pursuant to C.R.S Section 24-6-

402((H (H (D), and for Receiviflg Legal Advice Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the Purpose of

Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e (3)

On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Laila Benitez, Council agreed to enter into Executive

Session for the purpose of a personnel matter pursuant to C.R.S Section 24-6-402((4)(f)(1)), and for receiving

legal advice pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the purpose of negotiations pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-

402(4)e at 8:34 2.m.

Council returned to regular session at 9:57 a.m.

I



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PAGE 2
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 10, 2015

Consideration of Approval of the November 19, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes:(4)
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Laila Benitez, Council voted unanimously to approve the
November 19, 2015 Town Council meeting minutes as presented.

Council moved to Agenda Item #6

Council Boards and Commissions Updates: (5)
a. Eco Action Partners(EAP) —Sherry

Ms. Sherry reported that EAP has approved a 2016 work plan, which includes regional composting, and a
grant program for low income housing residents for energy reduction. Kris Holstrom secured a planning
grant for $18,144 to fund a regional composting program.

b. Telluride Historical Museum-Sherry
The Telluride Historical Museum Board approved the 2016 budget and will be operating at a deficit. They
are being conservative with income projections and cautious with expenditures. They are also working on
creating new fundraising opportunities and ways to increase membership.

c. San Miguel Watershed Coalition — Jett
There was no update.

d. Colorado Flights Alliance — Jansen
For the winter season seats are up 26% and bookings are up 10%. Allegiant Airlines is running a two for one
special through December 18. The first C approach proposed by the Telluride Airport, which allows for
larger aircraft to land at the airport, has been approved by the FAA; however the second and larger approach
which comes in over Mountain Village is still being contemplated by the FAA.

e. Transportation & Parking- Benitez/Maclntire
There was no update.

f. Budget & Finance Committee — McKinley/Caton
There was no update.

Gondola Committee — McKinley/Caton

There was no update.

h. Mayor’s Update — Jansen
Mayor Jansen stated that Telluride was rated the #2 ski town for North America in Ski Magazine. The Mayor
made note of the impressive list of activities happening in Mountain Village over the holidays. Mayor Jansen
made note that the Telluride Foundation was founded 20 years ago and has helped countless organizations in
the area. Council commended the Plaza Services department on this year’s holiday lighting and decorations.

Continuation of Discussion on Funding Telluride Venture Accelerator (TVA) and Co-Working
Space (6)

Mayor Jansen recused himself from the discussion because he is on the Telluride Foundation Board and is a
mentor in the Telluride Foundation and the Foundation is also his landlord. Director of Marketing and
Business Development Nichole Zangara presented the above request for funding for TVA ($50,000) and Co-
Working Space ($30,000). Extensive Council discussion ensued regarding individual Council member’s levels
of support for the funding. President of Telluride Foundation Paul Major stated that the Telluride
Foundation helped to finance the space that Telluride Adaptive Ski Program (TASP) purchased. He
explained that the TASP program does not need the entire space for their operations so they began looking
at options for the additional space. One option is to provide an opportunity for a co-working space and soft
landing for new startup companies interested in locating in Mountain Village. Co-working spaces are
occurring across the country and generating creative energy and stimulating economic development. Public
comment was received by Dennis Lankes, Paul Major, Marc Nager, Jolana Vanek, Jesse Johnson, Douglas
Tooley and Brian Kanaga.

Marc Nager Chief Community Officer at Tech Star based out of Boulder, stated that due to a change in the
way companies are forming today, the work space would promote an innovative entrepreneurial opportunity
for startup companies. Mr. Nager expressed that the role of Government should be to promote this type of
economic growth. Council requested financial information on existing programs in order to evaluate their

I



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PAGE 3
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 10, 2015

success. Council consensus was in support of adding $30,000 for TVA and $30,000 for the Co-Working
Space to the 2016 budget, however; more information will be required prior to expenditures being made.

On a MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted unanimously to convene as
the Board of Directors for the Dissolved Mountain Village Metro District.

Town Council Acting as the Board of Directors for the Dissolved Mountain Village Metro
District(7)

a. Consideration of a Resolution Adopting the 2016 Metro District Budget
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Marty McKinley, the Board voted unanimously to adopt a
Resolution adopting the 2016 Metro District Budget as presented

b. Consideration of a Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money for 2016
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Bruce Mclntire, the Board voted unanimously to adopt a
Resolution Appropriating sums of money for 2016.

c. Consideration of a Resolution Revising the 2015 Budget
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Marty McKinley, the Board voted unanimously to adopt a
Resolution revising the 2015 budget.

d. Consideration of a Resolution Re-Appropriating Sums of Money for 2015
On a MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by Michelle Sherry, the Board voted unanimously to
adopt a Resolution re-appropriating sums of money for 2015.

e. Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Mill Levy for 2016
On a MOTION by Michelle Sherry and seconded by Dan Caton, the Board voted unanimously to adopt a
Resolution setting the mill levy for 2016.

On a MOTION by Laila Benitez and seconded by Bruce Maclntire, the Board voted unanimously to
reconvene as the Mountain Village Town Council.

Finance: (8)

Finance Director Kevin Swain presented the following:

a. Presentation of the October 2015 Business & Government Activity Report (BAGAR)
Council discussion ensued.

b. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to Set Mill Levies for 2016
Mr. Swain presented the above Ordinance explaining that the mill levy was set by the Mountain Village
electorate and remains fixed at 13.11 for general operating expenses and an additional .333 for the Historical
Museum. The Mayor opened the public hearing. There was no public comment. The public hearing was
closed. On a MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted 7-0 to adopt an
Ordinance setting mill levies for 2016.

c. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to Adopt the 2016 Budget

and the Revised 2015 Budget
Kevin Swain presented the proposed 2016 and revised 2015 budgets. The Mayor opened the public hearing.
There was no public comment. The public hearing was closed. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and
seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council voted 7-0 to approve an Ordinance Adopting the 2016 budget and the
revised 2015 budget with an amendment to add $30,000 for Telluride Venture Accelerator (TVA) and
$30,000 for Shared Workspace to the 2016 budget.

Discussion on Possibility of Reinstating the Plaza Use Committee Including Possible Goals,
Outcomes, Scope of Work, Composition of Members and any Budgetary Impact (9)

Plazas and Environmental Services Director Deanna Drew and Director of Planning and Development
Services Glen Van Nimwegen presented the above item. Council discussion ensued on whether or not the
committee should include individual business owners or a representative of the businesses as a whole.
Nichole Zangara stated that this is part of her new role and that she has regular communications with
business owners. She will share information that affects them. Council direction was to continue to address
plaza issues on a staff level, and present to Council as needed.

lon



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PAGE 4
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 10, 2015

Discussion on Mountain Village Recycling (10)

Deanna Drew presented the above item stating that the technology is not yet available that is needed to
handle the amount of recycling that is generated in Mountain Village and the surrounding areas. Ms. Drew
added that it is not economical to process recyclables in this market and that from a carbon footprint
perspective, it is almost counterproductive. Council discussion ensued. Glass is being stockpiled because it
is too expensive to process. Heather Knox of Eco Action Partners along with Kris Holstrom strongly
advised against discontinuing the recycling program, but rather to consider going to a single stream recycling
program where only specific items are included. It has taken a long time to encourage people to recycle and
it would be a shame to have to re-establish that behavior when some of the recycling issues have been
resolved. Public comment was received by Chris Trosper of Bruin Waste, Lance Beningkoff of Waste
Management, Jolana Vanek and Doug Tooley. Council consensus was to continue the recycling program.

Council took a lunch break from 1:20 p.m. to 1:31 p.m.

Discussion on Regional Transportation Authority (RTA)(12)

Mayor Jansen presented the above item. Bruce MacIntire stated that at the December 9" Intergovernmental
RTA meeting, the group was able to reach agreement on limiting the RT'A boundary to the R-1 School
District and placing the formation of the RTA and funding source question on the November 2016 ballot.
The gondola was not discussed at the meeting however, it was acknowledged that it will be included in the
RTA. The meeting began with a presentation on the hlstory of the Roaring Fork (Aspen area) RTA. The
next RTA meeting was scheduled for January 11, 2016 from 2:30 p.m.-5:00 p.m. and will be followed by the
Tri-agency dinner at the Hotel Madeline at 5:30 p.m. Public comment was received by Doug Tooley. Council
consensus was in support of the RTA and the Mayor encouraged Council members to read through the
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA). Town Manager Kim Montgomery agreed to distribute the meeting
notes from the July and December meetings as well as the executive summary and PowerPoint presentation
from the December 9" RTA meeting to Council members by email.

Off-Site Planning /Council Retreat (13)

Mayor Jansen presented the above item suggesting that the Town Council would benefit from an offsite
team building retreat with the objective of determining what this Council would like to achieve together for
the community. He suggested organizing the discussions based on:

e Vision- What does this Council want the Town of Mountain Village to be at its highest level?

e Mission —What will this Council do to achieve this vision?

e Strategies- What strategies will this Council use to achieve this mission?

e Initiatives- What specific initiatives should be sponsored in order to implement these strategies?
Council consensus was to move forward with determining a date and location for the retreat. This process
will provide a sense of direction and prioritization for the budget committee before beginning the budget
process in March 2016. Council discussion ensued regarding the length of the retreat and whether a facilitator
will be engaged for keeping the retreat on track. Kim Montgomery and Town Attorney David Reed will be
included in the retreat plans. The Mayor will send out a Doodle calendar with potential dates for the retreat.

Discussion on Uses of Village Pond for the Winter Season (14)

Transit and Recreation Director Chris Colter presented the above item stating that Boot Doctors decided not
to invest in broom ball equipment. Council discussion ensued and Council consensus was to have the Town
be responsible for clearing the ice and ensuring appropriate signage is in place. Kim Montgomery thanked
Mr. Colter for being proactive in his retirement transition plan and announced that Gondola Maintenance
Manager, Jim Loebe has accepted the position of Transit and Recreation Director.

Consideration of a Resolution Appointing Chief Chris Broady to the Western Colorado Regional
Dispatch Center Board of Directors as Representative for the Town of Mountain Village (15)

(o)}



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PAGE 5
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING DECEMBER 10, 2015

Assistant Town Attorney Bo Nerlin presented the above Resolution. Council discussion ensued. On a
MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council voted unanimously to approve a
Resolution appointing Police Chief Chris Broady to the Western Colorado Regional Dispatch Center Board
of Directors as representative for the Town of Mountain Village.

Discussion of Montrose County Sheriff’s Decision to Refuse to Provide Dispatch Services After
January 1, 2016 and Consideration of Authorizing Legal Action to be Taken Against Montrose
County in Connection Therewith (16)

Attorney David Reed presented the above item. He stated that the Montrose County Sheriff’s Department
has indicated that they will not provide dispatch services after January 1, 2016 to the Town of Mountain
Village, Town of Telluride and Telluride Fire Protection District. The new dispatch center (Westco) has
initiated a law suit and a hearing has been set for Monday, December 14th. The court could make a
determination to name the three entities as individual plaintiffs, and if so approval of this agenda item will
authorize legal action to be taken against Montrose County. Mountain Village Police Chief Chris Broady
stated that 911 services will not be affected throughout the transition. Public comment was received by Doug
Tooley. On a MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted unanimously to
authorize legal action in regards to dispatch services to be taken against Montrose County.

The Mayor responded to
On a MOTION by Laila Benitez and seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council voted unanimously to extend
the meeting past 6 hours.

Staff Reports: (17)

a. Marketing & Business Development
Nichole Zangara presented her bi-annual report. Council discussion ensued regarding business license
enforcement and how to best educate business owners about Mountain Village business requirements. Ms.
Zangara stated that the current business directory includes 125 businesses and that the number is not based
on business licenses but on actual business presence in Mountain Village. Chief Broady stated that delivery
permits are only provided to business owners who have a Mountain Village business license. Council directed
staff to inform and assist the TVA businesses to ensure that they are in compliance with the Mountain
Village business requirements. The Mayor thanked Ms. Zangara for taking on her newly expanded role as
Director of Marketing and Business Development.

Other Business: (18)

a. Tri-Agency Dinner Date
Jackie Kennefick presented the above item. The dinner date was set for Monday, January 11", 2016. Council
discussion ensued. Council consensus was to move the Intergovernmental Meeting starting time to 2:30 p.m.
followed by the Tri-Agency dinner.

There being no further business, on a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Marty McKinley, Council
unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting at 2:55 p.m.

Respectfully prepared, Respectfully submitted,
Susan Johnston Jackie Kennefick
Deputy Town Clerk Town Clerk

I~



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 11, 2016
SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM #4b

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Dan Jansen at 2:03 p.m. on Monday, January
11, 2016 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Town Hall Boulevard, Mountain Village,
Colorado.

Attendance:

The following Town Council members were present and acting:
Dan Jansen, Mayor

Marty McKinley, Mayor Pro-Tem

Michelle Sherry

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Bruce Maclntire

Cath Jett

Also in attendance were:

Kim Montgomery, Town Manager

Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk
Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk

Christina Meilander, Administrative Services Coordinator
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney

Chris Broady, Police Chief

Glen Van Nimwegen, Director of Planning & Development Services
Deanna Drew, Director of Plazas & Environmental Services
Chris Colter, Director of Transit & Recreation

Chris Myers

Erin Ries

Liquor Licensing Authority:

Consideration of Approval of a Special Event Liquor Permit for the Telluride Fire Festival Events to
be Held on January 14, 15 & 16 in the Great Room at the Ridge Club

Town Clerk Jackie Kennefick presented the application. The applicants Chris Myers and Erin Ries addressed
Council and thanked everyone for considering their request at this special meeting, noting they are clear that
they need to get ahead of the requirements and deadlines for future years. Council discussion ensued. On a
MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Cath Jett, Council voted 6-0 to approve the Special Event Liquor
Permit for the Telluride Fire Festival Events.

Laila Benitez arrived at 2:09 pm

Consideration of Approval of a Bonfire on OSP-49R in Conjunction with the Telluride Fire Festival
Special Event

Assistant Town Attorney Jim Mahoney introduced the above item. The applicants Erin Reis and Chris
Myers explained the safety measures that have been put in place to ensure that this bonfire will be a safe and
successful event. Ms. Reis stated that firefighters will be present to monitor the bonfire and added that if the
weather is not conducive for the burn, it will not take place. . Council discussion ensued regarding insurance
requirements. The Town’s new requirement is a five million dollar liability policy, however; the Telluride Fire
Festival has secured a two million dollar policy and is unable to increase to five million. Council consensus

oo



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PAGE 2
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 11, 2016

was to allow this as a one-time event with consideration for the safety measures the Fire Festival has taken.
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Cath Jett, Council voted unanimously to approve a bonfire
on OSP-49R in conjunction with the Telluride Fire Festival Special Event with the understanding that this is
a one-time variance on the insurance policy requirements.

There being no further business, on a MOTION by Michelle Sherry and seconded by Dan Caton, Council
unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting at 2:25 p.m.

Respectfully prepared, Respectfully submitted,
Susan Johnston Jackie Kennefick
Deputy Town Clerk Town Clerk

e}



RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO
REGARDING POSTING LOCATIONSFOR
ORDINANCESAND PUBLIC MEETINGS

NO. 2016-0121-01
RECITALS:
The Open Meetings law (The Sunshine Law) was enacted by the Colorado State Legislature

on April 29, 1991, and this law declares that the formation of public policy is public business
and may not be conducted in secret; and

. The Town of Mountain Village, Town Council (the“Town Council”) has determined that it is

in the best interest of the citizens of the Town of Mountain Village to post a listing of public
meetings as provided in this resolution; and

The Sunshine Law also stipulates that the public place or places for posting such notices shall
be designated annually; and

. Article V. Section 5.9. of the Town Charter requires this Town Council to designate at least

three (3) public places and at the office of the Town Clerk in the Town of Mountain Village
for the posting of ordinances and other public notices.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ASFOLLOWS:

Posting locations to give notice of ordinances and other public notices shall be as follows:

PODNPE

Mountain Village Town Hall

Mountain Village Town Hall Post Office
Mountain Village Police Station Bulletin Board
Meadows Post Office

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Town Council, at aregular meeting held on the 21st day
of January, 2016.

ATTEST:

By

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN COUNCIL

By:

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk

APPROVED ASTO FORM:

By

James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney

10



Agenda ltem #6

Town of Mountain Village

Date: 1/15/2016

To: Town Council, Acting as the Liquor Licensing Authority (LLA)
From: Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk
RE: Local Liquor Licensing Authority

Consideration of Re-certification of the Mountain Village Promotional Association and
Common Consumption Area

All required documentation and fees have been received. The packet has been reviewed by
Assistant Town Attorney Jim Mahoney and Police Chief Chris Broady and there were no
adverse findings.

Staff recommendation: Motion to approve the re-certification of the Mountain Village
Promotional Association and Common Consumption Area.

Consideration of an Application by NVHG Hotel Madeline Operator, LLC dba. Madeline Hotel
and Residences Telluride for a Modification of Premises and Addition of a Related Facility to
a Resort Complex Liquor License

The Modification of Premises application includes the addition of the new pool area above the
Porte Cochere, changes to the former restaurant Rev (now M Club) and some minor changes
at Black Iron Kitchen and Bar. The addition of the related facility is for a point of sale on the
pool deck. All documentation and appropriate fees have been received. Required posting and
noticing has occurred and no protests were filed. The application has been reviewed by
Assistant Town Attorney Jim Mahoney and Police Chief Chris Broady and there were no
adverse findings.

Staff recommendation: Motion to approve the application by NVHG Hotel Madeline
Operator, LLC dbs. Madeline Hotel and Residences Telluride for a Modification of Premises and
addition of a Related Facility to a Resort Complex Liquor License subject to submission of a
final inspection form signed by the Building Department, Fire Department and the Police
Department.



12



13



14



15



16



Colorado Secretary of State
ESELY  Dage and Time: 04/02/2014 10:42 PM

Document must be filed electronically. ID Number: 20141221775

Paper documents are not accepted. )

Fees & forms are subject to change. Document number: 20141221775
For more information or to print copies Amount Paid: $50.00

of filed documents, visit www,s0s.s1ate.co.us.

ABOVE SPACE FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Articles of Incorporation for a Nonprofit Corporation
filed pursuant to § 7-122-101 and § 7-122-102 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.)

1. The domestic entity name for e . .
the nonprofit corporation is Mountain Village Promotional Association

(Caution: The use of certain terms or abbreviations are restricted by law. Read instructions for more information.)

2. The principal office address of the nonprofit corporation’s initial principal office is

Street address 113 Lost Creek Lane, Suite A
(Street number and name)
Mountain Village CO 81435
(City) {State (ZIP/Postal Code)
United States
(Province — if applicable} (Country}
Mailing address
(leave blank if same as street address) (Street number and name or Post Office Box information)
City) (Siate) (ZIF7Postal Code)
(Province ~ if applicable} (Couniryj i

3. The registered agent name and registered agent address of the nonprofit corporation’s initial registered agent

are
Name
(if an individual) Solomon Joseph A.
(Last) (First) (Middie) 1Sufiix)
OR
(if an entity)
(Caution: Do not provide both an individual and an entity name.)
Street address 227 West Pacific Avenue, Suite A
(Street number and name)
Telluride co 81435
(City) (State) (ZIP Code)
ARTINC_NPC Page 1 of 3 Rev. 2!12/201‘3



Mailing address PO Box 1748

(leave blank if same as street address) (Street number and name or Post Office Box information)

Telluride co 81435

(Ciry} (State} (ZIP Code)

(The following statement is adopted by marking the box.}
The person appointed as registered agent above has consented to being so appointed.

4. The true name and mailing address of the incorporator are

Name

(if an individual) Solomon Joseph A.
- (Last} (First) (Middie) (Suffixj
OR
(if an entity)
(Caution: Do not provide both an individual and an entity name.)
Mailing address PO Box 1748
(Street number and name or Post Office Box information}
Telluride CO 81435
(City) [Statg) (Z1P/Postal Code)
» United States :
(Province — if applicablej (Countryj

(If the following statement applies. adopt the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.)

D The corporation has one or more additional incorporators and the name and mailing address of each

additional incorporator are stated in an attachment.

5. (If the following statement applies. adopt the statement by marking the box.}
The nonprofit corporation will have voting members.

6. Provisions regarding the distribution of assets on dissolution:

accordance with their Membership interests.

{Upon dissolution, after payment of all liabilities, the assets are to be distributed to the Members of the corporation in

ARTINC_NPC Page 2 of 3 Rev. 2/12/2013




7. {If the foltowing statement applies. adopt the statement by marking the box and include an atachment )

E] This document contains additional information as provided by law.

8. (Caution: Legve blank if the document does not have a delaved effective date. Stating a delaved effective date has
significant legal consequences. Read instructions before entering a date.)

(If the following statement applies, adopt the statement by entering a date and. if applicable. time using the reguired format.)
The delayed effective date and, if applicable, time of this document is/are

(mmy/dd/yyyy hour:minute am/pm}
Notice:

Causing this document to be delivered to the Secretary of State for filing shall constitute the affirmation or
acknowledgment of each individual causing such delivery, under penalties of perjury, that the document is the
individual's act and deed, or that the individual in good faith believes the document is the act and deed of the
person on whose behalf the individual is causing the document to be delivered for filing, taken in conformity
with the requirements of part 3 of article 90 of title 7, C.R.S., the constituent documents, and the organic
statutes, and that the individual in good faith believes the facts stated in the document are true and the
document complies with the requirements of that Part, the constituent documents, and the organic statutes,
This perjury notice applies to each individual who causes this document to be delivered to the Secretary of
State, whether or not such individual is named in the document as one who has caused it to be delivered.

9. The true name and mailing address of the individual causing the document to be delivered for filing are

Solomon Joseph A.

{Last) . (Fi {rsl) (Middle} Suffix)
227 West Pacific Avenue, Suite A

Street number and name or Post Office Box information)
PO Box 1748
Telluride CO 81435
(City) (Stare) (ZiP/Postal Codej
United States .
{Province ~ if applicablej (Country}

(1f the following statement applies, adopi the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.)

] This document contains the true name and mailing address of one or more additional individuals
causing the document to be delivered for filing.

Disclaimer:

This form/cover sheet, and any related instructions, are not intended to provide legal, business or tax advice,
and are furnished without representation or warranty. While this form/cover sheet is believed to satisfy
minimum legal requirements as of its revision date, compliance with applicable law, as the same may be
amended from time to time, remains the responsibility of the user of this form/cover sheet. Questions should
be addressed to the user’s legal, business or tax advisor(s).

ARTINC_NPC Page 3 of 3 Rev. 2/12/2013



20



21



22



23



President:

Vice President:

Secretary:

Director:

Director:

Mountain Village Promotional Association
Directors and Officers

Adam Singer
Poachers Pub

Todd Gehrke
Madeline Hotel & Residences

Jeff Badger
Talay / TSG

Anton Benitez
Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association

Tom Richards
Telluride Ski and Golf LLC. for the Conference Center



List of Licensed Premises & State Liquor License Numbers

Licensed Premises in Promotional Association

State Liquor License #

Liquor Violations

Operational Agrmnts

Square Footage

Telski (Crazy Elk, Tomboy Tavern and Siam Talay) 40919590001 N/A N/A 8474
Telluride Conference Center 4700972 N/A N/A 7780
Poachers Pub 24934470000 N/A N/A 1370
Hotel Madeline 42970090000 N/A N/A 444,360
Total Square Feet of Licensed Premises 461984
Licensed Premises not in Promotional Association Location

Tracks

Heritage Plaza

The Village Table

Conference Center Plaza

Franz Klammer

Heritage Plaza

La Piazza/La Pizzeria

Sunset Plaza




26



27



Common Consumption Boundary for Sunset Plaza

T RN\

Siam
Talay
La Piazza/
cmem
~ Poachers

Hotel Pub
Madeline

Legend

Common Consumption Area Boundary
== Physical Barriers
Entrances/Exits
Security Personnel




Common Consumption Area Boundary for Heritage Plaza

s

W

Franz
Klammer

Tracks

*\

7

Hotel
Madeline

*1

——

Legend

Common Consumption Area Boundary
e Physical Barriers
Entrances/Exits
Security Personnel

Tomboy
Tavern




Mountain Village Promotional Association
2016 Security Plan

The purpose of this document is to outline the procedures for the setup, enforcement and tear
down of the barriers for the Sunset Plaza common consumption area during the following
events:

e FirstGrass Concert: 6/15

e Sunset Concert Series: 6/29, 7/13, 7/20, 7/27, 8/3, 8/10, and 8/17

e Red White and Blues Concert: 7/3

e The Ride Festival Presents an Evening of Rock and Roll Concert: 7/8
e Telluride First Foundation Concert: 9/10

e Sunset Blues Concert: 9/15

A separate security plan will be provided at least 14 days prior to any additional events that

will require use of a common consumption area and are not currently listed here (see
Schedule A).

Three liquor license holders will be participating in the common consumption area for the
Sunset Concerts and are; Poachers Pub, Siam Talay and Hotel Madeline. Each establishment
will hire the necessary security staff in house for a total of 6-8 security personnel to cover the
area. Please see attached map (Schedule B) for distribution of staff. Each liquor license
holder will be responsible for managing the crew on a rotational basis starting with the first
concert on June 15", The responsible manager will be named and such name will be
provided to the Town at least 3 business days prior to each event. Such manager shall be the
primary point of contact for the Town for each event. The responsible manager shall meet
with the Town’s chief of police or his designee at least 48 hours prior to the event to go over
any potential issues and security concerns with the event and common consumption area.

The MVPA will develop standard operating procedures/standard talking points so that each
new security personnel will be delivering a consistent message during each event.

In the event that there are issues after the first event, the Town may require all of the
managers for the liquor license holder participating to meet with the Town in order to refine
the security procedures for the next event and may require additional changes to this security
plan based on any such issues.

All security personnel shall wear a shirt clearly identifying such person as security personnel
for the event.

The work day schedule:

e Setup will begin at 3:30pm.

e Responsible manager shall meet with all security personnel to go over responsibilities
and duties of each person.

e Monitoring of the area will begin 1 hour prior to the beginning of the concert (see
attached Calendar of Events for approximate start times). Monitoring shall include
checking all early entrants to the concert area for outside alcohol and informing them
of the common consumption area rules. All entrance and exit to the concert area



during the monitoring period shall be through the approved ingress and egress points
to the common consumption area.

e Monitoring will continue until 30 minutes after the concert has ended (approximately
8:30pm for all concerts, see attached Calendar of Events for approximate end times).
The post show monitoring shall include a sweep to insure all alcoholic beverages are
removed from the common consumption by the end of the post-concert monitoring
time.

e Breakdown of barriers and clean up area will be conducted.

Security Plan and Training:

e Each Promotional Association Board Member will be scheduled a shift as Manager on
Duty (M.O.D.) to coordinate the efforts of the security staff. The Promotional
Association will provide the Town with the Manger on Duty Schedule and contact
information for each concert at least 3 days prior to each event.

e The M.O.D. will be responsible for making sure that the barriers are properly set-up
and that each entrance is properly staffed according to the map provided.

e Security staff will be provided with uniforms and will be given a list of Standard
Operating Procedures prior to each event.

e All security personnel will complete the server and seller training program (TIPS or
ServSafe) established by the Director of the Liquor Enforcement Division of Revenue
as required by law. Each establishment will provide a list of the names and date of
completion of training for their security staff.

e Security staff will be instructed to check coolers/bags to ensure no alcoholic beverages
are permitted into the Common Consumption Area, and will be responsible for
ensuring that no alcoholic beverages leave the Common Consumption Area.
Recycling and trash cans shall be available at all entrance and exit points.

e [D’s will be checked at the point-of-sale for each licensed establishment.

e Each licensed establishment will be responsible for ensuring that no alcoholic
beverages from an outside establishment are brought into their licensed area.

e Per the recommendation of the insurance carrier, the Mountain Village Promotional
Association will agree to comply with the loss control recommendation to post the
drinking age limit in the common consumption area during all events.

Barriers and Signage:

e The boundary of the Common Consumption Area will be defined using a combination
of natural barrier, fencing and rope & stanchion. (See attached photos of the fencing
being proposed to define the barriers.)

e Signage will be posted at the gondola stations and all entrances to the Common
Consumption Area stating “Common Consumption Area in effect. No outside
alcoholic beverages will be allowed into the concert.”

e Additional signs will be posted in the shuttle stations and around town to inform
residents and guests of the policy.






Schedule A
Entertainment District 2016 Calendar of Events

June 2016
Date Event Location Time
6/15 FirstGrass Concert Sunset Plaza 2-6:30pm
6/29 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
July 2016
Date Event Location Time
7/3 Red, White & Blues Concert | Sunset Plaza 3-8:30pm
7/8 The Ride Festival Presents Sunset Plaza 4-8pm
and Evening of Rock and Roll
7/13 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
7/20 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
7/27 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
August 2016
Date Event Location Time
8/3 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
8/10 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
8/17 Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 5-8:30pm
September 2016
Date Event Location Time
9/10 Telluride First Concert Sunset Plaza 4-8:00pm
9/15 Sunset Blues Concert Sunset Plaza 4-8:00pm




Schedule B
Common Consumption Boundary and Security for Sunset Plaza

GRASS ENTRY:

/ 2 STAFF

BRIDGE ENTRY:
1-2 STAFF

MADELINE ENTRY:
1 STAFF

N POACHERS ENTRY:
1-2 STAFF

BOUNDARY: 1 STAFF

*** In addition to this above security, a MOD will be present to facilitate where needed.



MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

Supervisor Checklist

There is a designated Manager on Duty (M.0.D.) and the Town has been notified of the M.O.D. at least
3 business days prior to the event

The M.O.D. has confirmed that there is adequate security personnel staffed for the event

The M.0.D. has met with all security personnel to go over the following standard operating
procedures, responsibilities and duties

The M.O.D. has assigned each security personnel to a designated check point/entrance

The M.O.D. has confirmed that the barriers are properly set-up and that each entrance is staffed
according to the Common Consumption Boundary Map

The M.O.D. has confirmed that all Security Personnel have completed the server and selling training
program (TIPS or ServSafe)

The M.O.D. has confirmed that all Security Personnel are in uniforms clearly identifying such person as
security and has provided necessary contact information to security

Set-up Checklist

The M.O.D. will review the standard operating procedures and assign staff a station for the concert in
the pre-shift meeting

Security staff will be responsible for setting up the fencing around the perimeter of the common
consumption area

Security staff will be responsible for setting up a table, sighage and trash/recycling bins if applicable at
their assigned station

Security staff will be responsible for ensuring that there is adequate space for pedestrian traffic and
directional signs will be set-up where needed

Security Checklist

Monitoring of the area will begin 1 hour prior to the beginning of the concert

Monitoring shall include checking all early entrants to the concert area for outside alcohol and
informing them of the common consumption area rules

All guests must enter through one of the approved ingress/egress points to the concert

Security will inform all concert goers that outside alcohol is not allowed and will search coolers,
backpacks, bags and/or other containers for illegal beverages

If outside alcoholic beverages are found, security will inform the guest that they cannot open or
consume alcoholic beverages. Food items are allowed into the common consumption area
Security will ensure that no alcoholic beverages leave the common consumption area

Security will notify M.O.D. of any issues with drunk/disorderly patrons, and the M.O.D. will engage the
local police force for conflict resolution

Monitoring will continue until 30 minutes after the concert ended (approximately 8:30pm)

The post show monitoring shall include a sweep to insure that all alcoholic beverages are removed
from the common consumption area

Breakdown Checklist

35

Security staff will be responsible for breaking down the fencing around the perimeter of the common
consumption area and putting in designated storage area

Security staff will be responsible for putting away any tables, signage and trash/recycling bins if
applicable from their assigned station

Security staff will do a sweep of the grass to pick up and dispose of any trash



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



LDT

A7




48



49



50



51



52



53



Heidi Stenhammer

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Hi Heidi,

Jack Schultz. <schultzjack@icloud.com>

Monday, January 11, 2016 3:21 PM

Heidi Stenhammer

Re: Mountain Village Entertainment District Support

| remain a supporter of the Entertainment District.

Thank you,

Jack Schultz

President, Kayenta Legend House

Sent from my iPad

On Jan 11, 2016, at 1:46 PM, Heidi Stenhammer <heidi@tmvoa.org> wrote:

Hi Jack,

I am working on submitting the application for the renewal of The Mountain Village Promotional
association’s entertainment district / common consumption area for TMVOA’s Sunset Concert Series. |
noticed that in a previous application, there was an email confirming that Kayenta was in support of the
entertainment district. Is that still the case? I've attached the email from last year so you can see the
history. If | need to direct this to someone else, please let me know otherwise please reply with your

support.

Thank you!

Heidi Stenhammer
Operations Manager

Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association
113 Lost Creek Lane, Suite A Mountain Village, CO 81435
970-728-1904 Ext 7 (Office)

www.tmvoa.org

<19 Kayenta HOA Support.pdf>



HOME. LOAN

INVESTMENT

Company

Acentury of sirength

January 12, 2016

Mountain Village Promotional Association
113 Lost Creek Lane Ste A
Mountain Village, CO 81435

RE: May Renewal
To Whom It May Concern:

We currently write the general liability/special events, directors & officers and liquor
liability for Mountain Village Promotional Association. These policies renew in May
2015. We do not foresee any issues with renewal and fully expect to be able to offer the
same terms in May.

Account Manager

James D. Hamilton, CEO « Craig N. Springer, President « Dennis King, Vice President Fmanee * MaEL L. Hall, Vice Presxdent Insurance : _
205 N 5% Street » P.O. Box 100 + Grand Junction, CO 81502 « www.hlic.com ... .7 S
Finance Division: (970) 243-6600 » FAX: (970} 254-0873  Insurance Division: (970) 243- 6608 * FAX: (970) 243-3914



I
ACORD
——

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE pATE MBI

TELLMOU-04 KITTYH

1/11/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONIACT K atie Sweet
P & nvestment Company PHONE " (970) 243-6600 [ (4% oy (970) 243-3914
Grand Junction, CO 81501 DBREss:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Secura Insurance Company 22543
INSURED insURer B : Golden Bear Insurance Corporation
Mountain Village Promotional Association INSURER C :
113 Lost Creek Lane Ste A INSURER D :
Mountain Village, CO 81435 INSURER E -
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF_| POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR CP 3224668-5 05/01/2015 | 05/01/2016 | BRUACETORENTED |s 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
EN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poLicy |:| B |:| Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY L2 nocident) $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED .
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VIN STATUTE ‘ ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |:| N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
B |Liquor Liability GLL-02295 05/01/2015 | 05/01/2016 |Liquor Liability 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Town of Mountain Village is listed as additional insured with regards to general and liquor liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Town of Mountain Village
455 Mountain Village Unit A
Mountain Village, CO 81435

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2@1@/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



57



58



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

GBR 21207 13
EXCLUSION-ASSAULT & BATTERY

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, SECTION I - COVERAGES,
COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY, 2. Exclusions, a.
Expected or Intended Injury and LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, SECTION [ - LIQUOR
LIABILITY COVERAGE, 2. Exclusions, a. Expected or [ntended Injury are replaced by the following:
a. Expected or Intended Injury
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected or intended from the standpoint of the insured.

B. The following exclusion is added as an item to the COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
COVERAGE PART, SECTION [ - COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND
PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY, 2. Exclusions; COYERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING
INJURY LIABILITY, 2. Exclusions; COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS. 2. Exclusions, and to the
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, SECTION I - LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE, 2.
Exclusions:

C. This insurance does not apply to claims or "suits" to recover damages for "bodily injury," or "property

damage," "personal and advertising injury," or medical payments arising from any of the following acts,
allegations, or causes of action:

. Assault;

2. Battery;

3. Harmful or offensive contact between or among two or more persons:

4. Apprehension of harmful or offensive contact between or among two or more persons;

5. Threats by words or deeds;

6. Unlawful restraint or false imprisonment;

7. Negligent hiring or retention of any employee resulting in or pertaining to any act or allegation

of any act identified in 1-6 above:
8. Failure to supervise or train any employee resulting in or pertaining to any act or allegation of

any act identified in 1-6 above;

9. Negligent entrustment resulting in or pertaining to any act or allegation of any act identified in 1-
6 above:

10. Negligent rescue in the aiding or failing to aid any person from any act or allegation of any act
identified in 1-6 above, even if the rescue was an independent cause of harm or alleged to be:

| 1. Negligent maintenance of the premises resulting in or pertaining to any act or allegation of any
act identified in 1-6 above;

2. Any actual or alleged failure to prevent, halt, or bar any act identified in 1-6 above, or

13. Indemnity for any act identified in 1-6 above.



The above acts, allegations, or causes of action shall not be deemed an “occurrence™ and we have no duty
to defend or indemnify an insured regardless of the degree of culpability or intent and without regard to:

bl S0

Whether damages sought are for ~bodily injury,” “property damage,” “personal injury.” or
“advertising injury”;

The intent or culpability of an insured. an employee, or “third party™:

Whether the claim, demand, or suit alleges that an insured acted directly or indirectly to cause
damage;

Whether the claim, demand, or suit alleges that liability is based upon the doctrine of respondeat
superior;

Whether the claim, demand. or suit alleges that the insured trained, instructed, directed,
influenced, or controlled its employees or “third parties™ in such a manner so as to cause damage
or danger;

Whether the acts, allegations, or causes of action identified above occurred on or off the insured’s

Jjobsite or designated premises or premises owned, occupied, leased or rented by the insured:;
Whether the claim, demand, or suit alleges that the insured or his officers, employees, or agents
failed to prevent, bar or halt any conduct which is the basis of any act, allegation, or cause of
action listed in Section C, items 1-13 above, or

8. Whether or not the claim, demand, or suit alleges indemnity is owed pursuant to a contract.

D. This exclusion also applies to any claims, demands, or suits by any other person, firm, estate, entity or
organization asserting rights derived from, or contingent upon. any person asserting a claim excluded by
Section C, items 1-13 above.

E. This exclusion applies to all damages to persons or property, regardless of the damages alleged.
claimed, stipulated or awarded, including costs and fees.

As defined in this exclusion, “third party” shall mean agents, independent contractors, sub-contractors,
patrons, customers, lessors or lesees, security personnel, or any other persons lawfully or unlawfully on

the insured’s designated premise.



61



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 21730115

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
EXCLUSION OF CERTIFIED ACTS OF TERRORISM

This endorsement madifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

The following exclusion is added.

This insurance dees not apply to:
TERRORISM

"Any injury or damage" arising, directly or indirect-
ly, out of a "cerlified act of terrorism".

B. The following definitions are added:

1

CG 217301 15
62

For the purposes of this endorsement, "any
injury or damage" means any injury or damage
covered under any Coverage Part to which this
endorsement is applicable, and includes but is
not limited to "bodily injury”, "property dam-
age", "personal and advertising injury", "injury"
or "environmental damage” as may be defined

in any applicable Coverage Part.

2. "Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in
accordance with the provisions of the federal
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act of
terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act
for a "certified act of terrorism' include the fol-
lowing:

a. The act resulted in insured losses in excess
of $5 million in the aggregate, attributable to
all types of insurance subject to the Terror-
ism Risk Insurance Act; and

b. The act is a violent act or an act that is
dangerous to human life, property or infra-
structure and is committed by an individual
or individuals as part of an effort to coerce
the civilian population of the United States
or to influence the policy or affect the con-
duct of the United States Government by
coercion.

C. The terms and limitations of any terrorism exclu-
sion, or the inapplicability or omission of a terror-
ism exclusion, do not serve to create coverage for
injury or damage that is otherwise excluded under
this Coverage Part.

@© Insurance Services Office, Inc, 2014 Page 1 of 1

O



63



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY, PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

GER 306 01 96

EXCLUSION - EMPLOYMENT RELATED PRACTICES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

Section | - LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE, number 2. Exclusions is amended to include.
h. Employment — Related Practices
(1) Refusal to employ;
(2) Termination of employment;
(3) Coercion, demotion, evaluation, reassignment, discipline, defamation, harassment,
humiliation, discrimination, or other employment related practices, policies, acts or

omissions, or

(4) Consequential bodily injury as a result of (1) through (3) above.

This exclusion applies whether the insured may be held liable as an employer or in any other capacity and to any
obligation to share damages with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of the injury

All other Terms and Conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
GBR 21806 12
EXCLUSION - PUNITIVE DAMAGES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

FRODUCTS /ICOMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
This insurance does not apply to liabiity:

1 For punitive or exemplary damages,

2. For damages which are not compensatory damages



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
GBR 320 01 86

DEDUCTIBLE LIABILITY INSURANCE
(Including Costs and Expenses)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Coverage Amount of Deductible
Liguor Liability $ 1,500.00 per claim

Application of Endorsement;

1. Our obligation under this policy to pay damages on your behalf applies only to the amount of damages in
excess of any deductible amounts stated on this endorsement, and the limit of insurance applicable to “Each
Common Cause” for such coverage will be reduced by the amount of such deductible. The "Aggregate” limit
for such coverage shall not be reduced by the application of such deductible.

2. The deductible amount applies:
a. Toall damages because of "bodily injury” sustained by one person; or
b. To all damages because of ‘property damage” sustained by one person or organization, as a result of
any one “injury”.

3. The deductible amount shown in the Schedule applies toward Investigation, adjustment and legal expenses
incurred in the handling and investigation of each claim, whether or not payment is made to claimant,
compromise settlement is reached or claim is denied.

4. The terms of this insurance; including those with respect to our right and duty to defend “suits” seeking
damages, and your duties in the event of an "injury”, claim or suit, apply irrespective of the application of the
deductible amount.

5,  We may at our sole election and option, either:

a. Pay any part or all of the deductible amount to effect settlement of any claim or suit and upon notification
of the action taken, you shall promptly reimburse us to such part of the deductible amount as has been
paid by us; or

b.  Upon our receipt of notice of any claim or at any time thereafter, request you to pay over and deposit with
us all or any part of the deductible amount, to be held and applied per the terms o this policy  #

All other Terms and Conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.



IL 00 21 07 02

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION
ENDORSEMENT

(Broad Form)

This endorsement madifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

FARM COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY

1. The insurance does not apply:
A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"

or

(1)

(2

IL 00 21 07 02

67

"property damage":

With respect to which an "insured" under
the policy is also an insured under a nu-
clear energy liability policy issued by Nu-
clear Energy Liability Insurance Associa-
tion, Mutual Atomic Energy Liability
Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance Associa-
tion of Canada or any of their successors,
or would be an insured under any such pol-
icy but for its termination upon exhaustion
of its limit of liability; or

Resulting from the "hazardous properties"
of "nuclear material' and with respect to
which (a) any person or arganization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "in-
sured" is, or had this policy not been issued
would be, entitled to indemnity from the
United States of America, or any agency
thereof, under any agreement entered into
by the United States of America, or any
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation.

B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to
expénses incurred with respect to "bodily in-
jury" resulting from the "hazardous properties”

of

"nuclear material" and arising out of the op-

eration of a "nuclear facility" by any person or
organization.

. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury"

or "property damage" resulting from "hazard-
ous properties” of "nuclear material", if:

(1)

(2) The "nuclear material"

(3)

© |SO Properties, Inc., 2001

The "nuclear material” (a) is at any "nuclear
facility" owned by, or operated by or on be-
half of, an "insured" or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom);

is contained in
"spent fuel" or "waste" at any time pos-
sessed, handled, used, processed, stored,
transported or disposed of, by or on behalf
of an "insured"; or

The "bedily injury" or "property damage"
arises out of the furnishing by an "insured”
of services, materials, parts or equipment in
connection with the planning, construction,
maintenance, operation or use of any "nu-
clear facility", but if such facility is located
within the United States of America, its terri-
tories or possessions or Canada, this ex-
clusion (3) applies only to "property
damage" to such "nuclear facility" and any
property thereat.

Page 1 of 2



-

Page 2 of 2
68

2. As used in this endorsement:

"Hazardous properties” includes radioactive. toxic
or explosive properties.

"Nuclear material' means "source matenal", "Spe-
cial nuclear material" or "by-praduct material”.

"Source material", "special nuclear material’, and
"by-product material" have the meanings given
them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any
law amendatory thereof.

"Spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel com-
ponent, solid or liquid, which has been used or
exposed to radiation in a "nuclear reactor”,

"Waste" means any waste material (a) containing
"by-product material" other than the tailings or
wastes produced by the extraction or concentra-
tion of uranium or thorium from any ore processed
primarily for its "source material' content, and (b)
resulting from the operation by any person or or-
ganization of any "nuclear facility" included under
the first two paragraphs of the definition of "nu-
clear facility”.

"Nuclear facility" means:
(a) Any "nuclear reactor”,

(b) Any equipment or device designed or used
for (1) separating the isatopes of uranium or
plutanium, (2) processing or utilizing "spent
fuel", or (3) handling, processing or packag-
ing "waste";

© SO Properties, Inc., 2001

(c) Any equipment or device used for the proc-
essing, fabricating or alloying of "special
nuclear material® if at any time the total
amount of such material in the custody of
the "insured" at the premises where such
equipment or device is located consists of
or contains more than 25 grams of pluto-
nium or uranium 233 or any combination
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium
235;

(d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises
or place prepared or used for the storage or
disposal of "waste";

and includes the site on which any of the forego-
ing is located, all operations conducted on such
site and all premises used for such operations.

"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus designed
or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical
mass of fissionable material.

"Property damage" includes all forms of radioac-
tive contamination of property.

IL 00 21 07 02

O



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG00331207

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage.
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights,
duties and what is and is not covered.

Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your"
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations,
and any other person or arganization qualifying as a
Named Insured under this policy. The words "we",
"us" and "our" refer to the Company providing this
insurance.

The word "insured" means any person or organization
qualifying as such under Section Il — Who Is An In-
sured.

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation
marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V —
Definitions.

SECTION | - LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE
1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured be-
comes legally obligated to pay as darﬁages
because of "injury” to which this insurance ap-
plies if liability for such "injury" is imposed on
the insured by reason of the selling, serving or
furnishing of any alcoholic beverage. We will
have the right and duty to defend the insured
against any "suit" seeking those damages.
However, we will have no duty to defend the
insured against any "suit" seeking damages for
"injury" to which this insurance does not apply.
We may, at our discretion, investigate any "in-
jury" and settle any claim or "suit" that may re-

sult. But:
(1) The amount we will pay for damages is
fimited as described in Section lll - Limits

Of Insurance; and

(2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we
have used up the applicable limit of insur-
ance in the payment of judgments or set-
tlements.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or
perform acts or services is covered unless ex-
plicitly provided for under Supplementary Pay-
ments.

b. This insurance applies to "injury” only if:

(1) The "injury" occurs during the policy period
in the "coverage territory”; and

CG 00 33 12 07
69

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2006

(2) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed
under Paragraph 1. of Section Il - Who Is
An Insured and no "employee" authorized
by you to give or receive notice of an "in-
jury" or claim, knew that the "injury" had oc-
curred, in whole or in part. If such a listed
insured or authorized "employee" knew,
prior to the policy period, that the "injury"
occurred, then any continuation, change or
resumption of such "injury" during or after
the policy period will be deemed to have
been known prior to the policy period.

c. "Injury" which occurs during the policy period
and was not, prior to the palicy period, known
to have occurred by any insured listed under
Paragraph 1. of Section Il - Who Is An Insured
or any "employee" authorized by you to give or
receive notice of an "injury" or claim, includes
any continuation, change or resumption of that
"injury" after the end of the policy period.

d. "Injury" will be deemed to have been known to
have occurred at the earliest time when any in-
sured listed under Paragraph 1. of Section Il —
Who Is An Insured or any "employee" author-
ized by you to give or receive notice of an "in-
jury" or claim:

(1) Reports all, or any par, of the "injury" to us
or any other insurer,

(2) Receives a written or verbal demand or
claim for damages because of the "injury”,
or

(3) Becomes aware by any other means that
"injury" has occurred or has begun to occur.

2. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply to:
a. Expected Or Intended Injury

"Injury" expected or intended from the stand-
point of the insured. This exclusion does not
apply to "bodily injury" resulting from the use of
reasonable force to protect persons or prop-
eny.

b. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws

Any obligation of the insured under a workers'
compensation, disability benefits or unem-
ployment compensation law or any similar law.

Page 1 0f 6



¢. Employer's Liability
"Bodily injury” to:

(1) An "employee" of the insured arising out of
and in the course of:

(a) Employment by the insured; ar

(b) Performing duties related to the conduct
of the insured'’s business; or

(2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister
of that "employee" as a consequence of
Paragraph (1) above.

This exclusion applies whether the insured
may be liable as an employer or in any other
capacity and to any obligation to share dam-
ages with or repay somecne else who must
pay damages because of the "injury”,

d. Liquor License Not In Effect

“Injury" arising out of any alcoholic beverage
sold, served or furnished while any required li-
cense is not in effect.

e. Your Product

"Injury" arising out of "your product'. This ex-
clusion does not apply to "injury" for which the
insured or the insured's indemnitees may be
held liable by reason of:

(1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of
any person;

(2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a
person under the legal drinking age or un-
der the influence of alcohol; or

(3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating
to the sale, gift, distribution or use of alco-
holic beverages.

f. Other Insurance

Any "injury" with respect ta which other insur-
ance is afforded, or would be afforded but for
the exhaustion of the limits of insurance.

This exclusion does not apply if the other in-
surance responds to liability for "injury" im-
posed on the insured by reason of the selling,
serving or furnishing of any alcoholic beverage.

g. War

"Injury", however caused, arising, directly or in-
directly, out of:

(1) War, including undeclared or civil war;

(2) Warlike action by a military force, including
action in hindering or defending against an
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using
military personnel or other agents; or

Page 2 of 6
70

(3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any
of these.

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS

We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate
or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we defend:

15
A

All expenses we incur,

The cost of bonds to release attachments, but only
for bond amounts within the applicable limit of in-
surance. We do not have to furnish these bonds.

All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at
our request to assist us in the investigation or de-
fense of the claim or "suit", including actual loss of
earnings up to $250 a day because of time off
from work.

All court costs taxed against the insured in the
"suit". However, these payments do not include at-
torneys' fees or attorneys' expenses taxed against
the insured.

Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured
on that part of the judgment we pay. If we make an
offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we
will not pay any prejudgment interest based on
that period of time after the offer.

All interest on the full amount of any judgment that
accrues after entry of the judgment and before we
have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the
part of the judgment that is within the applicable
limit of insurance.

Expenses incurred by the insured for first aid ad-
ministered to others at the time of an event to
which this insurance applies.

These payments will not reduce the limits of insur-
ance.

SECTION Il -WHO IS AN INSURED

1.

)

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2006

If you are designated in the Declarations as:

a. An individual, you and your spouse are insur-
eds,

b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an in-
sured. Your members, your partners, and their
spouses are also insureds, but only with re-
spect to the conduct of your business,

¢. A limited liability company, you are an insured.
Your members are also insureds, but only with
respect to the conduct of your business. Your
managers are insureds, but only with respect
to their duties as your managers.

CG 00331207

O



d. An organization other than a partnership, joint
venture or limited liability company, you are an
insured. Your "executive officers" and directors
are insureds, but only with respect to their du-
ties as your officers or directors. Your stock-
holders are also insureds, but only with respect
to their liability as stockholders.

2, Each of the following is also an insured:

a. Your "employees", other than either your "ex-
ecutive officers” (if you are an organization
other than a partnership, joint venture or limited
liability company) or your managers (if you are
a limited liability company), but only for acts
within the scope of their employment by you or
while performing duties related to the conduct
of your business. However, none of these "em-
ployees" is an insured for.

{1) "Injury"

(a) To you, to your partners or members (if
you are a partnership or joint venture),
to your members (if you are a limited li-
ability company), or to a co-"employee"
while that co-"employee" is either in the
course of hig or her employment or per-
forming duties related to the conduct of
your business;

(b) To the spouse, child, parent, brother or
sister of that co-"employee" as a conse-
quence of Paragraph (a) above; or

(c) For which there is any obligation to
share damages with or repay someone
else who must pay damages because of
the injury described in Paragraphs (a) or
(b) above.

(2) "Property damage" to property:

(a) Owned or occupied by, or

(b) Rented or loaned

to that "employee", any of your other "em-
ployees", by any of your partners or mem-
bers (if you are a partnership or joint ven-
ture), or by any of your members (if you are
a limited liability company).

b. Any person or organization having proper
temporary custody of your property if you die,
but only:

(1) With respect to liability arising out of the
maintenance or use of that property; and

(2) Until your legal representative has been
appointed.

CG 00 33 12 07
71

© ISO Properties, Inc., 2006

c. Your legal representative if you die, but only
with respect to duties as such. That represen-
tative will have all your rights and duties under
this Coverage Part.

3. Any organization you newly acquire or form, other
than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability
company, and over which you maintain ownership
or majority interest, will qualify as a Named In-
sured if there is no other similar insurance avail-
able to that organization. However:

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only
until the S0th day after you acquire or form the
organization or the end of the policy period,
whichever is earlier; and

b. Coverage does not apply to "injury”" that oc-
curred before you acquired or formed the or-
ganization.

Na person or organization is an insured with respect
to the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint
venture or limited liability company that is not shown
as a Named Insured in the Declarations.

SECTION Il - LIMITS OF INSURANCE

1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations
and the rules below fix the most we will pay re-
gardiess of the number of;

a. Insureds;
b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or

c. Persons or organizations making claims or
bringing "suits".
2. The Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for all
"injury" as the result of the selling, serving or fur-
nishing of alcoholic beverages.

3, Subject to the Aggregate Limit, the Each Commaon
Cause Limit is the most we will pay for all "injury"
sustained by one or more persons or organiza-
tions as the result of the selling, serving or furnish-
ing of any alcoholic beverage to any one person.

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply
separately to each consecutive annual period and fo
any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting
with the beginning of the policy period shown in the
Declarations, unless the policy period is extended
after issuance for an additional peried of less than 12
months. In that case, the additional period will be
deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes
of determining the Limits of Insurance.

SECTION IV - LIQUOR LIABILITY CONDITIONS
1. Bankruptcy

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the
insured's estate will not relieve us of our obliga-
tions under this Coverage Part.

Page 3 of 6



-

. Legal Action Against Us

Page 4 of 6
12

2. Duties In The Event Of Injury, Claim Or Suit

a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon
as practicable of an "injury" which may result in
a claim. To the extent possible, notice should
include:

(1) How, when and where the "injury" took
place;

(2) The names and addresses of any injured
persons and witnesses; and

(3) The nature and location of any "injury”.

b. If a claim is made or "suit" is brought against
any insured, you must:

(1) Immediately record the specifics of the
claim or "suit" and the date received; and

{2) Netify us as soon as practicable.

You must see to it that we receive written no-
tice of the claim or "suit' as soon as practica-
ble.

¢. You and any other involved insured must:

(1) Immediately send us copies of any de-
mands, notices, summonses or legal pa-
pers received in connection with the claim
or "suit”;

(2) Authorize us to obtain records and other
infermation;

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or
settlement of the claim or defense against
the "suit"; and

(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the en-
forcement of any right against any person
or organization which may be liable to the
insured because of "injury” to which this in-
surance may also apply.

d. No insured will, except at that insured's own
cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any
obligation, or incur any expense, other than for
first aid, without our consent.

)

No person or organization has a right under this
Coverage Part:

a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into
a "suit" asking for damages from an insured, or

b. To sue us on this Coverage Part unless all of
its terms have been fully complied with.

© I1SQ Properties, Inc., 2006

A person or organization may sue us to recover on
an agreed settlement or on a final judgment
against an insured; but we will not be liable for
damages that are not payable under the terms of
this Coverage Part or that are in excess of the ap-
plicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement
means a settlement and release of liability signed
by us, the insured and the claimant or the claim-
ant's legal representative,

. Other Insurance

If other valid and collectible insurance is available
to the insured for a loss we cover under this Caov-
erage Part, our obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary. Qur obligations are
not affected unless any of the other insurance
is also primary. Then, we will share with all that
other insurance by the method described in b.
below.

b. Method Of Sharing

If all of the other insurance permits contribution
by equal shares, we will follow this method
also. Under this approach each insurer con-
tributes equal amounts until it has paid its ap-
plicable limit of insurance or none of the loss
remains, whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit
contribution by equal shares, we will contribute
by limits. Under this method, each insurer's
share is based on the ratio of its applicable
limit of insurance to the total applicable limits of
insurance of all insurers.

5. Premium Audit

a. We will compute all premiums for this Cover-
age Part in accordance with our rules and
rates.

b. Premium shown in this Coverage Part as ad-
vance premium is a deposit premium only. At
the close of each audit period we will compute
the earned premium for that period and send
notice to the first Named Insured. The due date
for audit and retrospective premiums is the
date shown as the due date on the bill. If the
sum of the advance and audit premiums paid
for the policy period is greater than the earned
premium, we will return the excess to the first
Named Insured.

CG 00331207

O



c. The first Named Insured must keep records of
the information we need for premium computa-
tion, and send us copies at such times as we
may request,

6. Representations
By accepting this policy, you agree:

a. The statements in the Declarations are accu-
rate and complete;

b. Those statements are based upon representa-
tions you made to us; and

¢. We have issued this policy in reliance upon
your representations.

7. Separation Of Insureds

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and
any rights or duties specifically assigned in this
Coverage Part to the first Named Insured, this in-
surance applies:

a. As if each Named Insured were the only
Named Insured; and

b. Separately to each insured against whom claim
is made or "suit" is brought.

8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others
To Us

if the insured has rights to recover all or part of
any payment we have made under this Coverage
Part, those rights are transferred to us. The in-
sured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At
our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer
those rights to us and help us enforce them.

9. When We Do Not Renew

If we decide not to renew this Coverage Part, we
will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured
shown in the Declarations written notice of the
nonrenewal not less than 30 days before the expi-
ration date.

If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient
proof of notice,

SECTION V - DEFINITIONS

1. "Badily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or
disease sustained by a person, including death re-
sulting from any of these at any time.

2. "Coverage territory" means:

a. The United States of America (including its
territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and
Canada;

b. International waters or airspace, but only if the
"injury" occurs in the course of travel or trans-
portation between any places included in
Paragraph a. above, or

c. All other parts of the world if the "injury" arises
out of:

(1) Goods or products made or sold by you in
the territory described in Paragraph a.
above; or

(2) The activities of a person whose home is in
the territory described in Paragraph a.
above, but is away for a short time on your
business

provided the insured's responsibility to pay
damages is determined in 2 "suit’ on the mer-
its, in the territory described in Paragraph a.
above or in a settlement we agree to.

. "Employee" includes a "leased worker", "Em-

ployee" does not include a "temporary worker".

. "Executive Officer" means a person holding any of

the officer positions created by your charter, con-
stitution, by-laws or any other similar governing
document.

. "Injury” means damages because of "bodily injury"

and "property damage”, including damages for
care, loss of services or loss of support.

. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by

a labor leasing firm under an agreement between
you and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties
related to the conduct of your business. "Leased
worker" does not include a "tempaorary worker".

. "Property damage" means:

a. Physical injury to tangible property, including
all resulting loss of use of that property. All
such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at
the time of the physical injury that caused it; or

b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not
physically injured. All such loss of use shall be
deemed to occur at the time of the occurrence
that caused it.

. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages

because of "injury" ta which this insurance applies
are alleged. "Suit" includes)

a. An arbitration proceeding in which such dam-
ages are claimed and to which the insured
must submit or does submit with our consent;
or

b. Any other alternative dispule resolution pro-
ceeding in which such damages are claimed
and to which the insured submits with our con-
sent.

. "Temporary worker' means a person who is fur-

nished to you to substitute for a permanent “"em-
ployee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-term
workload conditions.

CG 00331207 © |SO Properties, Inc., 2006 Page 5 of 6

73



10."Your product"; b. Includes;
- R

a. Means: (1) Warranties or representations made at any

(1) Any goods or products, other than real timg’with respect to the fitness, Iguality, du-

property, manufactured, sold, handled, dis- rability, perfermance or use of "your prod-
tributed or disposed of by: uet”, and

(@) You: (2) The providing of or failure to provide warn-

ings or Instructions.

b) Ot tradi d ' . y
(9} Dlhersimding unnee yoursame; or ¢. Does not include vending machines or other

(c) A person or organization whose busi- property rented to or located for the use of oth-
ness or assets you have acquired; and ers but not sold.

(2) Containers (other than vehicles), materials,
parts or equipment furnished in connection
with such goods or products.

Page 6 of 6 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2006 CG 00331207 O
14



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 2 michael boucher landscape architecture
99



—_ - =
Ny [ e

W\

~

TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 3 michael boucher landscape architecture
100



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 4 michael boucher landscape architecture
101



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 6 michael boucher landscape architecture
102



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 9 michael boucher landscape architecture
103



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 10 michael boucher landscape architecture
104



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 1" michael boucher landscape architecture
105



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 12 michael boucher landscape architecture
106



TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 michael boucher landscape architecture
107




TELLURIDE FOREVER PARK | SCHEMATIC DESIGN 16/01/08 15 michael boucher landscape architecture
108



109



EXHIBIT B
APPROVED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
The Town hereby approves the following Approved Capital Improvements to be
made by TSG pursuant to Article 7 of the Amended and Restated Conference
Center Management Agreement:

Approved Capital Improvement (detailed description):

2 Purchases of Complete Sound System $127,591.39 + $85,000 = $212,591.39 Total

Type Qty. Description Note Time Rate Unit Rate
Qty.
Retall
Retail 210 3 Wire 12 Gauge Per Foot Each 1.99
Retall 650 4 Wire 12 Gauge Per Foot Each 231
Retall 200 Feeder Cable Each 4.96
Retall 2 Mina Fly Bars Each 2.954.00
Retail 1 Miscelianeous Hardware Each 1,500.00
Retall 1 Motor Control Each 500.00
Retall 1 Whirwind 32x10 Snake Each 2.470.00
Retail 1 Midas M32 Each 4.999.00
Retall 12  Meyer Meiodle Each 8,960.00
Retall 1,750 XLR Per Foot (10) 50’ Each 1.75
(50) 25'
Retail 1 Shure Beta 52 Each 190.00
Retall 2 Shure Beta8g1 Each 35000
Retall 1 ShureBeta9iA Each 239.00
Retall 3 Shure KSM 137/SL Each 300.00
Retall 6  Shure SM57 Each 9900
Retall 6 Shure SM58 S Each 9900
Retall B K&M Short Boom Each 9000
Retail 4 K&M Straight Stand Each 60.00
Retall 10 K&M Tall Boom Each 9000
Retall 6 Radial JOI DI Box Each 199 99
Retall 2 CM 1 Ton Motor Each 5,200 00
Retail 24 3 Pin Female Each 293
Relall 24 3 Pin Male Each 282
Retall 1 Power Distro Each 2.100.00
Retail 700 XLR Per Foot PA only Each 1.80
Retall 2 HP700Sub Each 15,274.00
Retail 2 HP 700 Sub Wheelplale Each 1,876.00
Retall 1 Meyers Gallleo Each 13,426.00
Retall 2 Mina Mid Wheelplaie Each 1,134.00

Ext. Price

41790
1,501 50
992 00
5,908.00
1,500 00
500.00
2,470.00
4,999.00
107,520 00
3.062.50

190.00
700.00
239.00
$00.00
594 00
594 00
72000
24000
90000
1,199 94
10,40000
7032
6792
2,100.00
1,260.00
30,548.00
3,752.00
13,426.00
2,268 .00



111



112



I\/I e mo Agenda Item #10

To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council

From: James Mahoney

CC: File

Date: January 13, 2016

Re:  Re-Certification of Procurement Manual

This item is being brought to Town Council in order to examine and re-certify the
Town’s procurement policies that are embodied in the Town’s Procurement Manual.
This is being done as some of the agencies which the Town receives grants from
have expressed that they would like to see procurement policies re-certified by the
governing body at least every three years, which is probably a good practice.

The last time the Procurement Manual was examined and adopted by the Town
Council was in 2011, thus, it is time for Town Council to take a look and re-certify
this document.

| am involved in most aspects of the procurement process, including formal bid
requests, review of some bids, review of contracts, review of requests for waivers of
formal bid processes, review of sole source requests etc... and since 2011, | have not
seen a lot of issues regarding the Town’s procurement process or the Procurement
Manual. I have also spoken with the Finance Department along with key
Department Managers and while there is the occasional slowing down of a project
due to the procurement requirements, they feel that the procurement process works
well, while having all of the necessary safe-guards in effect. The Town’s auditors
have also expressed satisfaction with the Town’ Procurement Manual during the
annual audits. Therefore, staff does not have any recommended areas of changes for
the Procurement Manual.

Proposed Motion:

| move to approve and re-certify the Town’ Procurement Manual as presented.

=
=
w



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
PROCUREMENT MANUAL
AS AMENDED AND ADOPTED BY
TOWN COUNCIL JANUARY 20, 2011

H
H
N



SECTION 1

SECTION 2

SECTION 3

SECTION 4

SECTION 5

SECTION 6

SECTION 7

=
=
a1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

ETHICS IN PUBLIC PROCUREMENT
e GUIDELINES

GRATUITIES

KICKBACKS

EMPLOYEE PURCHASES

SANCTIONS

PURCHASING AUTHORITY
e MAYOR
TOWN MANAGER
DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZATION
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
PURCHASING AUTHORIZATION MATRIX
COMPUTER HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE PURCHASES
CELL PHONE PURCHASES AND PLAN ADMINISTRATION
LEGAL REVIEW

SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS
e SMALL PURCHASES
REQUEST FOR QUOTE
INVITATION FOR BID
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
SERVICE/MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT

INVITATION FOR BID PROCEDURES
e INVITATION FOR BID
PUBLIC NOTICE
BOND REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFICATIONS
BID OPENING AND AWARD
BID IRREGULARITIES
EXEMPTIONS TO FORMAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING
WAIVER OF FORMAL COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCEDURES
NEED

WHO CAN ISSUE
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
PUBLIC NOTICE

BOND REQUIREMENTS
FORMAT/OUTLINE
RECEIPT OF RFP
EVALUTAION COMMITTEE
EVALUATION PROCESS
LETTER OF INTENT
OVERVIEW

CONTRACTS
e GENERAL
e TYPES OF CONTRACTS
e CONTRACT APPROVAL

12 - 16

17 -18



e CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
e CONTRACTS INVOLVING GRANT FUNDING

SECTION 8 PURCHASING AND PAYMENT APPROVALS 19-20
e PLANNING AND FORECASTING
e VENDOR APPROVAL PROCESS
e PAYMENT PROCESSING
e RECEIPTING
SECTION 9 SURPLUS PROPERTY 21 -22

e SURPLUS STOCK

e METHODS OF DISPOSAL

e SALES TO EMPLOYEES

e GRANT FUNDED EQUIPMENT

SECTION 10 GLOSSARY OF PROCUREMENT TERMS 23-27

SECTION 11 APPENDICES 28
e FORM A: SOLE SOURCE WAIVER REQUEST

FORM B: REQUEST FOR QUOTE

FORM C: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

FORM D: OFFEROR REQUIREMENTS

FORM E: REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER

FORM F: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL - SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FORM G: PAYMENT APPROVAL FORM

=
=
[ep}



SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) has prepared this Procurement Manual for
departmental use. It serves as a guide for fair and equitable treatment of all persons involved in
public purchasing, and a tool for maximizing quality and value for the tax dollar.

As trusted public servants, Town personnel must work as a team and cooperate with one
another to administer an effective procurement program. Employees who are part of the
purchasing cycle must be aware of policies and procedures that are the background for ethical
and fair procurement practices.

OVERVIEW
This Procurement Manual shall be a complete source of information and detailed procedures for
centralized purchasing of commodities, services and equipment. All Town employees shall be
familiar with the regulations set forth and shall adhere to the procedures and policies
established herein.

The sections that follow cover administration of our purchasing authority, contract formation,
specifications, solicitation and evaluation process, contract award, delivery terms, bidder and
owner responsibilities, payment terms, source selection and surplus property.

Proper planning will increase Town procurement power by eliminating duplication, consolidating
purchases and encouraging competition among vendors.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The Town is governed by the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public
relationships, striving to merit respect and inspire confidence as a trusted public servant.

The Town shall maintain an effective, efficient and economical program for the purchase of
goods, services and implementation of construction contracts, resulting in the greatest
guality and value for the lowest possible cost.

The Town shall continue to enhance open competition in public purchasing, based on
impartiality and fair opportunity.

Signed this day of , 2007

Town Manager Mayor

H
[ —
\l



SECTION 2: ETHICS IN PUBLIC PROCUREMENT

2.1 GUIDELINES

Any attempt to realize personal gain through public employment is a breach of public trust. No
favoritism shall be extended to any vendor. Purchases and contracts shall be made on the
basis of competence, quality, price, delivery and performance.

It shall be a breach of ethical standards for any employee or public official to knowingly use
confidential information for his or her personal gain or for the personal gain of others.

Any agent or employee of the Town making unauthorized purchases or contracts shall be
personally liable for any obligations that result.

2.2 GRATUITIES

It is a breach of ethical standards for any person to offer, give or agree to give any employee or
public official a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with any decision or
recommendation concerning a possible or actual purchase on behalf of the Town. Gratuity
items shall not mean pens, pencils, calendars or other novelty items used as advertising by
vendors and suppliers. Those items stated above or any gifts received shall become the
property of the Town.

2.3 KICKBACKS

It shall be unethical for any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf
of a subcontractor under a contract to the prime contractor or any person associated therewith,
as an inducement for the award of a subcontract and solicitation thereof.

2.4 EMPLOYEE PURCHASES

Any attempt to realize personal gain through public employment is a breach of public trust. Itis
a breach of ethical standards for any employee or public official to solicit or request monetary
discounts from vendors and suppliers based on employment with the Town.

No Town employee may purchase on any Town vendor account unless the purchase is
specifically approved by the Town Manager. Employees may purchase from the same vendors
or suppliers on their own.

2.5 SANCTIONS

The Town Manager may impose any one or more of the following sanctions on any employee
found to be in violation of the ethical standards so stated in this section:

1. Oral or written warning or reprimand; or
2. Termination of employment

A vendor or supplier found to be in violation of the Town’s ethical standards may risk exclusion
or suspension for cause from consideration for award of contracts, with exclusion not to exceed
five (5) years. The finance department will require a W-9 from all vendors prior to remitting
payment. Any falsification of vendor identification will be reported to the IRS and the Town
would seek the maximum IRS penalties as disclosed on the W-9 form.

118



SECTION 3: PURCHASING AUTHORITY

3.1 MAYOR

The responsibility for all purchases made by the Town is vested in the Mayor. The Mayor has
authorized the Town Manager to establish procurement rules and regulations for all Town
personnel.

3.2 TOWN MANAGER

The Town Manager has established these rules and regulations for the purchase and
procurement of all goods and services, and these rules and regulations shall be applicable to all
Town employees. The Town Manager and the Mayor possess the sole authority for any
deviation from purchasing regulations. The Town Manager may invoke disciplinary action upon
any individual or department for improper purchasing practices. Disciplinary action may be in
the form of restricted purchasing privileges, restitution, suspension, termination or any other
form deemed appropriate by the Town Manager.

All capital outlay or improvement projects, service and maintenance contracts and professional
services contracts over $50,000, insurance contracts or any other items consistent with these
policies and practices must be approved in writing, by the Town Manager and the Mayor.

3.3 DEPARTMENT HEADS

By authority of the Town Manager, department heads are granted the purchasing authority and
responsibility as set forth herein. Department heads include: Town Manager, Finance Director,
Chief of Police, Public Works Director, Recreation, Plaza’s and Environmental Services
Director, Director of Community Development, Mountain Munchkins Director, Facilities Director,
Town Clerk, Human Resources Director, Transportation Director.

Department heads have total control of their respective budgeted funds and expenditures, but
expenditures shall follow the procurement guidelines contained herein.

Department heads are given the responsibility of ensuring that their personnel fully understand
the procedures established by this manual. Department heads must utilize proper planning of
purchases, allowing sufficient time to obtain proposals, quotations or bids.

Department heads may delegate purchasing authority but are responsible for the list of
department personnel authorized to purchase commodities and services. The list shall include
the names and signature (as they sign for approval) of each individual and shall be submitted to
the finance department. On occasion, vendors send a receipt to the finance department for
something that is not a Town purchase or the signature may be illegible. A list of employees
authorized to purchase will assist the finance department in paying vendors for Town
purchases.

If Department Heads have questions concerning procedures, the Town Manager and the
finance department are prepared to offer assistance.

3.4 PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Department heads shall be responsible for the daily operations of purchasing and shall be
required to comply with the following policies and procedures:

1. Procure the best value for the quality of supplies and contractual services.

3

=
=
©



2. Discourage uniform bidding and endeavor to obtain as full and open competition as
possible on all purchases and sales.

3. Stay current with changes in pricing, market conditions and products, and secure the
benefits of the research and experience of other governmental jurisdictions, national
technical societies, trade associations or private businesses.

4. Prepare and maintain forms as reasonably necessary for compliance with the
Procurement Manual.

5. Prepare and maintain a current file of potential vendors for solicitation purposes.
Maintain current list of commodities and/or services they provide.

6. Take advantage of the possibilities of buying “bulk” for maximum discounts.
7. Exercise direct supervision over inventories of supplies belonging to the Town.

8. When in the best interest of the Town, participate in or administer cooperative
purchasing agreements with the State or one or more political subdivisions of the
State of Colorado.

3.5 PURCHASING AUTHORIZATION MATRIX

The following table is to be used as a reference indicating final approval authority for all Town
purchases. The matrix indicates department required for final approval based on the amount of
the purchase and method of purchase. All disbursements require finance department approval.

Employees shall not use a piece meal approach by breaking a project or purchase into multiple
smaller parts for informal purchasing to avoid the need for a formal purchasing process,

The Town Manager may consider other factors in the bid process and the Mayor may elect to
waive any bid process.

COMPETITIVE METHOD OF EXPENDITURE AGENCY APPROVAL
SOLICITATION PURCHASE AMOUNT
INFORMAL DIRECT PURCHASE Up to $2,500 DEPARTMENT HEAD
INFORMAL REQUEST FOR QUOTE $2,501-$50,000
(Minimum 3 quotes) TOWN MANAGER
FORMAL RFP or IFB OVER $50,000 TOWN MANAGER and
MAYOR
PROF. SERVICES and DIRECT NEGOTIATION UNDER $50,000
MAINTNANCE CONTRACTS TOWN MANAGER
PROF. SERVICES and RPP or IFB OVER $50,000 TOWN MANAGER and
MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS MAYOR

3.6 COMPUTER HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE PURCHASES

All purchases of computer hardware and software must have prior approval of the Finance
Director. This procedure is followed for all hardware and software purchases regardless of
price, including printers, plotters, monitors, memory and multifunction cards, disk drives, backup
type units and other pertinent hardware/software products.

4
12



This policy does not apply to computer accessories or furniture including desks, stands, floppy
disks, ribbons, anti-glare screens, surge protectors, etc. Normal purchasing procedures may be
followed for these items.

This policy has been adopted in order to standardize and regulate the Town’s computer system.

3.7 CELL PHONE EQUIPMENT PURCHASES AND PLAN CHANGES

All purchases of cell phone equipment or cell phone plan changes must be approved by both
the department head and Finance Director.

This policy has been adopted in order to standardize and regulate the Town’s cell phone plan
and maximize purchasing power.

3.8 LEGAL REVIEW

All legal documents related to purchases for items greater than $2,500 must be reviewed by the
Town Attorney including but not limited to Requests for Proposals, Invitations for Bid and all
contractual agreements. Written documentation of such review must be provided to the Town
Manager prior to seeking the required purchase order approval.

=
[y



SECTION 4: SOLICITATION REQUIREMENTS

4.1 SMALL PURCHASES (Up to $2,500)

Purchases of up to $2,500 may be made by each department’'s authorized personnel, with
approval by the department head. Required signatures of the department head must be on the
PO prior to submittal to the finance department. All purchases shall be from pre-approved
vendors. In order to establish a vendor as an approved vendor the department head shall fill
out an approved vendor form with the finance department prior to submitting any request for
approval of payment to the finance department.

4 .2 REQUEST FOR QUOTE ($2,501-$50,000)

Department heads shall budget and plan for purchases over $2,500 to allow time to obtain the
required 3 quotes.

A Request for Quote (RFQ) (see Section 12: Appendices, FORM B), with a minimum of 3
vendor names, must be submitted to the finance department with any PO for over $2,500.

Acceptable quotes may be obtained by a department head by mail, email, in person, over the
phone, or by facsimile. If award is not made to the lowest quote, justification for accepting a
higher quote must be included and be acceptable to the Town Manager. All PO’s for purchases
over $2,500 must be approved by the Town Manager. All purchases shall be from pre-
approved vendors. In order to establish a vendor as an approved vendor the department head
shall fill out an approved vendor form with the finance department prior to submitting any PO for
such vendor to the finance department.

Any expenditure for supplies, materials, or equipment less than $50,000 may be made without
newspaper advertisement and without observing the procedure described in the award of
competitive sealed bids or proposals, However, department heads are required to make every
effort to ensure that the process is competitive and meets the Town’s goal of achieving the best
value for goods or services.

4.3 INVITATION FOR BID (over $50,000)

Section 5 details the procedures used in the IFB process.

An Invitation for Bid (IFB) shall be solicited through the formal competitive sealed bid process
where none of the factors involved in an RFP are present. Any expenditures for supplies,
materials and equipment in excess of $50,000 shall be purchased in this manner and approved
by the Town Manager and the Mayor.

Telephone, facsimile or email bids (unless facsimile or email bids are specially allowed by the
specific IFB) are not acceptable in the formal competitive sealed bid process. All bids must be
submitted on the appropriate bid forms, attached.

IFB solicitations require that a public notice be published at least twice in a general circulation
newspaper in the Telluride/Mountain Village region at least seven (7) days preceding the bid
opening date. The notice shall include a general description of the articles to be purchased,
specifications, time and place of bid opening and other pertinent information.

6
122



The requesting department shall seek approval of the IFB from the Town Manager and legal
counsel prior to issuing the public notice.

The bid shall be awarded based on best value for the best interest of the Town. The
determining factors in awarding a bid based on best value, not necessarily low dollar, shall be
addressed in the bid documents.

Following review of bids, the requesting department shall issue a Memo of Recommendation to
the Town Manager for approval of award of contract by the Town Manager and the Mayor.

4.4 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Section 6 details the procedures used in the RFP process.

A Request for Proposal (RFP) is utilized in acquiring services or specialized products when the
Town Manager determines one or more of the following:

(a) The complex nature or technical details of a particular procurement may make the IFB
process impractical or not advantageous for the Town;

(b) Specifications cannot be prepared fairly or objectively so as to permit open competition in an
IFB;

(c) Materials or services are available from a limited number of sources; or

(d) Specifications cannot be prepared except by reference to specifications of the equipment of
a single source of supply.

The Town Manager must be contacted prior to issuing an RFP. The requesting department
must provide a draft copy of the statement of work, specifications and other pertinent
information to the Town Manager and legal counsel for review, clarification and/or modification.

4.5 SERVICE/MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS

Service or maintenance contracts for less than $50,000 may be negotiated by the department
head but must be approved by the Town Manager. The RFP or the IFB process shall be used
for service or maintenance contracts over $50,000.

4.6 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Professional services are services rendered by members of a recognized profession and/or
possessing a special skill. Such services are generally acquired for information, advice, training
or direct assistance to the Town operations.

Professional services for less than $50,000 may be negotiated by department heads and must
be approved by the Town Manager and any related documents approved by legal counsel prior
to execution. The RFP or the IFB process shall be used for professional services contracts over
$50,000.

4.7 SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT

There are times or situations when only one vendor exists that can successfully furnish a
service or product.

The Procurement Manual allows for exemption from the competitive process when a written
determination has been made by the department head and approved by the Town Manager for
7

123



items up to $20,000 or by the Mayor for items greater than $20,000 that only one source is
available to supply a service or product as set forth in 4.8 below. (See Appendices: FORM A:
Sole Source Justification). All sole source procurement processes must be reviewed by legal
counsel.

4.8 SOLE SOURCE CRITERIA

(&) The vendor is the original manufacturer and there are no regional distributors;

(b) The part or equipment is not interchangeable with similar parts or equipment available from
another manufacturer;

(c) Compatibility or conformity with Town owned material is required in that non-conformance
would require the expenditure of additional funds;

(d) No other material or equipment is available that meets the specialized needs of the
department or performs the intended function; or

(e) Detailed justification is available which reasonably establishes that vendor as the only
source practicably available to provide the item or service required.

() Legal review of the sole source process in each instance.

Personal preference, convenience or standardization is not sufficient justification
for spending public funds under non-competitive conditions.

H
N
~




SECTION 5: INVITATION FOR BID PROCEDURES

5.1 INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)

The Invitation for Bid (IFB) is the method of soliciting bids for supplies, materials, equipment and
construction projects through a formal competitive sealed bid process. Award is generally made
to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder whose bid complies with the requirements set
forth in the Contract Documents.

The IFB states the time and date which bids must be submitted and the procedures to be
followed in receiving and opening all bids. Invitations also convey contractual terms, pre-bid
conferences and other conditions applicable to the bidders. The IFB will indicate where contract
documents may be obtained and any special considerations such as bid bonds, payment and
performance bonds, etc.

There may be special provisions such as warranty, service, brands, delivery, type of contracts,
delivery penalties, bidder and owner responsibilities, escalation clause, or special equipment
information that are applicable to a particular bid and may become part of the contract documents.
Any such special provisions should be stated in the IFB.

5.2 PUBLIC NOTICE

Procurement for services and/or commodities estimated to cost over $50,000 shall be
advertised by a public notice published a minimum of two (2) times in a general circulation
newspaper in the Telluride/Mountain Village area.

A public notice shall be published at least seven (7) days preceding the bid opening date. This
notice ensures all interested bidders have the opportunity to bid. All pertinent bid information
should be contained in the notice.

5.3 BOND REQUIREMENTS

Bid bonds or other security acceptable to the Town, generally 5% of the total bid price, and
performance and payment bonds (50% of total bid price) are required on construction projects
over $50,000 or as the Town Manager deems necessary to protect the Town'’s interest. Bonds
shall not expire prior to one (1) vyear following final payment. The
Town Manager may waive the requirement for a bond as set forth in this section.

Bid bonds or other security may be requested for commodity or service contracts as the Town
Manager deems advisable to protect the Town’s interests.

Bonding security shall be held by the Town Manager or the Finance Director until the contractor
is in total compliance with bid specifications and contract documents. Final executed contract
documents will be on file with the Town Manager and Finance Department.

Bid and performance/payment bonds shall not be used as a substitute for a determination of a
bidder’s responsibility.

5.4 SPECIFICATIONS
Specifications are an important part of the IFB and shall be available to all bidders as stated in
the IFB. If for any reason it is necessary to change the specifications, an addendum will be
issued setting forth the changes.

12



Preparation of specifications is the responsibility of the requesting department head, subject to
review and approval by the Town Manager.

Specification changes must allow adequate notice and mailing time and shall be coordinated
between the requesting department and the Town Manager. This addendum will be mailed to
everyone who received a copy of the IFB. In certain instances, the bid opening may be
postponed to allow adequate time for respondents to prepare their bid, based on specification
changes. If there is not sufficient time, the IFB will be canceled and a new bid process initiated.

5.5 BID OPENING

Bids remain sealed and secure prior to bid opening. The opening of sealed bids shall be a public
ceremony. Bids shall be opened by the Town Manager or a designated representative at the time
and place specified in the IFB. Public bid openings shall have a representative from the
requesting department present as witness to the bid opening.

Prior to bid opening, the Town Manager shall allow a final opportunity for submission of bids prior
to allotted time. The Town Manager will announce the names of those who bid and inquire if any
bid previously submitted may have been omitted.

The name of each bidder, amount of bid and any other information the Town Manager or
designated representative deems to be relevant shall be recorded on a bid tabulation sheet. The
bid tabulation sheet is a clear and concise abstract of the bid information and becomes part of the
public record.

Bids must be received PRIOR TO THE SPECIFIED DATE AND TIME as established in the IFB.
Bids received after the specified deadline must be immediately returned unopened to the non-
responsive vendor.

5.6 AWARD

Award shall generally be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets
the requirements and criteria set forth in the IFB, unless circumstances exist that may cause the
Town Manager to recommend differently. The Town Manager shall make written recommendation
to the Mayor, who may approve or reject the recommendation

Following a bid opening and tabulation, bids become confidential documents until the Mayor
approves the recommendation from the Town Manager. Department staff shall not discuss
bids with competing bidders. Bidder questions must be referred to the Town Manager.
Department staff shall not discuss the recommendation or reasons for award or non-award with
any vendor.

5.7 BID IRREGULARITIES

The Town Manager has authority to waive bid irregularities if the item is an immaterial variation
from exact requirement of the IFB, has trivial or no effect on price, quality, quantity, delivery or
performance and waiver would not affect the relative standing of bidders or be otherwise
prejudicial.

Examples of minor bid irregularities that may be waived are:
o Failure to furnish information regarding the bidder’s qualifications to perform the contract;

e Failure to submit the required descriptive information or brochure on product(s) offered;

o Failure to return bid addendum if bidder acknowledges receipt of such on the face of bid;

10

=
N
[ep}



Failure to return bid addendum and there is no material affect on bidder’s liability under the
terms of the contract;

Failure to sign a bid, when evidence is submitted with the bid that clearly shows the bid was
the one intended by the bidder, and that failure to sign was strictly an oversight.

The above are examples only and when such minor irregularities are discovered by the Town
Manager, the bidder is requested to remedy the problem within a reasonable time by submitting
omitted data or by providing a written statement of intent.

5.8 EXEMPTIONS TO FORMAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING

The following items are exempted from the competitive bidding process if approved in writing by
the Town Manager:

Supplies, materials, or services under $50,000

Purchases made cooperatively with other units of government such as the State of Colorado
and government cooperative groups utilizing extended awards from other governmental
agencies;

Professional services, when it is deemed in the best interest of the Town;

Purchases from federal, state or other local government units;

Cleanup and disposal of hazardous materials;

Supplies, products or services, obtainable only from a single source as identified by the
procedures herein, that may be indispensable to the Town;

Although more than one source may exist, a competitive bid process cannot reasonably be
used or, if used, would result in a substantially higher cost to the Town, would otherwise
injure the Town’s financial interests or substantially impede the Town’s administrative
functions or delivery of services to the public;

Product or service that is required to maintain interchangeability or compatibility as a part of
an existing integrated system;

Product or service required to standardize or maintain standardization for the purpose of
reducing financial investment or simplify administration;

Product that is perishable;
Product that is required to match product in use, so as to produce visual harmony;
Product prescribed by a professional advisor;

Repair parts, warranty work and maintenance services when purchased from source vendor
or original manufacturer for Town-owned equipment and vehicles

5.9 WAIVER OF FORMAL COMPETITIVE BID PROCESS

The formal bid process may be waived in writing by the Town Manager and the Mayor under the
following conditions:

1

If the process would cause undue delay or hardship for a department or office of the Town;
and,

When deemed in the best interest of the Town.

Legal review of any waivers of formal competitive bid process in each instance.

11

/



SECTION 6: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

PROCEDURES

PLEASE CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER PRIOR TO STARTING ANY PROJECT
THAT MAY REQUIRE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

6.1 NEED

A Request for Proposal (RFP) is a process to be utilized in acquiring both services and
specialized products when objective bid specifications cannot be used.

The Town requires the specialized skills, knowledge, resources and services of private
contractors or consultants to complete complex studies, to develop or revise procedures, to
conduct audits, or to provide a specialized product. Examples include management consulting
services, feasibility studies, software programming, social or community programs, specialized
products such as computer equipment, scientific/research equipment, etc.

A contract for professional services or for specialized products between the Town and a
contractor is an agreement containing the Scope (Statement) of Work (SOW), goods and
services to be delivered, the timetable, and the responsibilities for the services to be provided.

Prior to issuing an RFP and prior to any contract being issued, the Town Manager must
determine that the RFP process is the appropriate process to be utilized in the purchase of the

needed product or service and that competitive sealed bidding is either not practicable or not
advantageous to the Town.

6.2 WHO CAN ISSUE AN RFP

The requesting department head shall provide a draft copy of the RFP to the Town Manager for
review and approval. The Town Manager shall issue ALL proposals and shall provide
assistance to the requesting department in making practicable use of these guidelines.

6.3 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)
The RFP process generally takes as much time as the sealed bid process. The steps are as
follows:

* Requesting department head submits draft RFP to Town Manager or Town Manager’s
designee for approval

* Draft is approved by legal counsel

* Draft is issued

* Selection Committee evaluates submittals

* Town Manager issues Letter of Intent

* Town Manager and requesting department head negotiate contract
* Legal counsel reviews contract

* Contract routed for signatures

12

=
N
o



The Town Manager must insure that all communication between the Town and any persons or
companies responding to the RFP is through him. The purpose for this requirement is to ensure
that all respondents have the same information in order to develop and submit their proposals.

Supplements to the RFP may become necessary because of inquiries or because the Town
feels additional information is necessary for further clarification. All supplements shall be issued
by the Town Manager.

6.4 PUBLIC NOTICE
A notice shall be placed in a general circulation newspaper in the Telluride/Mountain Village
area for advertisement of proposals. In certain instances, notices may be placed in newspapers
outside of the immediate area.

A public notice shall be published at least seven (7) days preceding the bid opening date. This
notice ensures all interested respondents have the opportunity to bid. All pertinent proposal
information should be contained in the notice.

6.5 BOND REQUIREMENTS

Bond requirements are as set forth in Section 5.

6.6 FORMAT/OUTLINE

The RFP format should consist, at a minimum, of the following sections:

A. ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION: Formal “boiler plate” information must be included in
the RFP. This information includes the schedule of activities; how, when and where
proposals will be accepted, material ownership, confidential/proprietary information, etc.
The procedure for answering inquiries and any pre-bid conference or site visit requirements
must be described.

B. BACKGROUND, OVERVIEW, GOALS: This includes a general explanation of the Town’s
involvement in the project, the need for the project, and the specific goals or results to be
achieved by the project.

C. SCOPE OF WORK (SOW): The most important section of the RFP is the SOW, as it is the
foundation of the development of any resulting contract. The contents of the SOW are not
only specifications, but also a well thought out, complete effort to clearly communicate all
elements of the project. The SOW is both results and procedures-oriented.

D. CONTRACTOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES, which may include, but are not limited to:

Work to be completed;

Listing of items to be furnished;
Schedule of activities;

Completion date of the project; and
Personnel to be utilized

E. TOWN’'S RESPONSIBILITIES, which should include, but are not limited to:

Interviews or conference calls as necessary
Developing an evaluation format
Determining committee involvement

Setting up contract negotiations

6.7 RECEIPT OF RFP

13
129



All proposals shall be officially received and stamped upon receipt by the Town Manager. All
proposals shall be registered and the register shall contain the name of the respondent and a
description sufficient to identify the product or service being requested. No other information,
including proposal price, shall be disclosed at the opening. The register of proposals shall
become public record after a Letter of Intent (preliminary award) has been formally issued by
the Town Manager.

Confidential/proprietary information must not be disclosed at ANY time. The Town has
established procedures regarding the submittal of confidential/proprietary information and it is
included in the procedures for the RFP.

The respondent must specifically state the elements of the proposal that are considered
confidential/proprietary. It must be separated/packaged from the rest of the proposal.

6.8 EVALUATION COMMITTEE

An Evaluation Committee may be utilized and shall be comprised of a minimum of three
gualified individuals. The names of the evaluation committee members are NOT to be revealed
until all respondents have been officially notified as to the results of the evaluation. The Town
Manager may not be a member of the Evaluation Committee.

The committee shall be comprised of knowledgeable personnel, excluding the Town Manager
representing the Town’s best interest. The committee may consist of personnel from the Town,
other agencies, other governmental entities, and from private business. The evaluation
committee members shall be unbiased, instructed to follow the established evaluation format
and be able to objectively evaluate all proposals. The Town Manager or an authorized
representative shall be a designated evaluation committee member for each RFP.

Once the evaluation committee has been established, their review of the individual proposals
must be conducted INDEPENDENTLY. The evaluation committee may elect to hold
discussions or ask for answers to specific questions from a respondent in order to clarify the
respondent’s proposal. Any discussion will be held strictly between the committee and the
respondent. Any clarifications to the proposal must be confirmed in writing by the respondent.

The committee may also elect to have the most qualified respondents give oral presentations.
The purpose of the oral presentation is to give the respondents the opportunity to further
promote or sell their proposal and to develop a better understanding of both the Town’s
requirements and the proposals. These discussions are to be held strictly between the
committee and the respondents.

Terms and price of a RFP may be negotiated following preliminary award. If the respondent
cannot meet our terms during the negotiations, the evaluation committee may elect to begin
negotiations with the next most qualified respondent.

Respondents not considered for further evaluation are notified in writing and all documents
pertaining to the RFP shall be made available for public inspection after the Letter of Intent has
been issued by the Town.

6.9 EVALUATION PROCESS
A general description of the evaluation process and general evaluation factors should be
included in the RFP:

A. An Evaluation Committee will review the merits of proposals received in accordance
with the evaluation factors stated in the RFP. The recommendation of committee will
be forwarded to the Town Manager for review and approval.

14

=
o



B. Failure of the respondent to provide any information requested in the RFP may result
in disqualification of the proposal. This responsibility is that of the respondent.

C. The sole objective of the evaluation committee will be to recommend the proposal
which is most responsive to the Town’s needs, within available monetary resources.
The specifications within the RFP represent the minimum performance necessary for
response.

D. Local Preference may be given under the following circumstances:

a. If alocal bidder submits a bid for goods or services, not of inferior
quality to those offered by non-local bidders, primary preferences
shall be given to a local bidder in accordance with the policies set
forth herein.

b. Itis the intent of the Town to provide local bidders, as defined herein,
with an advantage in the procurement of goods and services, so that
the funds received from such contract will be spent by the employees
of the local bidders within the Town and surrounding area.

c. A bidder is considered local if it:

a. Has maintained a business office, either leased or owned
within San Miguel County for a minimum of six (6) months
prior to solicitation; and

b. Will use San Miguel Montrose County, Ouray County, or
Dolores County residents for at least fifty percent (50%) of
the total delivery of goods or services (a County resident is
defined as maintaining a primary residence within the
Counties boundaries); and

c. Uses a fleet for the job comprised of no less than fifty
percent (50%) of San Miguel, Montrose County, Dolores
County or Ouray County licensed vehicles.

d. Inthe event that the Town determines that a submitted bid is
from a responsible and responsive bidder and that the
business submitting the bid meets the Town definition of a
local bidder, such business shall be awarded the contract if
its bid is within five percent (10%) of, but, in any event no
more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) higher than the
lowest responsible bidder which does not meet the Town'’s
definition of a local bidder.

6.10 LETTER OF INTENT

The Town Manager will issue a Letter of Intent to the successful respondent. The Town will
also notify all unsuccessful respondents, in writing, as to the outcome of the evaluation process.
The evaluation factors, points, evaluation committee member names, and completed evaluation
summary and recommendation report will be made available to all interested parties after the
Letter of Intent has been issued by the Town.

The Town Manager is the official custodians of ALL RFP documents and is, therefore, the
SOLE point of contact for inspection and/or copying of any such documents.

Following the Letter of Intent to the successful respondent, the RFP documents will become part
of the public record and open to public inspection.

In the event that no award is made or the RFP is canceled, all proposals received must remain
confidential and not open for public inspection. The purpose is to not allow any future potential

15
131



respondents an opportunity to review other respondents’ proposals and gain an advantage
when submitting future proposals.

6.11 TOWN RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLETION

The employment of an outside contractor or consultant does not in any way lessen the
responsibility of the Town for achieving the goals of the project, for the way it is carried out, or
for its ultimate results. A project is always a joint undertaking. Getting good results, therefore,
demands a clear definition of the role played by Town personnel in working with the contractor
toward achieving the objectives of the project.

The Town Manager has copies of the Evaluation Criteria Worksheets, Activity Checklist (for
requesting department), Committee Rules and Affidavit.

Refer to Section 5 of the Procurement Manual for “Bid Irregularities, Exemptions to
Competitive Bidding and Waiver of Formal Competitive Bid Process” information.

16

=
N




SECTION 7: CONTRACTS

7.1 GENERAL

A contract shall mean any agreement enforceable by law between the Town and one or more
outside parties, regardless of form or title, for the procurement of materials, services or
construction. A contract must include offer and acceptance by competent parties and the
furnishing of some good or service for an agreed monetary consideration to be effective.

7.2 TYPES OF CONTRACTS

The Town uses several types of contracts as defined by the following:

A.

Term Contract: This type establishes a source of supply for materials or service for a
specified period of time.

Blanket Agreement: This type establishes the commitment of a vendor to furnish the Town’s
requirements for materials or service on an as-needed basis; i.e. blanket purchase order.

. Requirements Contract: This type is for an indefinite quantity, but the Town is obligated to

order and the vendor is obligated to supply all of the Town’s requirements for a specified
price during a specified period.

State Contract: The Town may purchase from State Contracts and Price Agreements under
a permissive State law CRS 24-110-101 et. seq. These Contracts are entered into by the
State of Colorado. If these agreements have a clause acknowledged by the contractor, they
may be used by other political jurisdictions, such as the Town. When it is in the best interest
of the Town and when available, the Town may forego the bid process and purchase directly
from the State awarded vendors list.

Cooperative Purchase Contract: These contracts are created by a voluntary group of
governmental units. If required by the bid documents or if the contractors agree, they may
be used by other political jurisdictions, such as the Town. When in the best interest of the
Town, the Town Manager has authority to “piggyback” such agreements for the acquisition
of supplies and services without going through the formal bid/proposal process. Final
authorization shall adhere to Section 2.

Multi-Year Contract: A contract for supplies or services may be entered into for a period of
time deemed to be in the best interest of the Town if the term of the contract and conditions
of renewal or extension are included in the solicitation and if funds are available for the first
year at the time of contracting. Payment and performance obligations for succeeding fiscal
years shall be subject to availability and appropriation of funds. When funds are not
appropriated or otherwise made available to support the continuation of performance in a
subsequent fiscal year, the contract shall be canceled and the Contractor may be
reimbursed for the reasonable value of any non-recurring costs incurred but not amortized in
the price of the supplies or services delivered under the contract.

Annual service and product contracts may be renewed or extended by the Department Head up
to four (4) times based on satisfactory performance and price stability and with Town Manager
approval.

17

133




7.3 CONTRACT APPROVAL

The Town Manager and, occasionally, department heads are authorized to sign contracts which
bind the Town for the procurement of goods, services, insurance or construction. The following
provisions shall apply for contract approval:

e All written contracts are subject to approval by the attorney for the Town;

e For contracts regarding an expenditure that is not specifically appropriated in the budget,
the Mayor’s signature shall be required;

e Any transaction involving the conveyance of real estate shall require the signature of the
Mayor, through formal Town Council approval; and

e Contracts entered into using grant funds may require the signature of the Mayor or the
Town Manager.

7.4 ADMINISTRATION

The Town Manager or his / her designee and the requesting department head shall
administer the contract. They shall be responsible for the following activities:

Inspecting and accepting contractor performance;

Communicating Town requirements to contractors;

Evaluating contractor performance;

Notifying the Mayor of any disputes, failure to perform or other problems with contractors;
Documenting all activities of the contract;

Issuing PO’s, processing payments and contract close-out documents;

Maintaining the file of the contract;

Reviewing and approving all requests for changes in delivery, change orders or changed
conditions, price or specification before any action is taken by the department head or
contractor;

e |ssuing notices, letters and contract default/termination notices to contractors; and

e Maintaining records of vendor performance.

7.5 CONTRACTS INVOLVING GRANT FUNDING

When any State or Federal grant funds are used for an approved Mountain Village Project,
the procurement guidelines issued by that funding agency will govern the procurement
process. If there are no procurement guidelines issued by that funding agency, then all
procurement guidelines will fall back on the approved procedures as stated in the Mountain
Village Procurement Manual.

Because project activities performed by a third party contractor must comply with Federal
requirements, the recipient agrees to include appropriate clauses in each third party contract
stating the third party contractor’s responsibilities under Federal law, regulation, or derivative,
including any necessary provisions requiring the third party contractor to extend applicable
requirements to its subcontractors to the lowest tier necessary.

18

H
s



SECTION 8: PURCHASING AND PAYMENT

APPROVALS

8.1 PLANNING & FORECASTING

Anticipating a department’'s needs well in advance of actual purchasing enables each
department head to research and procure those items based on best value for best quality.
There should be little or no need for “impulse and/or emergency” purchases, which are always
more expensive.

Adherence to the policies set forth herein are required for all purchases by the Town and Town
employees. All purchases requiring the Towm Manager and or Mayor's approval must be
approved prior to making such a purchase.

Required delivery dates on goods and services vary drastically and purchasing schedules
should be prepared accordingly. Unnecessary work delays may be created if order requests
are not presented in a timely manner.

TThis procurement manual is designed to control, expedite and confirm purchases for the Town.
The Town is not responsible for payment of purchases made by employees without the required
approval as set forth herein.

8.2 VENDOR APPROVAL

Prior to ordering any good or service from a vendor, such vendor must be an approved vendor
of the Town. In order to be an approved vendor, the vendor's name, address, phone number,
email address and primary contact person must be submitted by a department director to the
Finance Department for approval. The Finance Department shall verify that the vendor is a
legitimate business entity or sole proprietor and identify any potential conflicts of interest that
may exist with such vendor before approving such submitted vendor.

Vendors may be removed from the approved vendor list of the Town for cause. Cause shall
include, but not be limited to failure to perform a previous contract, or purchase according to the
terms of such contract or purchase of the Town. Town staff shall inform vendors that are
removed from the approved vendor list of such decision.

8.3 PAYMENT APPROVAL PROCESS

In order for the finance department to process payment of all Town purchases, such purchases
shall be made in accordance to the terms set forth herein and shall fill out the Payment Approval
Form (Appendix Form G). The information to be included in the Payment Approval Form shall
include:

a. The appropriate signatures relative to the level of purchase as demonstrated by the
payment approval matrix set forth herein.

b. Obtaining legal review if required herein.

A description of the project and or contract for which payment is requested

Description of full or partial payment and if partial what the percentage of the total

oo

19

=
w
a1



e.

The type of backup documentation required by the Procurement Manual shall be
attached to the Payment Approval Form (ie. Contract resulting from IFB or RFP, sole
source justification, waiver form, request for quote form, change order form)

For all purchases involving construction work, such work shall be permitted and
inspected, by the Town’s Building Department, for completion of the work for which
payment is requested and the Building Department shall sign the applicable portion
of the Payment Approval Form certifying that such work has been completed and
inspected, prior to the Finance Department approving payment.

The Finance Department shall be responsible for verifying that the terms of the procurement
manual have been followed and that the Department submitting the Payment Approval Form
has completed the required portion of the form by completing the Finance Department portion of
the Payment Approval Form with the following information:

a.

b.

~® Qo

Certifying that the required contract, quote, or applicable waiver form (sole source)
is attached to the Payment Approval Form

Verifying that the payment request/invoice conforms to the contractual terms and
bid/quote documentation

Certifying that the payment request conforms to budget authority

Certifying that the payment request is accurate for rates and calculations

Providing comments for allowing for payment or disallowing payment if any

Certifying that the appropriate signature of either the Department Head or Town
Manger is on the Payment Approval form.

8.4 RECEIVING PROCEDURE

The requisitioning department will receive all materials and inventory and inspect the material
for correct quantity and acceptable condition. Appropriate documentation includes the packing
slip which should be marked and signed by an authorized employee to indicate verification of

goods.

=
[ep}

20



SECTION 9: SURPLUS PROPERTY

9.1 SURPLUS STOCK

Department heads shall have authority to transfer or “re-cycle” surplus materials, supplies and
equipment between departments as needed. Town owned personal property may be disposed
of when no longer useful by destruction, disposal, trade, sale, auction or by soliciting bids, as
appropriately determined by the Town Manager.

9.2 METHODS OF DISPOSAL

Equipment that is no longer useful to the Town and is being disposed of (excess, obsolete or
surplus), with an original purchase cost of $500 or more, shall be reported to the Finance
Department in order to update the department’s Fixed Asset Account.

The following methods of disposition may be used for departmental surplus items.

(a) Transfer: The best method of disposition is transferring to another department. Both the
transferring and receiving departments’ inventory records must be updated to document the
disposition of such item.

(b) Sale: There are various methods of selling excess property and surplus items as outlined
below:

i. Auction: The Town may auction to sell items to the highest bidder at advertised
public auctions.

ii. Sealed Bids: The Finance Department may offer surplus items for purchase by
sealed bid. The items shall be advertised locally, by posting at the Town offices, by
internet or by publishing in a local newspaper.

iii. Scrap: Some items are of no use but may have a residual value. Department heads
may arrange for the sale of scrap items with the money returned to the Town’s
general fund.

iv. Posted Prices: When there is no regular market and demand is erratic, an item may
be marked with a pre-established price and sold to the public on a first-come basis.

(c) Trade-in: The Town Manager may determine that it is advantageous to the Town to seek
bids on replacement items with the bidders offering trade allowance and no trade allowance
pricing. Award may be made in the manner that is most advantageous to the Town.

(d) Cannibalization: Disassembling an item to use its components for repair or maintenance of
a similar item is authorized only if cannibalization has more value and benefit than disposal
or trade-in of the item. The Town Manager must grant approval prior to cannibalizing an
item.

(e) Donation: Only the Mayor may dispose of an item by donation to a qualifying entity if the
item has a value in excess of $5,000. Items donated with a value of less than $5,000 may
be approved by the Town Manager.

21

H
\l



() Hazardous Materials: There are strict federal and state laws regarding the disposal of
hazardous materials. Departments generating hazardous materials shall follow posted
guidelines for the proper disposal of these materials.

8.3 SALES TO EMPLOYEES

To avoid any appearance of impropriety in the disposition program, employees of the Town may
only purchase Town owned property when the sale is to the highest bidder at a public auction or
by sealed bid.

8.4 GRANT FUNDED EQUIPMENT

Equipment purchased with State or Federal grant funds shall be disposed of by following
the provisions of the grant, if any. It is the responsibility of the disposing department to
notify the Finance Department if grant provisions for disposal need to be followed. If there
are no special provisions for disposal, the requirements of this Section shall apply.

22

=
w
o



SECTION 10: GLOSSARY OF PROCUREMENT TERMS

The Glossary of public procurement terms is offered as a communication tool to avoid
misinterpretation of text. Precision and consistency in public procurement documents are
necessary to avoid protests, disputes and litigation. The glossary seeks primarily to present
meanings for purchasing purposes, not legally or literally accurate definitions.

Addendum - An addition or supplement to a document such as items or information added to a
procurement document.

Advertise - To make a public announcement or legal notice of forthcoming solicitation with the
aim of increasing the response and enlarging the competition; often required by law.

Agreement - The bargain of the parties in fact as found in their language or by implication from
the other circumstances, including course of dealing, usage of trade or course of performance.

All Or None Bid - A bid submitted for a number of different items, services, etc., in which the
bidder states it will not accept a partial award, but will accept only an award for all the items,
services, etc., included in the Invitation for Bids. Such bids are acceptable only if provided for in
the invitation or if the bidder quoted an individual price for each of the items, services, etc., as
listed and is the low bidder on each item.

Alternate Bid - A bid submitted in knowing variance from the specifications, terms, conditions or
provisions of the solicitation. Such a bid is acceptable only when the variance is deemed
immaterial.

Amendment - A revision or change to a document, often used to correct a solicitation. Compare
with modification, a term generally used with respect to changes to an existing contract.

As Is - A term indicating that goods offered for sale are without warranty or guarantee and that the
purchaser takes the goods at his or her own risk without recourse against the seller for the
condition or performance of the goods.

Authority - The right to perform certain acts or prescribe rules governing the conduct of others.

Award - The acceptance of a bid or proposal; the presentation of a purchase agreement or
contract to a bidder.

Best Interests of the Town - The rationale granting a procurement official discretion in taking
action most advantageous to the jurisdiction when it is impossible to delineate adequately a
specific response by law or regulation. Case law affirms this discretion.

Best Value - An assessment of the return, which can be achieved, based on the total life cycle
cost of the item; can include an assessment of the functionality of the item; can use cost/benefit
analysis to define the best combinations of quality, services, time, and cost considerations over
the useful life of the acquired item.

Bid - The executed document submitted by a bidder in response to an Invitation for Bid, a
Request for Quotation or a multi-step bidding procedure.

23
139



Bid Bond - An insurance agreement in which a third party agrees to be liable to pay a certain
amount of money in the event that a specific bidder, if the bid is accepted, fails to accept the
contract as bid.

Bid Opening - The formal process through which bids are opened, usually in the presence of one
or more witnesses, and the contents revealed for the first time to the jurisdiction, other bidders and
the public.

Bid Tabulation - A recording of bidders and abstracts of their bids listing items offered, prices,
deliveries, etc., in response to a specific solicitation. Made for purposes of comparison and record
keeping and is part of the bid’'s public record.

Bidder - Any person submitting a competitive bid in response to a solicitation.

Bidders List - A list maintained by the procurement office setting out the names and addresses of
suppliers of various goods and services from who bids, proposals and quotations could be
solicited. This is also known as "Vendors List".

Blanket Order (purchase) - A contract under which a contractor, vendor or supplier agrees to
provide goods or services to a purchaser on a demand basis. The contract generally establishes
prices, terms, conditions and the period covered, although no quantities are specified.

Brand Name - A name that serves to identify a product of a particular manufacturer or a trade
name.

Change Order - A written order signed by authorized Town personnel, directing the contractor or
vendor/supplier to make changes to the contract; a modification or addition to the purchase order.

Collusion - A secret agreement or cooperation between two or more persons to accomplish a
fraudulent, deceitful or unlawful purpose.

Competitive Negotiation - A method of contracting for goods and services, whereby proposals
are solicited from qualified suppliers, following submission of which changes in proposals and
prices are allowed and the offer deemed by the awarding authority to be most advantageous, in
terms of criteria as designated in the Request for Proposal, is accepted.

Competitive Sealed Bidding - The submission of prices by individuals or firms competing for a
contract, privilege, or right to supply merchandise or services, based solely on the response to the
criteria set forth in the Invitation For Bid and does not include discussions or negotiations with the
bidders. Competitive sealed bidding is the preferred method of source selection in public
procurement.

Competitive Sealed Proposal - A method of contracting for goods and services whereby
proposals are solicited from qualified suppliers. Following submission of such, discussions or
negotiations may be conducted and changes in proposals and prices are allowed and the offer
deemed by the awarding authority to be most advantageous, in terms of criteria designated in the
Request for Proposal, is accepted.

Conflict of Interest - A situation where the personal interests of a contractor, public official or
classified employee are in actual or potential conflict in which a person may gain from (or holds
interest in) a company doing business with his employer and is at odds with the best interests of
the jurisdiction.

Contract - A deliberate oral or written agreement, enforceable by law, between two or more
competent persons to perform or not to perform a specific act or acts.

24
140



Contract Modification - Any written alteration to specifications, delivery point, rate of delivery,
period of performance, price, quality or other provisions of any contract accomplished by mutual
action of the parties to the contract.

Debarment - The exclusion of a person or company from participating in a procurement activity
for an extended period of time, as specified by law, because of previous illegal or irresponsible
action.

Default - Failure by a party to a contract to comply with contractual requirements; contractor
failure to perform.

Disposition - Transferring, trading-in, selling or destroying goods that are excess property,
surplus property or scrap.

Emergency Purchase - A purchase made to alleviate a situation in which there is a threat to
health, welfare or safety under certain conditions defined as an emergency by the jurisdiction that
does not allow time for normal, competitive purchasing procedures.

Escalation Clause - A contract provision which permits the adjustment of contract prices by a
given amount or percentage if certain specified contingencies occur, such as changes in the
contractor’s raw material or labor costs.

Ethics - The principles of conduct governing the behavior of an individual or a profession

Evaluation of Bid - The process of examining a bid after opening to determine the bidder's
responsibility, responsiveness to requirements and to ascertain other characteristics of the bid
that relate to determination of the successful bidder.

Formal Bid or Offer - A bid that must be submitted in a sealed envelope and in conformance with
a prescribed format, to be opened at a specified time.

Identical Bid - A bid that is the same in all salient respects with another bid.

Ineligible Bidder - A supplier or prospective supplier who, by reason of financial instability,
unsatisfactory reputation, poor history of performance, or other deficiency, does not meet the
qualifications for placement on the vendors' list or for award.

Informal Bid - An unsealed competitive offer conveyed by letter, telephone, telegram, or other
means and under conditions different from those required for formal bidding (see Request for
Quote).

Invitation For Bid - A formal request to prospective vendors soliciting bids. Invitation for Bid
contains, or incorporates by reference, the specifications or scope of work and all contractual
terms and conditions. This is the customary method used by state and local governments for the
purchase of equipment, materials, supplies and construction.

Legal Notice - Notice of a proposed purchase as required by law. Depending upon the legal
requirement, notice may be satisfied by posting an announcement of the purchase in a public
place, notification of the appropriate bidders from the bidders’ list, formal advertisement in a
newspaper or a combination of these methods.

Local Preference - An advantage in consideration for award of a contract granted to a bidder by
reason of the bidder's residence, business location, origin of product offered, or other reason.

Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder - Originally, the bidder submitting the lowest initial
price and capable of performing the proposed contract. For clarity and accuracy, the

25
141



recommended provision for determining award is the "responsive and responsible bidder whose
bid is most economical for the purpose intended, according to criteria set forth in the solicitation".

Modification - Any formal revision of the terms of a contract.

Multiple Award - The award of contracts to two or more bidders for the same or essentially
similar items. Appropriate only in situations where the award of a single contract would be
impossible or impractical and awards are limited to the least number of suppliers necessary for a
workable contract.

Multi-Step Competitive Bidding - A competitive process calling for separate submissions of a
technical proposal (which may be negotiated) as the first step or steps of the process followed by
a call for non-negotiable competitive-price bid as the final step.

Non-Responsive Bid - A bid that does not conform to the essential requirements of the Invitation
for Bid,;

Open-Market Purchase - A purchase, usually of a limited monetary amount, from any available
source (direct purchase).

Option to Renew - A contract clause that allows a party to elect to reinstate the contract for an
additional term; in public procurement, where competitive bidding is required; exercise of the
option must rest solely with the purchaser. Specific provision for the renewal option must be
incorporated into the solicitation and the contract.

Payment Bond - A bond which assures payments, as required by law, to all persons supplying
labor or material for the completion of work under the contact.

Penalty Clause - A clause in a contract specifying the sum of money to be paid if the contractor
defaults on the terms of the contract, particularly in respect to time.

Performance Bond - A contract of guaranty executed subsequent to award by a successful
bidder to protect the Town from loss due to contractor inability to complete the contract as agreed.

Professional Services - Services rendered by members of a recognized profession or
possessing a special skill. Such services are generally acquired to obtain information, advice,
training or direct assistance (architectural, engineering)

Qualified Bidder - A bidder determined by the government to meet standards of business
competence, reputation, financial ability, and product quality for placement on a list of prospective
bidders.

Request For Information - The document used in informal, non-competitive solicitation of
information, data, comments, or reactions from possible suppliers preceding the issuance of a
Request for Proposals or a multi-step bidding procedure.

Request For Proposal (RFP) - All documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference,
used for soliciting formal competitive proposals. The RFP procedure permits negotiation of
proposals and prices as distinguished from competitive bidding and an Invitation for Bid.

Request For Quote (RFQ) - An informal solicitation or request for information, where oral or
written quotes are obtained from vendors, without formal advertising or receipt of sealed bids.
Used only where statutes do not require formal sealed bids such as small or emergency
purchases, but price competition is desired.

26
142



Responsible Bidder or Offeror - A person who has the capability in all respects to perform in full
the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good-faith performance.

Responsive Bidder - A person who has submitted a bid that conforms in all material respects to
the Invitation for Bid.

Sealed Bid - A bid that has been submitted in a sealed envelope to prevent its contents being
revealed or known before the deadline for the submission of all bids; usually required by law or
rule on major procurements, to ensure fair competition.

Service Contract - A contract that calls for a contractor's time and effort rather than for a concrete
end product. The term as defined here does not include employment agreements or collective
bargaining agreements.

Services - The furnishing of labor, time, or effort by a contractor, not involving the delivery of a
specific end product other than reports that are merely incidental to the required performance.
This term does not include employment/collective bargaining agreements.

Sole-Source Procurement - An award for a commodity or service to the only known capable
supplier, occasioned by the unique nature of the requirement, the supplier, or market conditions.
The sole supplier possesses the unique and singularly available capability to meet the technical
gualifications, the ability to deliver at a particular time or services from a public utility.

Solicitation - The process of notifying prospective bidders or offerors that the Town wishes to
receive bids for furnishing goods or services. The process may consist of public advertising,
mailing Invitations for Bids or Requests for Proposals, posting notices, telephone or telegraph
messages to prospective bidders or all of these.

Statement (Scope) Of Work - The product of organizational analysis, activity analysis, data
gathering, performance analysis and cost analysis identifying the specifics that address the need
of the using agency and how that need may be met.

Term Contracting - A technique by which a source of supply is established for a specific period
of time. Term contracts characteristically are established through competitive sealed bidding and
usually are based on indefinite quantities to be ordered "as needed", although such contracts can
specify definite quantities with deliveries extended over the contract period.

Waiver of Bid - A process authorized by law or rule whereby a government procurement office
may procure items without competitive bidding procedures because of unique circumstances
related to a particular need or procurement.

In writing — Any requirement that an approval , bid or other form be in writing shall include email
as an approved “in writing” approval.

27

=
D
w



SECTION 11: APPENDICES

Forms A through F are included for your reference. The Town Manager and the Finance
Department are available to answer any questions and to assist in the preparation and
usage of these forms.

FORM A: Sole Source Justification

FORM B: Request For Quote (two-sided form)

FORM C: Request for Proposal

FORM D: Offeror Requirements

FORM E: Request for Change Order

FORM F: Request for Proposal - Schedule of Activities

FORM G: Payment Approval Form

28



This 1s a guide for fair and equitable public
purchasing procedures.
Let 1t be your tool for administering an effective,
efficient and economical
procurement process for the Town

29
145



FORM A

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE

SOLE SOURCE WAIVER REQUEST

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: DATE:
REQUESTED BY: BID NO.
VENDOR NAME: COST:

JUSTIFICATION

(INITIAL ALL ENTRIES THAT APPLY TO REQUEST)

PRODUCT OR SERVICE DESCRIPTION:

=

Vendor is the original equipment manufacturer and there are no regional distributors.
The product, equipment or service requested is clearly superior functionally to all other
similar Products, equipment or service from another manufacturer or vendor.

The over-riding consideration for purchase is compatibility or conformity with Town -
owned equipment in which non-conformance would require the expenditure of additional
funds.

No other equipment is available that shall meet the specialized needs of the department
or perform the intended function.

Detailed justification is available which establishes beyond doubt that the vendor is the
only source available to provide the item or service required.

Detailed justification is available which proves it is economically advantageous to use
the product, equipment or service.

| recommend that competitive procurement procedures be waived and the product or service described herein be
purchased as a sole source.

DEPARTMENT AUTHORIZATION:

Authorized Signature Title Date

PURCHASING APPROVAL.:

Authorized Signature Title Date

FINAL AUTHORIZATION:  Mayor Approval Required ($20,000+) YES / NO

=
D
[ep}

Town Manager Approval Required (up to $20,000) YES / NO
Legal Review Required on all Waivers YES / NO

Attach detailed justification documentation and forward to Purchasing Agent

30



FORM B

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE

455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A Mountain Village, CO 81435
(970) 728-8000 FAX (970) 728-4342
REQUEST FOR QUOTE
BID NO. CLOSING DATE:
TIME:

Town of Mountain Village is requesting quotes on the items listed below. Please sign the Offer and Acceptance. The Town
of Mountain Village is tax exempt so do not include taxes in your quote.

Item Quantity Description Unit Price Total Amount
The under
COMPANY ADDRESS
TELEPHONE NO. FAX NO.
SIGNATURE: PRINT NAME

PURCHASING USE ONLY

AWARD TO ACCEPTANCE DATE ITEMS

PURCHASE ORDER NO DELIVERY ARO APPROVED BY

Page 1 of 2

REQUEST FOR QUOTE
CERTIFICAT1ON
31

H
\l



METHOD OF SOLICITATION: (Check one)

Phone FAX

Informal Bid (Attach information)

DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR:
QTY DESCRIPTION #l PRICE #2 PRICE #3 PRICE
TOTALS $$3$
Page 2 of 2

=
D
(0]

32




REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL OUTLINE

FORM C

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: DATE:

PROJECT NAME:

Is a Statement of Qualification required with Request for Proposal? Yes No

(Statement of purpose, mission, or describe why project or service is necessary)

STATEMENT OF WORK OR SCOPE OF WORK

Requires clear statement of the work tasks to be completed by Offeror, a list of
deliverables to be furnished and a schedule of activities to be met. Be as definitive as
possible to enable contractor/professional to prepare Technical Offer. Define responsibilities,
time schedule, and evaluation team. Outline project, list tasks/services to be performed Le.
Provide project plan, meet with OR, prepare project schedule (specify timelines), provide project
analysis, specify services to be provided. General specifications may be provided in SOW.

SECTION I: TECHNICAL OFFER

The Offeror will specify each task of the Statement of Work above and explain an approach to
the task with specific steps for accomplishment.

SECTION II: QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE

(Check those iambs you require in the RFP and add other information)

Previous experience

1. List of past projects, similar in nature

2. Provide pictures and/or samples, if possible

3. Resumes of key personnel and qualifications of significant (consultants and/or
specialists)

4, Proof of required insurance

5. References of completed projects, completion date, company, contact
person, phone number

6. Additional:

SECTION 111: COST PROPOSAL

(Check those items you require in RFP and add other information)
Proposed fee schedule for completed project

Payment based on
Hourly rates for project personnel and rates for any expenses
Guaranteed maximum fee

Additional:

arwpdpE

33

=
©



FORM D

OFFEROR REQUIREMENTS

(INFORMATION REQUIRED FROM OFFERORS AS STATED IN REQUEST FOR
PROPOSAL)

1. SCOPE OF WORK Proposals must detail the Offeror’s understanding of and
approach to the project describer in the Scope of Work. Offeror shall address how each
task of the Scope of Work and/or Technical Offer will be accomplished. Identify any
work performed by subcontractors.

PROJECT TASKS:

2. EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS List all relevant work experience and
gualifications related to the proposed studies. Identify previous or on-going studies that
your firm is involved with that are related to this study. Identify all individuals to be
assigned to this project. Provide resumes on each individual listing qualifications and
relevant expertise and work experience related to the study. Also, this information will
be provided for all subcontractors.

OTHER:

3. COST STAFFING PROPOSAL Provide a cost estimate for all elements of the
study, including a firm price for each task in the Scope of Work and staffing. These
estimates shall support all costs as specified in the proposal. The Offeror shall provide
this information in the specified format in submitting their proposal. No “best and final
offer” will be requested or considered prior to proposal evaluation.

OTHER INFORMATION:

4. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES

All proposals shall include a schedule as to the time frame for conducting the project.
List the tasks and their scheduled completion as appropriate to the Scope of Work.

DEPARTMENT’'S TENTATIVE SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS:

ADDITIONS:

DEPARTMENT: DATE: NAME:

34

=
o



FORM E

REQUEST FOR CHANGE ORDER

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: REQUEST DATE:

PROJECT NAME/LOCATION:

BID NO. CHANGE ORDER # OF

ADDITION TO CONTRACT: YES___ NO___ MODIFICATION TO BID: YES NO___

REASON FOR CHANGE ORDER (attach cost and pricing information, contractor hender “in-field”

requests/statements and other information supporting request. Return to Purchasing Department)

ACCEPTANCE

| certify that unencumbered funds are available in Account No . and that the
change order is proper and in the best interest of the Town.

Name Title
MAYOR APPROVAL (OVER $20,000) YES | NO  TOWN MANAGER APPROVAL (UP TO $20000) YES /NO

FORM F

35
151



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

The following checklist for the RFP process should be utilized by all Town representatives.
Copies of the Schedule of Activities will be given to the Town representative each time the RFP
process is used.

=
N

1.

2.

Nooksw

10.
11.

12.
13.
14,
15.
16.

17.
18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Department Head contacts the Town Manager or their designee to obtain information
regarding the RFP process.

Town Manager and Department Head discuss process and determine if RFP process is
appropriate. Final determination is made by the Town Manager / Mayor

Department Head prepares and submits a draft copy of the RFP to the Town Manager
Town Manager reviews draft of RFP.

Town Manager and Department Head discuss and modify the draft RFP.

Legal counsel reviews, modifies and approves RFP.

Town Manager and Department Head discuss advantages/disadvantages of a pre-
proposal conference where potential offerors can obtain answers to their inquiries.
Department Head sets bid opening date and time.

Department Head compiles bid list. Town Manager approves.

Department Head and Town Manager discuss advertisement of RFP

Department Head and Town Manager set up Evaluation Committee according to the
requirements of Section 6.

Town Manager’s Office assigns official RFP bid number and logs RFP in Bid Book.
Department Head submits RFP to Bidders on bid list

Town Manager’s Office advertises RFP, if applicable.

Town Manager's Office receives and time stamps RFP packets when they are
submitted.

Town Manager’s Office and Department Head open/record proposals at established
date, time and location.

Town Manager reviews proposals in order to determine if they were submitted properly.
Town Manager distributes evaluation documents to the Evaluation Committee, along
with instructions regarding the evaluation process as described in Exhibit 6.
Evaluation Committee meets and each member individually evaluates the RFP's and
then discusses proposals and adjusts recommendations as necessary. NO
DISCUSSION OCCURS EACH MEMBER HAS REVIEWED EACH RFP SUBMITTAL
INDIVIDUALLY.

Town Manager reviews and approves/disapproves recommendation of Evaluation
Committee and makes recommendation to Mayor for approval.

Once approved by Mayor, Town Manager’s Office notifies all offerors, in writing, of the
results and recommendation.

Town Manager issues a “Notice of Intent to Make an Award” letter to the apparent
successful offeror.

. Unsuccessful offerors are allowed seven (7) working days to protest/appeal the award.
. Following above time period, Evaluation Committee and successful offeror negotiate and

develop a written final contract in accordance with the terms of the RFP, which is
approved by Town Manager and legal counsel.

. Town receives insurance and bonding requirements.

. Approved contract is routed and signed by appropriate Town agencies.

. Department Head monitors and evaluates contractor’s performance.

. Department Head and Town Manager approve and submit progress payments on

project.

. Town Manager’s Office submits advertisement for Final Payment Notice upon approval

of project inspection.

. Contractor receives final payment and project is complete.

36



=
o1
w

January 21st, 2016 Agenda Item 11a

Business and Government Activity Report
For the month ending: December 31st
2015 2014 Variance
Activity | MONTH | YTD MONTH | YTD Variance | Variance %
Cable/Internet
# Residential & Bulk Basic Cable 924 10 1.1%
# Premium Channel Residential & Bulk Subscribers 482 (7) -1.4%
# Digital Subscribers 280 (32) -10.3%
# Internet Subscribers 1,693 107 6.7%
Average # Phone Subscribers 92 (5) -5.2%
Village Court Apartments
Occupancy Rate % 99.55% 99.36% 99.55% 99.53% -0.17% -0.2%
# Vacated Units 3 (96) -75.6%
# Work Orders Completed 37 3 0.7%
# on Waiting List 76 (56) -42.4%
Public Works
Service Calls 511 4,945 484 4,922 23 0.5%
Snow Fall Inches 83 249 53 305 (56) -18.4%
Snow Removal - Streets & Prkg Lots Hours 1,054 3,424 822 3,583 (159) -4.4%
Roadway Maintenance Hours 6 2,775 10 3,091 (316) -10.2%
Water Billed Consumption Gal.| 52,377,000 | 217,764,000 || 38,895,000 | 185,777,000 || 31,987,000 17.2%
Sewage Treatment Gal.| 7,772,000 84,660,000 7,429,000 85,202,000 (542,000) -0.6%
Child Development Fund
# Infants & Toddlers Actual Occupancy 18.50 229.36 18.38 220.27 9.09 4.1%
# Preschoolers Actual Occupancy 14.62 177.11 15.46 166.81 10.30 6.2%
Transportation and Parking
GPG (noon snapshot) 7,257 31,441 2,661 23,494 7,947 33.8%
GPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 52.6% 18.7% 19.3% 14.0% 4.7% 33.6%
HPG (noon snapshot) 2,427 14,213 2,203 14,329 (116) -0.8%
HPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 76.3% 36.7% 69.3% 37.0% -0.3% -0.8%
Total Parking (noon snapshot) 15,059 85,739 10,609 78,620 7,119 9.1%
Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 62.0% 29.0% 43.7% 26.6% 2.4% 9.0%
Paid Parking Revenues $43,174 $354,714 $39,888 $343,346 $11,368 3.3%
Bus Routes # of Passengers 86 43,490 249 40,003 3,487 8.7%
Employee Shuttle # of Passengers 1,706 18,752 1,829 16,780 1,972 11.8%
Employee Shuttle Utilization Rate % 52.9% 53.6% 59.5% 62.0% -8.40% -13.5%
Inbound (Vehicle) Traffic (Entrance) # of Cars 70,184 751,443 67,905 713,792 37,651 5.3%
Human Resources
T year Rownd el Comt w0 —so__J %
Seions Head Comt (7T & 1) PN 11111 111111 YT
NN 11111111 TN 11111
EPNNION 1111 N 111111 1
ECN 111111 1111
Gondola Overtime Paid Hours 324 2519 291 2530 (11) -0.4%
Other Employee Overtime Paid 75 1099 66 787 312 39.6%
#New Hires ~ Total New Hires 13 79 5 76 3 3.9%
# Terminations 8 75 3 66 9 13.6%
# Workmen Comp Claims 1 17 0 17 0 0.0%
Workmen Comp Claims Costs $0 $16,669 $0 $97,776 ($81,107) -83.0%
Marketing & Business Development
Total Users/Total Sessions 169/251 11,081/16,057( 1,163/1,349 | 6,923/9,563 || 4,158/6,494 60%/67%
Town Hosted Meetings 5 55 4 60 (5) -8.3%
Email Correspondence Sent 7 1mz2 1 85 27 31.8%
i e
Wifi Subscribers 9,001 n/a i #VALUE! #VALUE!
Press Releases Sent 2 P26 T 2 83%
Gondola and RETA Current RETA revenues are unaudited
Gondola # of Passengers 295,004 2,617,642 274,432 2,407,193 210,449 8.7%
Chondola # of Passengers 30,940 122,086 31,512 118,232 3,854 3.3%
RETA fees collected by TMVOA $781,193 $5,416,271 $179,491 $6,281,818 (8865,547) -13.8%




January 21st, 2016 Agenda Item 11a

H
N

2015 2014 Variance
Activity MONTH YTD MONTH YTD Variance ! Variance %
Police
Calls for Service # 488 5,468 433 3,959 1,509 38.1%
Investigations # 29 253 22 188 65 34.6%
Alarms # 20 267 0 128 139 108.6%
Arrests # 5 26 3 15 11 73.3%
Traffic Contacts # 11 210 2 146 64 43.8%
Traffic Tickets Written # 3 42 0 24 18 75.0%
Parking Tickets Written # 473 3,840 487 2,488 1,352 54.3%
Administrative Dismissals # 6 122 28 207 (85) -41.1%
Building/Planning
Community Development Revenues $21,313 $1,060,822 $69,519 $767,349 $293,473 38.2%
# Permits Issued 2 83 14 93 (10) -10.8%
Valuation of Building Permits Issued $145,375 $28,594,840 || $2,077,537 | $15,276,708 |[ $13,318,132 87.2%
# Inspections Completed 164 2,393 277 1,794 599 33.4%
# Design Review/Zoning Agenda Items 2 64 8 38 26 68.4%
# Staff Review Approvals 15 242 6 123 119 96.7%
Recreation
Mile of Trails Maintained 14.7 73.4 14.7 74.8 (1) -1.9%
Platform Tennis Registrations 35 541 35 439 102 23.2%
Ice Rink Skaters 878 3778 1630 4829 (1,051) -21.8%
Snow Cat Hours 130 436 70 354 81 22.9%
Plaza Services Due to the timing of the packet, trash diversion rates are for the previous month.
Snow Removal Plaza Hours 662 1,794 641 2079 (285) -13.7%
Plaza Maintenance Hours 163 2,898 260 2495 404 16.2%
Lawn Care Hours 0 1,453 0 1353 101 7.5%
Plant Care Hours 0 2,958 0 2587 371 14.3%
Irrigation Hours 0 590 4 784 (194) -24.7%
TMV Trash Collection Hours 99 1,181 97 1112 69 6.2%
Christmas Decorations Hours 262 1,666 215.75 1639 27 1.6%
Vehicle Maintenance
# Preventive Maintenance Performed 21 221 27 229 ) -3.5%
# Repairs Completed 29 337 24 329 8 2.4%
Special Projects 4 49 8 74 (25) -33.8%
# Roadside Assists 0 5 3 14 ) -64.3%
Finance
# Employee Based Business Licenses Issued 14 695 3 668 27 4.0%
# Privately Licensed Rentals 0 68 0 56 12 21.4%
# Property Management Licensed Rentals 0 338 o | 330 8 2.4%
# VRBO Listings for MV 335____ (TTITIIIONY 32 TIN5 09%
# Paperless Billing Accts (YTD is total paperless customers) 12 543 14 390 153 39.2%
# of TMV AR Bills Processed 2,069 24,341 2,023 23,648 693 2.9%
Accounts Receivable - Total Bad Debt Reserve/Allowance: $16,595
TMYV Operating Receivables Utilities - Cable and
(includes Gondola funding) Water/Sewer VCA - Village Court Apartments] ~ General Fund Investment Activity
Current $ 560,096 94.1% $ 283,977 92.5% $ (6,415) 166.9% Change in Value ($18,368)
30+ Days 4,129 0.7% 16,083 5.2% (1,695) 44.1% Ending Balance $5,230,304
60+ Days 2,545 0.4% 4,132 1.3% - 0.0% Investment Income $5,211
90+ Days 2,134 0.4% 2,873 0.9% 4,267 -111.0%  |Portfolio Yield 1.04%
over 120 days 26,384 4.4% 10 0.0% - 0.0%
Total $ 595,288 100.0% $ 307,075 100.0% $ (3,843) 100.0%
Other Billings - CDF,
Construction Parking, Change Since Last Month -
Commercial Trash Total All AR Increase (Decrease) in AR |Other Statistics
Current $§ 12,508 56.7% $ 850,167 92.3% $ 32,946 115.4% Population (estimated) 1,340
30+ Days 4,105 18.6% 22,622 2.5% (7,147) -25.0% Registered Voters 1,016
60+ Days 3,573 16.2% 10,249 1.1% 3,410 11.9% Property Valuation 266,407,970
90+ Days 1,891 8.6% 11,164 1.2% (769) -2.7%
over 120 days - 0.0% 26,394 2.9% 120 0.4%
Total $ 22,077 100.0% $ 920,596 100.0% $ 28,560 100.0%




January21g, 2016 Agendaltem 11b

Memorandum

To: Town Council

From: Kevin Swain, Finance Director

Date: January 14, 2016

Re: Town of Mountain Village Financial Statements through November 2015
Mountain Village Financials Statements through November, 2015

General Fund Summary

Budgets have been updated for 2015 revisions, adopted at the December 2015 meeting.

The General Fund currently reflects a surplus of $2.1 million. Development related revenues are now on
budget and over prior year. Sales taxes show an increase of 22% over prior year and are over budget by 22%.
Revenues of $8.6 million were over budget by $151,000 due mainly to sales tax, interest, and Telluride
permits.

Total operating expenditures of $6.5 million were under budget by $720,500. Capital outlay through this
period was for environmental projects, firehouse improvements, trail maintenance, and boiler repairs.

Transfers to other funds include:

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Child Development Fund $ 3,784 $ 95,801 $ 27,121 (68,680)
Conference Center Subsidy $ - 8 203,335 $ 193,103 (10,232)
Affordable Housing Development Fund
(Monthly Sales Tax Allocation) $ 8,121 §$ 345,645 $ 349,418 3,773
Vehicle & Equipment Acquisition Fund $ 658 $ 259,088 $ 202,747 (56,341)
Capital Projects Fund (From AHDF) $ 4,279 $ 438,430 $ 437,864 (566)
Income transfers from other funds include:
Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Cable System $ 57,259 $ 171,579 $ 144,617 (26,962)
Overhead allocation from Cable, W/S, Gondola,
VCA and Parking Services $ 36,696 $ 396,835 $ 386,841 (9,994)
Parking Services $ (2,209 $ (84,249) $ 165,752 250,001
Debt Service Fund (Specific ownership taxes) $ 10,318 $ 73,698 $ 136,157 62,459
*Tourism Fund $ 1,004 $ 39,307 $ 56,499 17,192

lS&hiS transfer is comprised of administrative fees, interest, and penalties collected.



Vehicle and Equipment Acquisition Fund — No Fund Income Statement Attached

A snow blower attachment and a sweeper broom were purchased. A police vehicle, a bus, and a parks and
recreation vehicle have been acquired, and the bobcat leases have been paid.

Capital Projects Fund — No Fund Income Statement Attached

$437,864 was spent on the Meadows Improvement Plan.

Historical Museum Fund — No Fund Income Statement Attached

$88,618 in property taxes were collected and $86,842 was tendered to the historical museum. The county
treasurer retained $1,776 in treasurer’s fees.

Mortgage Assistance Fund — No Fund Income Statement Attached

Mortgage down payment assistance in the amount of $30,000 was made to a Town employee.

Sales Tax

Sales taxes of $3.14 million are 22% over 2014 through this period and are over budget by 22%. Lodging shows
the highest growth of 29.2% followed by utility/other at 29%.

Actual Sales Tax Base By Class, Through November 2015

Category Actual Actual PY % Actual PY % Actual PY % Actual PY$ PY %
2011 2012 Increase 2013 Increase 2014 Increase 2015 Variance Increase

4.5% 4.5% 2011to 4.5% 2012 to 4.5% 2013 to 2014 4.5% 201410 2015 | 2014to

2012 2013 2015

Lodging 17,914,785 17,705,032 1% 22,921,017 | 299 24,782,025 8% 32,010,548 7,228,524 | 29.17%
Restaurant 10,225,184 10,739,416 5% 11,472,831 7% 13,054,070 14% 15,658,169 2,604,099 | 19.95%
Retalil 10,966,958 9,505,971 -13% 11,847,824 | 259, 12,180,992 3% 12,873,204 692,212 | 5.68%
Utility/Other 5,928,836 7,365,152 249, 8,121,870 10% 7,160,076 -12% 9,216,635 2,056,558 | 28.72%
Total 45,035,763 45,315,570 1% 54,363,542 | 20% 57,177,163 5% 69,758,556 | 12,581,393 | 22.00%

=
(o))




Tourism Fund

2015 restaurant taxes totaling $310,551 have been collected and $304,340 was tendered to the airline
guarantee program. $1.236 million in lodging taxes were collected and $1.218 million was tendered to the
airline guarantee program and to MTI. The Town retained $24,729 in administrative fees, and penalties and
interest of $5,207.

Lodging taxes are exceeding prior year and budget by 26% and 30%. Restaurant taxes are also ahead of
prior year and budget by 17% and 26%, respectively. For the month of November, restaurant taxes are 22.5%
over November 2014 and lodging taxes are 6.5% over November 2014.

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Lodging Tax Summary

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 Budget
Activity Activity Activity Activity Activity Var % Budget Var %

(4%) (4%) (4%) (4%) (4%)
January 123,204 105,787 167,378 159,264 216,904 36.19% 140,324 35.31%
February 137,579 135,434 151,727 170,098 231,700 36.22% 149,232 35.59%
March 179,223 150,548 203,235 248,285 302,834 21.97% 222,035 26.68%
April 5,006 7,619 9,382 7,291 12,319 68.96% 6,101 50.47%
May 6,665 8,673 10,684 10,627 15,282 43.81% 8,935 41.54%
June 50,466 55,581 77,013 74,275 84,109 13.24% 64,744 23.02%
July 64,340 77,661 93,602 109,838 136,711 24.47% 96,286 29.57%
August 52,153 74,889 84,727 88,929 88,990 0.07% 77,851 12.52%
September 61,547 62,057 69,349 82,891 113,475 36.90% 73,095 35.58%
October 12,532 16,867 16,450 17,383 22,812 31.23% 15,158 33.55%
November 6,206 6,618 6,761 11,840 11,371 -3.96% 10,632 6.50%
December 171,797 164,045 191,249 226,508 - -100.00% 201,696 #DIV/0!
Total 870,717 865,780 1,081,555 1,207,229 1,236,507 2.43% 1,066,088 13.78%
Tax Base 21,767,932 21,644,491 27,038,867 30,180,718 30,912,673 26,652,197

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Restaurant Tax Summary

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 Budget
Activity Activity Activity (2%) Activity (2%) Activity (2%) Var % Budget Var %

(%) (%)
January 31,256 28,754 34,448 38,239 46,239 20.92% 33,193 28.21%
February 37,572 34,996 41,121 48,466 53,855 11.12% 42,070 21.88%
March 45,498 42,723 47,045 53,516 60,401 12.87% 46,453 23.09%
April 1,368 3,506 2,518 1,995 2,876 44.15% 1,732 39.77%
May 3,402 2,469 3,913 5,154 5,457 5.87% 4,474 18.01%
June 18,235 17,098 19,116 25,366 25,404 0.15% 22,019 13.33%
July 22,524 25,929 27,921 32,661 39,554 21.10% 28,351 28.32%
August 20,044 20,958 25,645 25,017 28,877 15.43% 21,716 24.80%
September 17,272 17,813 19,982 23,831 31,985 34.22% 20,686 35.33%
October 6,355 7,258 5,468 5,369 9,447 75.95% 4,661 50.67%
November 3,487 4,524 4,668 5,765 6,457 12.01% 5,004 22.50%
December 37,737 39,565 42,983 49,923 - -100.00% 42,842 #DIV/0!
Total 244,750 245,593 274,828 315,303 310,551 -1.51% 273,200 12.03%
Tax Base 12,237,496 12,279,634 13,741,420 15,765,152 15,527,567 13,659,997

Business license fees of $278,322 are over budget by $2,650 and over prior year $9,175. $261,623 was
remitted to MTI and $37,009 in admin fees and penalties were transferred to the General Fund.

H
\l



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
GENERAL FUND INVESTMENTS

12/31/2015
CuUsIP DESCRIPTION
3130A3Y32 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
313378RR4 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
912833KH2 US TREASURY NOTE
3136G04R9 FANNIE MAE
313378PN5 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3134G3K82 FREDDIE MAC UNNT
3130A5YTO FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3133EE6K1 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK
3130A5QX0 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3130A5J75 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3136G1GU7 FANNIE MAE
3134G7LT6 FREDDIE MAC UNNT
3134G43V8 FREDDIE MAC UNNT
313382Y98 FED HOME LOAN BANK BOND
313383AW1 FED HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3133EFEB9 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK NOTE
3130A5RW1 FEDRAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3134G7SE2 FREDDIE MAC
3136G2HK6 FANNIE MAE
3130A6GD3 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BOND
3133EEG46 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK
TOTALS
AVERAGE

MATURITY

02/22/2016
04/28/2016
05/15/2016
02/21/2017
03/02/2017
03/27/2017
05/12/2017
11/13/2017
12/29/2017
01/30/2018
03/27/2018
04/27/2018
05/15/2018
05/16/2018
06/13/2018
06/18/2018
12/28/2018
02/27/2019
05/20/2019
09/25/2019
05/04/2020

BENCHMARK 2 YEAR TREASURY YIELD CURVE RATE 09/30/2017

=
o1
o

DAYS TO

53
88
105
387
396
421
436
621
667
699
755
786
804
805
833
838
1031
1092
1174
1302
1524

705.57

COUPON

0.27
1

0
0.75
1.27
0.75
0.75
0.93
1
0.9
1.05
1.1
1.05
1
1.15
1.17
1.45
1.5
1.4
1.5
1.72

1.03

PAR PURCHASE PRICE

$ 250,000.00 $
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00

$ 5,250,000.00 $

$ 250,000.00 $

250,000.00
252,267.50
246,627.50
250,000.00
251,392.50
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00

5,250,287.50

250,013.69

YTM(CALL)

0.27
0.77
0.493
0.75
1.153
0.75
0.75
0.93
1
0.9
1.05
1.1
1.05
1
1.15
1.17
1.45
1.5
1.4
1.5
1.72

1.04

1.06

MARKET PRICE MARKET VALUE

100.0066
100.1764
99.8255
100.0402
100.3295
99.8096
99.7522
100.0021
99.571
99.4404
99.3449
99.8222
99.0139
98.8455
99.8289
99.3177
99.4397
99.7331
100.136
98.9632
98.7231

99.62484286

$

250,016.50
250,441.00
249,563.75
250,100.50
250,823.75
249,524.00
249,380.50
250,005.25
248,927.50
248,601.00
248,362.25
249,555.50
247,534.75
247,113.75
249,5672.25
248,294.25
248,599.25
249,332.75
250,340.00
247,408.00
246,807.75

5,230,304.25

249,062.11



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015
2015 2014 2013 2012
Budget Budget | Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD YTD Variance | Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD | Actual YTD | Actual YTD
&) (%)

General Fund

Revenues
Charges for Services $ 325499 $ 230,028 $ 95471 41.50% $ 262,923 § (62,576) $ 254,635 $ 685,602 $ 390,230
Contributions 42,344 38,762 3,582 9.24% 42,286 (58) 20,453 15,432 28,233
Fines and Forfeits 6,906 5,701 1,205 21.14% 6,077 (829) 3,943 2,310 (758)
Interest Income 73,773 45,833 27,940 60.96% 50,000 (23,773) 52,356 23,168 20,424
Intergovernmental 365,405 338,925 26,480 7.81% 371,920 6,515 355,165 431,599 406,885
Licenses and Permits 333,824 272,270 61,554 22.61% 296,467 (37,357) 248,087 482,704 157,008
Miscellaneous Revenues 81,234 86,345 (5,111) -5.92% 94,549 13,315 79,059 81,205 108,953
Taxes and Assessments 7,371,394 7,792,607 (421,213) -5.41% 8,177,996 806,602 6,535,884 7,993,136 6,747,190

Total Revenues 8,600,379 8,810,471 (210,092) -2.38% 9,302,218 701,839 7,549,582 9,715,156 7,858,165

Operating Expenses
Legislation & Council 32,067 38,044 (5,977) -15.71% 42,667 10,600 7,981 18,001 7,319
Town Manager 193,352 200,969 (7,617) -3.79% 221,971 28,619 197,935 187,340 191,933
Administrative Services 291,607 329,007 (37,400) -11.37% 360,804 69,197 294,137 284,947 269,757
Finance 714,526 739,245 (24,719) -3.34% 794,233 79,707 696,730 689,149 697,511
Technical 127,232 143,992 (16,760) -11.64% 202,957 75,725 136,367 138,261 137,541
Human Resources 246,349 261,072 (14,723) -5.64% 295,140 48,791 217,804 231,303 217,975
Town Attorney 471,765 424,770 46,995 11.06% 469,199 (2,566) 409,843 371,549 410,328
Marketing and Business Development 217,882 248,783 (30,901) -12.42% 285,413 67,531 174,454 172,708 172,610
Municipal Court 24,076 28,498 (4,422) -15.52% 31,057 6,981 24,413 24,322 24,255
Police Department 672,470 713,487 (41,017) -5.75% 798,198 125,728 576,409 630,574 682,494
Community Services 42,416 47,279 (4,863) -10.29% 52,016 9,600 41,747 46,956 39,517
Community Grants and Contributions 66,500 66,500 - 0.00% 66,500 - 79,000 66,500 66,500
Roads and Bridges 767,316 938,155 (170,839) -18.21% 1,020,086 252,770 833,183 1,454,441 875,791
Vehicle Maintenance 378,656 405,522 (26,366) -6.63% 459,648 80,992 380,535 377,970 420,083
Municipal Bus/Dial-A-Ride 153,105 153,377 (272) -0.18% 164,430 11,325 141,022 319,437 546,902
Employee Shuttle 51,267 94,020 (42,753) -45.47% 99,787 48,520 66,090 64,945 76,809
Parks & Recreation 339,175 401,437 (62,262) -15.51% 457,440 118,265 350,516 280,798 439,748
Plaza and Environmental Services 1,013,096 1,199,030 (185,934) -15.51% 1,346,673 333,577 1,008,593 1,011,061 938,971
Public Refuse Removal and Residential Trash Billing Services 45,652 48,256 (2,604) -5.40% 51,645 5,993 39,627 195,801 198,452
Building/Facility Maintenance 139,011 164,400 (25,389) -15.44% 196,753 57,742 89,756 137,361 245,202
Planning & Development Services 5,623 8,203 (2,580) -31.45% 9,149 3,526 4,928 3,714 6,194
Building Division 205,033 218,066 (13,033) -5.98% 247,354 42,321 163,514 146,409 140,652
Housing Division Office 15,712 17,999 (2,287) -12.71% 19,823 4,111 16,682 77,044 81,323
Planning and Zoning Division 271,933 318,855 (46,922) -14.72% 355,082 349,459 299,379 222,592 226,894
Contingency - - - #DIV/0! 30,480 14,768 - - -

Total Operating Expenses 6,485,821 7,208,966 (723,145) -10.03% 8,078,505 1,843,282 6,250,645 7,153,183 7,114,761

Surplus / Deficit 2,114,558 1,601,505 513,053 32.04% 1,223,713 (1,141,443) 1,298,937 2,561,973 743,404
Capital Outlay 124,874 292,859 (167,985) -57.36% 311,235 186,361 261,333 101,882 89,705

Surplus / Deficit 1,989,684 1,308,646 681,038 52.04% 912,478 (1,077,206) 1,037,604 2,460,091 653,699

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets 30,034 - 30,034 #DIV/0! - (30,034) 10,568 1,685 5,563
Transfer (To) From Affordable Housing (349,418) (345,645) (3,773) 1.09% (406,750) (57,332) (285,621) (273,401) (227,104)
Transfer (To) From Cable 144,617 171,579 (26,962) -15.71% 176,814 32,197 184,532 158,963 189,382
Transfer (To) From Child Development (27.121) (95,801) 68.680 -71.69% (114.850) 78.253 - (42.740) (73.043)
Transfer (To) From Debt Service 136,157 73,698 62,459 84.75% 81,230 (305,611) 130,293 105,768 88,149
Transfer (To) From Overhead Allocation 386,841 396,835 (9,994) -2.52% 432,911 46,070 406,172 388,145 363,149
Transfer (To) From Parking Services 165,752 (84,249) 250,001 -296.74% (76,118) (48,997) (683) 20,998 (42,519)
Transfer (To) From Conference Center (193,103) (203,335) 10,232 -5.03% (203,335) (203,335) (131,123) (108,343) (149,235)
Transfer (To) From Tourism 56,499 39,307 17,192 43.74% 38,954 (97,203) 49,855 (71,534) (51,895)
Transferi'[sgom Vehicle/Equipment (202,747) (259,088) 56,341 21.75% (283,586) (80,839) (185,994) (113,803) (78,289)

Transfer (To) From Water/Sewer - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -



2015 2014 2013 2012
Budget Budget | Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD YTD Variance | Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD | Actual YTD | Actual YTD
® (%)
Total Other Sources and Uses 147,511 (306,698) 454,209 -148.10% (354,730) (723,330) 177,999 65,738 24,158
Surplus / Deficit $ 2,137,195 $ 1,001,948 $1,135,247 113.30% $ 557,748 $ (1,800,536) $ 1,215,603 $ 2,525829 § 677,857
Beginning Fund Balance Components Actual YTD Annual Budget
Emergency Reserve $ 2,827,477 $ 2,952,551
Property Tax Reserve 225,414 225,414
Unreserved 4,059,051 2,429,654
Beginning Fund Balance $ 7,111,942 $ 5,607,619
YTD Ending Fund Balance Components
Emergency Reserve $ 2,827,477 $ 2,952,551
Property Tax Reserve 225,414 225,414
Health Care Premium Savings Reserve 50,000 50,000
Facility Maint Reserve 155,000 155,000
Unreserved 5,991,246 2,782,402
Ending Fund Balance $ 9,249,136 $ 6,165,367

Revenues

Taxes & Assessments - Specific Ownership taxes collected are exceeding budget and prior year. Sales tax revenues are 22% over budget and prior year.

Construction use tax is exceeding budget and prior year.

Licenses & Permits - Construction permits are over budget by $28,000. Plumbing permits are over budget $11,000. Electrical permits are over budget $17,800.

Intergovernmental - Road and Bridge taxes are meeting budget.

Charges for Services - Plan review and DRB fees are over budget by $33,000. Energy mitigation fees and road impact fees are also exceeding budget.

Fines & Forfeitures - Over budget due to building and traffic fines.
Investment Income - Interest is exceeding budget and prior year.

Miscellaneous - Under budget in finance charges but over in vending cart rents.

Contributions - Green gondola receipts, shuttle shared expense, and energy rebates have been collected to date.

Top Ten Budget Variances

Under Budget

Plaza and Environmental Services - $185,934 Employee and utilities savings. Savings also in planter/paver repair.

Road & Bridge - $170,0839 Gasoline and paving are under budget.

Parks and Recreation - $62,2626 Under budget in personnel, ice rink electric, and trail maintenance.
Planning & Zoning - $46,922 Savings in S&W for the gap in the planner position.
Employee Shuttle - $42,753 Gasoline and vehicle repair are under budget.

Police - $41,017 Savings in personnel costs due to lower overtime.

Admin Services- $37,400 Savings in facility expense, AV repair, and electric.
Marketing and Business Development - $30,901 Under budget in personnel, marketing collateral, live video streaming, and photos.
Vehicle Maintenance- $26,866 Savings in general supplies, waste removal, utilities, and oil.

Over Budget

Legal - $46,995 Over budget in extraordinary legal mainly having to do with the Medical Center.

160




Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015

Tourism Fund

Revenues
Business Licenses Fees
Lodging Taxes - Condos/Homes (1)
Lodging Taxes - Hotels/Condos (1)
Lodging Taxes - Prior Year
Penalties and Interest
Restaurant Taxes
Restaurant Taxes - Prior Year
Total Revenues

Tourism Funding
Additional Funding
Airline Guaranty Funding
MTI Funding

Total Tourism Funding

Surplus / Deficit
Administrative Fees
Audit Fees
Total Administrative Fees
Surplus / Deficit
Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From Other Funds

Total Other Sources and Uses

Surplus / Deficit
161

2015 2014 2013 2012
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget Actual Actual Actual
YTD YTD Variance Variance  Budget Balance YTD YTD YTD
(&) (Y0)

§ 278322 § 254416 $ 23,906 9% $ 277,545 $ (777) $ 268,748 § 267,808 § 241,002
638,913 667,191 (28,278) -4% 727,845 88,932 423,726 397,940 292,483
597,594 642,944 (45,350) -7% 701,393 103,799 556,995 492,365 409,051

4,840 - 4,840 #DIV/0! - (4,840) 781 870 7,044
25,547 20,528 5,019 24% 22,422 (3,125) 11,609 13,562 17,828
310,551 318,117 (7,566) -2% 347,037 36,486 265,381 231,845 206,027
641 - 641 #DIV/0! - (641) 88 164 1,045
1,856,408 1,903,196 (46,788) 2% 2,076,242 219,834 1,527,328 1,404,554 1,174,480
8,091 20,000 (11,909) -60% 26,000 17,909 - 100,000 105,833
913,228 953,721 (40,493) -4% 1,040,423 127,195 739,918 664,045 548,429
876,089 887,668 (11,578) -1% 968,365 92,276 737,556 712,043 572,113
1,797,409 1,861,389 (63,980) 104% 2,034,788 237,379 1,477,473 1,476,088 1,226,375
58,999 41,807 17,192 41% 41,454 (17,545) 49,855 (71,534) (51,895)
2,500 2,500 - 0% 2,500 - - - -
2,500 2,500 - 100% 2,500 - - - -
56,499 39,307 (63,980) -163% 38,954 (17,545) 49,855 (71,534) (51,895)
(56,499) (39,307) (17,192) 44% (38,954) 17,545 (49,855) 71,534 51,895
(56,499) (39,307) (17,192) 44% (38,954) 17,545 (49,855) 71,534 51,895
$ - 8 -3 - $ - - 3 - 8 -



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2015

| 2015 | 2014 | 2013 | 2012 |
Actual Budget Budget  Budget Annual Budget
YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
%) (%)

Parking Services Fund
Revenues

Contributions/Shared Facility Expenses $ 4537 § 15,551 $ (11,014) 1% $ 18,500 $ 13,963 § 17,461 $ 17,903 $ -

Fines and Forfeits 33,513 11,265 22,248 197% 7,900 (25,613) 13,254 7,588 14,658

Gondola Parking Garage 173,398 83,220 90,178 108% 95,200 (78,198) 122,534 112,995 101,624

Heritage Parking Garage 135,598 110,171 25,427 23% 131,000 (4,598) 117,652 130,989 100,213

Parking Meter Revenues 11,870 9,225 2,645 29% 9,500 (2,370) 10,395 9,475 10,036

Parking Permits 12,900 9,257 3,643 39% 12,000 (900) 11,561 9,510 7,320

Special Event Parking 60,359 38,250 22,109 58% 38,250 (22,109) 41,743 5,000 5,000
Total Revenues 432,175 276,939 155,236 56% 312,350 (119,825) 334,600 293,460 238,851
Operating Expenses

Other Operating Expenses 2,571 4,652 (2,081) -45% 5,100 2,529 573 1,139 2,361

Personnel Expenses 99,442 125,820 (26,378) 21% 140,473 41,031 104,474 106,342 107,953

Gondola Parking Garage 29,373 51,855 (22,482) -43% 57,225 27,852 34,660 35,533 32,923

Surface Lots 30,016 29,002 1,014 3% 31,260 1,244 22,058 15,942 13,738

Heritage Parking Garage 65,693 99,626 (33,933) -34% 101,325 35,632 113,116 84,294 109,929

Contingency - - - #DIV/0! - - - - (22,019)

Meadows Parking 1,000 - 1,000 #DIV/0! - (1,000) 2,000 1,000 1,188
Total Operating Expenses 228,095 310,955 (82,860) -27% 335,383 107,288 276,381 244,250 246,073
Surplus / Deficit 204,080 (34,016) 238,096 -700% (23,033) (227,113) 57,719 49,210 (7,222)
Capital

Capital 10,895 22,800 (11,905) -52% 22,800 11,905 29,232 - 4,627
Surplus / Deficit 193,185 (56,816) 250,001 -440% (45,833) (239,018) 28,487 49,210 (11,849)
Other Sources and Uses

Sale of Assets - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

Overhead Allocation (27,433) (27,433) - 0% (30,285) (2,852) (29,170) (28,212) (30,670)

Transfer (To) From General Fund (165,752) 84,249 (250,001) -297% 76,118 241,870 683 (20,998) 42,519
Total Other Sources and Uses (193,185) 56,816 (250,001) -440% 45,833 239,018 (28,487) (49,210) 11,849
Surplus / Deficit $ - 3 - 8 - #DIV/O! § - $ - 8 - 8 -

Parking revenues are over budget $155,236. The budget is allocated based on how revenues were collected in the prior year. All revenue types are over the annual budget
except shared expenses, which is based on actual expenditures. Expenditures are under budget primarily due to personnel, shared facility expense, and utilities. The net

transfer YTD to the General Fund is $193,185.

162



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015

Gondola Fund

Revenues
Event Operations Funding
Event Operations Funding - SMC/TOT
Grant Funding
Insurance Proceeds
Miscellaneous Revenues
Sale of Assets
TMVOA Operating Contributions
TMVOA Capital Contributions
TSG 1% Lift Sales

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
MAARS
Chondola
Grant Success Fees
Operations
Maintenance
FGOA
Major Repairs and Replacements
Contingency
Total Operating Expenses

Surplus / Deficit
Capital

Capital Outlay

Surplus / Deficit

2015 | 2014 2013 2012 |
Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD  Actual YITD  Actual YTD
® ()
$ 16,663 - 16,663 #DIV/0! - 3 (16,663) $ 5525 $ 11,779  $ 4,556
- - - #DIV/0! 36,000 36,000 - 36,000 -
123,709 414,606 (290,897) -70.16% 452,297 328,588 294,773 115,353 54,996
- - - #DIV/0! - - - 3,775 2,836
12,100 - 12,100 #DIV/0! - (12,100) 3,169 25,513 94,539
- - #DIV/0! - - 558 - -
2,790,045 2,773,630 16,415 0.59% 3,412,767 622,722 2,528,886 2,667,967 2,711,989
388,102 547,056 (158,954) -29.06% 289,123 (98,979) 366,300 25,513 94,539
139,315 139,789 (474) -0.34% 174,315 35,000 119,360 99,601 102,792
3,469,934 3,875,081 (405,147) -10.46% 4,364,502 894,568 3,318,571 2,985,501 3,066,247
55,508 63,135 (7,627) -12.08% 76,965 21,457 58,476 57,548 66,032
186,262 188,499 (2,237) -1.19% 226,156 39,894 139,851 128,647 127,641
- 24,877 (24,877) -100.00% 27,138 27,138 - 18,457 -
1,408,333 1,479,209 (70,876) -4.79% 1,732,535 324,202 1,330,148 1,322,706 1,361,729
1,052,269 1,067,015 (14,746) -1.38% 1,200,677 148,408 993,417 994,983 1,003,508
379,460 505,290 (125,830) -24.90% 509,707 130,247 430,379 437,647 412,798
125,340 216,152 (90,812) -42.01% 230,324 104,984 272,685 15,892 79,578
- - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
3,207,172 3,544,177 (337,005) -9.51% 4,003,502 796,330 3,224,956 2,975,880 3,051,286
262,762 330,904 (68,142) -20.59% 361,000 93,615 9,621 14,961
262,762 330,904 (68,142) -20.59% 361,000 98,238 93,615 9,621 14,961
$ - - 3 - #DIV/0! - $ - - -

The gondola fund is $433,557 under budgeted expenditures.
MARRS is under budget with savings in supplies and employee costs, this is due to budgeting for training, meeting, practice, and re-rides that may not always be needed.
Chondola expenses are over budget due mainly to small saving over several items. Gondola operations is under budget in employee costs, uniforms, and payroll processing.
Maintenance is under budget with savings in trails and road maintenance. FGOA costs are under budget with savings in electricity, employee shuttle, and communications.
Electricity savings are due in part to a capital reimbursement refund from SMPA. MR&R expense is for station entrance modifications, painting, and bullwheel replacement.
Capital expenditures were for a new truck, grip replacement, and the terminal flooring project.

163



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2015

| 2015 2014 | 2013 | 2012
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YITD Actual YTD Actual YTD
$) (%)

Child Development Fund
Revenues

Daycare Fees $ 231,491 $ 228,096 3,395 1.49% $ 250,068 $ 18,577 $ 223,178 199,187

Fundraising Revenues - Daycare 13,417 12,237 1,180 9.64% 12,237 (1,180) 10,967 11,545

Fundraising Revenues - Preschool 3,379 3,324 55 0.04% 3,324 (154,088) 3,150 -

Grant Revenues - Daycare 25,695 28,645 (2,950) -10.30% 31,000 5,305 29,072 33,289

Grant Revenues - Preschool 15,678 9,936 5,742 57.79% 11,000 (4,678) 12,430 10,585

Preschool Fees 157,412 153,866 3,546 106.68% 167,827 164,448 159,766 161,014
Total Revenues 447,072 436,104 10,968 2.51% 475,456 28,384 - 438,563 415,620
Operating Expenses

Daycare Contingency - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

Daycare Other Expense 55,259 69,966 (14,707) -21.02% 75,541 20,282 63,509 58,989

Daycare Personnel Expense 289,575 302,360 (12,785) -4.23% 337,779 48,204 273,993 286,287

Preschool Contingency - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

Preschool Other Expense 29,992 37,017 (7,025) -18.98% 40,837 10,845 32,175 31,460

Preschool Personnel Expense 99,367 122,562 (23,195) -18.93% 136,149 36,782 111,626 111,927
Total Operating Expenses 474,193 531,905 (57,712) -10.85% 590,306 116,113 - 481,303 488,663
Surplus / Deficit (27,121) (95,801) 68,680 -71.69% (114,850) - (42,740) (73,043)
Capital

Capital Outlay - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Total Capital - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Surplus / Deficit (27,121) (95,801) 68,680 -71.69% (114,850) - (42,740) (73,043)
Other Sources and Uses

Contributions - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

Transfer (To) From General Fund 27,121 95,801 68,680 71.69% 114,850 87,729 - 42,740 73,043
Total Other Sources and Uses 27,121 95,801 68,680 71.69% 114,850 87,729 - 42,740 73,043
Surplus / Deficit $ - S - - #DIV/0! $ - $ - 3 - -

Child Development revenues are $10,968 over budget. Daycare grant revenues are under budget while preschool grants are over budget.
Operating expenses are $57,700 under budget due to personnel costs and the scholarship program, which is grant funded.

The furfi@4s required $27,121 in funding from the General Fund.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015

Water & Sewer Fund

Revenues

Mountain Village Water and Sewer

Other Revenues

Ski Ranches Water

Skyfield Water
Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Mountain Village Sewer
Mountain Village Water
Ski Ranches Water
Contingency

Total Operating Expenses

Surplus / Deficit

Capital
Capital Outlay

Surplus / Deficit

Other Sources and Uses

Overhead Allocation Transfer

Mountain Village Tap Fees
Grants

Ski Ranches Tap Fees
Skyfield Tap Fees

Telski Tap Fee/Water Credit

Transfer (To) From General Fund

Total Other Sources and Uses

Surplus / Deficit

2015 2013 2012
Budget Budget Budget
Actual YTD Budget YTD  Variance Variance Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD  Actual YTD
® (%)
1,989,612 § 1,873,902 115,710 6.17% 121,862 1,943314 § 1,816,298
9,401 20,250 (10,849) -53.58% 14,649 15,440 12,783
120,421 116,459 3,962 3.40% 6,278 114,795 114,917
20,458 17,466 2,992 17.13% (1,689) 21,381 20,193
2,139,892 2,028,077 111,815 5.51% 141,100 2,094,930 1,964,191
372,490 330,141 42,349 12.83% 9,589 323,416 303,026
807,236 887,400 (80,164) -9.03% 185,963 717,653 782,538
15,836 39,182 (23,346) -59.58% 30,292 21,660 25,096
- - - #DIV/0! 28,428 - -
1,195,562 1,256,723 (61,161) -4.87% 254,272 1,062,729 1,110,660
944,330 771,354 172,976 22.42% 1,032,201 853,531
1,681,002 1,718,750 (37,748) -2.20% 778,381 363,460 200,873
(736,672) (947,396) 210,724 -22.24% 668,741 652,658
(115,312) (115,312) - 0.00% (11,852) (109,098) (103,648)
100,716 57,572 43,144 74.94% (43,144) 171,392 113,536
- - - #DIV/0! 75,000 - -
- - - #DIV/0! - 5,000 10,697
- - - #DIV/0! - - -
- - - #DIV/0! - (112,271) (107,953)
- - - #DIV/0! - - -
(14,596) (57,740) 43,144 -74.72% 20,004 (44,977) (87,368)
(751,268) $  (1,005,136) $ 253,868 -25.26% 623,764 $ 565,290

Excess water fees and snow making fees are exceeding budget. Ski Ranches revenues are over budget due to base fees, although excess fees are lagging. Skyfield revenues are over
budget in excess water and standby fees. Other revenues are under budget in meter sales and late fees.
Sewer expenditures are over budget mainly due to regional sewer charges (TOT). The charged amount through October is exceeding the annual budget but sewer capital budget is far
below and we will transfer budget from capital to operations to meet the shortfall. MV water is under budget due mainly to pump replacement and electricity. Ski Ranches water
costs are under budget with savings in S&W, repairs, and electric. Capital costs were made for water rights acquisition, power generators, regional sewer costs, a pick-up truck, and the

Wapiti water line.

165



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015
| 2015 2014 | 2013 | 2012
Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance  Actual YITD Actual YTD Actual YTD
® (%)
Broadband Fund
Revenues
Cable User Fees $ 756,304 $ 753,788 § 2,516 0.33% $ 822,314 $ 66,010 § 726,502 $ 783,928 § 765,398
Channel Revenues 282 387 (105) -27.13% 420 138 216 463 331
Internet User Fees 717,410 703,149 14,261 2.03% 768,265 50,855 645,717 554,588 519,602
Other Revenues 57,568 86,695 (29,127) -33.60% 95,557 63,066 77,129 71,914 75,852
Phone Service Fees 32,491 30,961 1,530 4.94% 33,911 (23,657) 32,660 31,448 29,701
Total Revenues 1,564,055 1,574,980 (10,925) -0.69% 1,720,467 156,412 1,482,224 1,442,341 1,390,884
Operating Expenses
Cable Direct Costs 598,151 572,744 25,407 4.44% 625,286 27,135 521,977 516,611 493,001
Phone Service Costs 24,597 27,306 (2,709) -9.92% 29,788 5,191 19,481 20,782 19,515
Internet Direct Costs 148,083 99,000 49,083 49.58% 108,000 (40,083) 99,000 93,358 83,666
Cable Operations 466,516 521,414 (54,898) -10.53% 583,062 116,546 463,228 481,834 460,602
Contingency - - - #DIV/0! 3,000 3,000 - - -
Total Operating Expenses 1,237,347 1,220,464 16,883 1.38% 1,349,136 111,789 1,103,686 1,112,585 1,056,784
Surplus / Deficit 326,708 354,516 (27,808) -7.84% 371,331 378,538 329,756 334,100
Capital
Capital Outlay 126,654 127,500 (846) -0.66% 127,500 846 37,365 98,601 19,897
Surplus / Deficit 200,054 227,016 (26,962) -11.88% 243,831 341,173 231,155 314,203
Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Transfer (To) From General Fund (144,617) (171,579) 26,962 -15.71% (176,814) (32,197) (184,532) (158,963) (189,382)
Overhead Allocation Transfer (105,437) (105,437) - 0.00% (117,017) (11,580) (106,641) (97,192) (89,821)
Total Other Sources and Uses (250,054) (277,016) 26,962 -9.73% (293,831) (43,777) (291,173) (256,155) (279,203)
Surplus / Deficit $ (50,000) $ (50,000) $ - 0.00% $ (50,000) $ 50,000 $ (25,000) $ 35,000
Beginning (Available) Fund Balance $ 110,000 $ 110,000 $ -
Ending (Available) Fund Balance $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ -

Cable user revenues are meeting budget and are over prior year 3%. Internet revenues are over budget 2%. Other revenues are under budget 33.6% due primarily to
parts, labor, equipment rental, and connection fees. Direct costs for cable are over budget and prior year due to increasing and additional basic programming costs.
Internet costs are over budget and prior year due to improvements to internet speed. Phone service revenues are over budget by 5%, while phone service expenses are
under budget by 10%. Cable operating expenses are under budget with savings in head end R&M, utilities, supplies, and insurance. Capital outlay was for the system

and sof upgrades.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015
2015 | 2014 [ 2013 | 2012
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
® ()
Telluride Conference Center Fund
Revenues
Beverage Revenues $ -3 - 8 - #DIV/O! $ - 8 -3 -3 -8 -
Catering Revenues - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Facility Rental - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Operating/Other Revenues - - - #DIV/0! - - 920 - -
Total Revenues - - - #DIV/0! - - 920 - -
Operating Expenses
Wait Staff - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Food Operations - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Beverage Operations - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
General Operations 27 - 27 #DIV/0! - 27 - 7,471 6,156
Administration 82,639 83,335 (696) -0.83% 83,335 696 78,598 59,910 67,996
Marketing 100,000 100,000 - 0.00% 100,000 - 14,819 28,882 59,118
Contingency - - - #DIV/0! - - - - 440
Total Operating Expenses 182,666 183,335 (669) -0.36% 183,335 669 93,417 96,263 133,710
Surplus / Deficit (182,666) (183,335) 669 -0.36% (183,335) (92,497) (96,263) (133,710)
Capital Outlay/ Major R&R 10,437 20,000 (9,563) -47.82% 20,000 9,563 38,626 12,080 15,525
Surplus / Deficit (193,103) (203,335) 10,232 -5.03% (203,335) (131,123) (108,343) (149,235)
Other Sources and Uses
Damage Receipts - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Insurance Proceeds - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Sale of Assets - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Transfer (To) From General Fund 193,103 203,335 (10,232) -5.03% 203,335 10,232 131,123 108,343 149,235
Overhead Allocation Transfer - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Total Other Sources and Uses 193,103 203,335 (10,232) 74.00% 203,335 10,232 131,123 108,343 149,235
Surplus / Deficit $ - 3 - 3 - #DIV/O!  $ - $ -8 - 8 -

Expenses to date are HOA dues, marketing expense, and equipment (compressor) costs.

167



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015
2015 | 2014 | 2013 | 2012
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
YTD YTD Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
) (%)
Affordable Housing Development Fund
Revenues
Contributions $ - 8 - 3 - #DIV/0! $ - 8 - 3 - 3 -3 -
Grant Proceeds - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Rental Income 11,560 11,240 319 2.84% 12,778 1,219 11,177 20,094 19,144
Sales Proceeds - - - #DIV/0! - - - (47,628) -
Total Revenues 11,560 11,240 319 2.84% 12,778 1,219 11,177 (27,534) 19,144
Operating Expenses
Coyote Court - - - #DIV/0! 5,000 5,000 - 4,159 8,245
RHA Funding - Moved in 2014 from the GF 82,138 82,138 - 0.00% 82,138 - 69,280 - -
Town Owned Properties 9,841 11,144 (1,303) -11.69% 11,144 1,303 9,822 13,485 7,270
Density bank 8,856 8,856 - 0.00% 8,856 - 8,856 8,856 11,664
Community Garden 2,495 2,500 %) -0.19% 2,500 5 - - -
Total Operating Expenses 103,330 104,638 (1,308) -1.25% 109,638 6,308 87,958 26,500 27,179
Surplus / Deficit (91,771) (93,398) (1,627) 1.74% (96,860) (5,089) (76,781) (54,034) (8,035)
Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From MAP (30,000) (30,000) - 0.00% (30,000) - - (44,000) -
Transfer (To) From General Fund - Sales Tax 349,418 345,645 3,773 1.09% 406,750 57,332 285,621 273,401 227,104
Transfer (To) From Capital Projects Fund (1) (437,864) (438,430) 566 -0.13% (438,430) (566) (19,254) - -
Transfer (To) From VCA (2) - - - #DIV/0! - - - - -
Total Other Sources and Uses (118,446) (122,785) 4,339 -3.53% (61,680) 56,766 266,367 229,401 227,104
Surplus / Deficit $ (210217) $ (216,183) $  (5,966) 2.76% $  (158,540) $ 51,677 $ 189,586 $ 175,367 $ 219,069
Beginning Fund Equity Balance $ 948,827 § 948,827 § -
Ending Equity Fund Balance $ 738,610 $ 732,644 S 5,966

Expenses consist of HOA dues on town owned property and the contribution to the Regional Housing Authority. Transfers have been made to mortgage assistance and
the capital projects fund for Meadow improvements.

=
[@))
o



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015

Village Court Apartments
Operating Revenues
Rental Income
Other Operating Income
Less: Allowance for Bad Debt
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Office Operations
General and Administrative
Utilities
Repair and Maintenance
Major Repairs and Replacement
Contingency
Total Operating Expenses

Surplus / (Deficit) After Operations

Non-Operating (Income) / Expense
Investment Earning
Debt Service, Interest
Debt Service, Fees
Debt Service, Principal
Total Non-Operating (Income) / Expense

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Capital
Capital Spending
Surplus / (Deficit)

Other Sources / (Uses)
Transfer (To)/From General Fund
Sale of Assets
Grant Revenues
Transfer From AHDF
Total Other Sources / (Uses)

Surplus / (Deficit)
Beginning Working Capital

Ending Working Capital

Rent revenues are over budget and prior year, 2%. Utility charges for prior year have been re-allocated to rents for ease of comparison. Other revenues are under budget 16% due mainly

2015 2014 2013 2012
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget
YTD YTD Vary (§) Var (%) Budget Balance Actual Actual Actual
2,074,789 § 2,040,449 $ 34,340 2% $ 2,225944 § 151,155 $ 2,017,267 $ 1,604,848 § 1,517,692
68,686 81,790 (13,103) -16% 89,225 20,539 112,157 331,663 301,193
(9,619) (10,005) 385 4% (10,914) (1,295) (12,918) (806) (7.,587)
2,133,856 2,112,234 21,622 1% 2,304,255 170,399 2,116,506 1,935,705 1,811,298
169,390 159,788 (9,601) -6% 176,687 7,297 154,233 158,340 152,048
101,590 109,043 7,453 7% 111,166 9,576 108,591 117,957 105,530
321,434 360,729 39,295 11% 393,523 72,089 335,754 349,511 329,204
305,570 337,563 31,994 9% 374,300 68,730 308,777 338,369 327,172
90,721 114,010 23,290 20% 123,702 32,981 177,928 278,861 119,622
- - - 0% 11,903 11,903 - - -
988,704 1,081,134 92,430 9% 1,191,281 202,577 1,085,283 1,243,037 1,033,576
1,145,152 1,031,099 114,053 11% 1,112,974 1,031,223 692,668 771,722
(66) (1,375) (1,309) 95% (1,500) (1,434) (174) (439) (852)
430,640 396,611 (34,029) -9% 430,640 - 122,325 244,749 249,758
4,500 - (4,500) #DIV/0! - (4,500) 378,950 116,101 116,834
356,834 356,834 - 0% 356,834 - 285,801 222,041 210,833
791,908 752,070 (39,838) -5% 785,974 (5,934) 786,903 582,454 576,573
353,244 279,029 74,215 27% 327,000 244,320 110,214 201,149
- - - #DIV/0! - - - - 383,432
353,244 279,029 74,215 27% 327,000 244,320 110,214 (182,284)
(98,567) (98,567) - 0% (105,444) (105,444) (106,936) (99,281) (92,814)
- - - 0% - - - - -
- - - 0% - - - - 147,708
- - - 0% - 98,567 - - -
(98,567) (98,567) - 0% (105,444) 98,567 (106,936) (99,281) 54,894
254,677 180,462 74,215 41% 221,556 137,384 10,934 (127,389)
21,195 21,195 - 0% -
275872 $ 201,657 S 74,215 37% $ 221,556

to forfeited deposit fees and carpet cleaning charges revenues. Prior year variance of $43,471 is due to cleaning charges and SMPA rebate received last year. Office operations are over budget
6%. This is due to a large PTO payout for the departing manager. General and administrative is under budget due mainly to legal fees. Utilities are under budget (11%), due mainly to

electricity savings. Maintenance is under in salaries and wages but over in workers comp and group insurance. MR&R is under budget. Expenses include carpet replacement , bobcat lease,

appliances, and vinyl replacement, cabinet replacement. Operating expenditures of $988,704 were $92,430 under budget.

169




Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

November 2015
2015 2014 2013 2012
Budget Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD Budget YTD  Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
3) (%)
Debt Service Fund
Revenues
Abatements $ - 3 - - #DIV/O! § -3 - - - -
Contributions 206,275 206,240 35 0.02% 206,240 395 204,425 203,425 207,425
Miscellaneous Revenue - - - #DIV/0! - - - - 235
Property Taxes 3,473,399 3,476,348 (2,948) -0.08% 3,477,157 3,758 3,535,829 3,426,645 3,432,020
Reserve/Capital/Liquidity Interest 1,489 1,508 (19) -1.26% 1,645 156 10,407 9,431 11,700
Specific Ownership Taxes 136,157 73,698 62,459 84.75% 80,651 (55,506) 130,293 105,768 88,149
Total Revenues 3,817,320 3,757,794 59,526 140.00% 3,765,693 (51,627) 3,880,954 3,745,269 3,739,529
Debt Service
2001/2011 Bonds - Gondola - Paid by contributions from TMVOA and TSG
200172011 Bond Issue - Interest 96,275 96,275 - 87.52% 96,275 - 99,425 103,425 107,425
2001/2011 Bond Issue - Principal 110,000 110,000 - #DIV/0! 110,000 - 105,000 100,000 100,000
2002 Bonds - Water/Sewer/Parking (refunding 1992) - 77.5% Water/Sewer - 22.5% Parking
2002 Bond Issue - Interest _ _ - #DIV/0! - - 63,125 _ 3,610
2002 Bond Issue - Principal _ _ - #DIV/0! - - _ _ 95,000
2005 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center - (refunding portion of 1998 )
2005 Bond Issue - Interest 97,000 97,000 - 15.77% 97,000 - 63,125 152,050 173,850
2005 Bond Issue - Principal 615,000 615,000 - #DIV/0! 615,000 - 585,000 645,000 545,000
2006B/2014 Bonds - Heritage Parking
2014 Bond Issue - Interest 285211 285,211 - 116.41% 285,211 - 373,388 381,788 389,988
2014 Bond Issue - Principal 245,000 245,000 - #DIV/0! 245,000 - 220,000 210,000 205,000
2007 Bonds - Water/Sewer (refunding 1997)
2007 Bond Issue - Interest 244,800 244,800 - 15.74% 244,800 - 300,863 346,988 391,425
2007 Bond Issue - Principal 1,555,000 1,555,000 - #DIV/0! 1,555,000 - 1,495,000 1,230,000 1,185,000
2009 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center (refunding 1998 bonds)
2009 Bond Issue - Interest 32,900 32,900 - 11.34% 32,900 - 41,300 49,050 55,800
2009 Bond Issue - Principal 290,000 290,000 - 8.12% 290,000 - 280,000 310,000 270,000
Total Debt Service 3,571,186 3,571,186 - 0.00% 3,571,186 - 3,626,226 3,528,301 3,522,098
Surplus / (Deficit) 246,134 186,608 59,526 31.90% 194,507 254,728 216,968 217,431
Operating Expenses
Administrative Fees 12,050 12,050 - 0.00% 17,000 4,950 15,876 1,500 7,280
County Treasurer Collection Fees 104,429 102,218 2,211 2.16% 102,228 (2,201) 106,280 103,030 103,398
Total Operating Expenses 116,479 114,268 2,211 1.94% 119,228 2,749 122,156 104,530 110,678
57,315 79.23% 75,279 132,572 112,438 106,753

Surplus / inBCit) 129,655 72,340



Debt Service Fund

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From General Fund
Transfer (To) From Other Funds
Bond Premiums
Proceeds From Bond Issuance

Total Other Sources and Uses
Surplus / (Deficit)

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

=
=

2015 2014 2013 2012
Budget Budget Annual Budget
Actual YTD Budget YTD  Variance Variance Budget Balance Actual YTD Actual YTD Actual YTD
®) (%)

(136,157) (73,698) (62,459) 84.75% (81,230) 54,927 (130,293) (105,768) (88,149)

- - - #DIV/0! - - - - (37,500)

- - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

- - - #DIV/0! - - - - -

(136,157) (73,698) (62,459) 84.75% (81,230) 54,927 (130,293) (105,768) (125,649)

$ (6,502) $ (1,358) $ (5,144) 378.72% $ (5,951) $ 2279 $ 6,670 § (18,896)
$ 734,652 $ 737976 § (3,324)
$ 728,150 $ 736,618 $ (8,468)



Time Period
January 21, 2016

March 15, 2016

April 21, 2016

June 15, 2015 — July 15, 2016

July 15 — July 31, 2016
August 8, 2016
August 22, 2016

September 15, 2016

September 16 — 24, 2016

October 5, 2016 8:30 am

=
N

Jameny21', 2016 Agendaliem 11c

Town of Mountain Village

2017
BUDGET PROCESS
Schedule of Activities

Activity
Town Council considers and ratifies the process to adoption

Budget and Finance Committee meeting to establish
preliminary revenue and spending level targets for the 2017
budget.

Town Council regular meeting Budget Goal Setting
worksession

Department heads and Managers to identify/or revise and
develop:

1) Department Program Narratives

2) Department Goals

3) Performance Measures

4) Mid-term Department performance evaluation

5) 2016 Revised year end budget amounts

6) 2017 - 2021 Budget and long term projections

7) Revenue Expectations for 2017

8) Capital Outlay requests

Department Directors meet with Finance
Present draft to Finance and Budget committee
Finance and Budget Committee review first amended draft

Town Council Meeting
Overview of first amended draft

Departments revise proposed budget figures with finance.

Special Council Meeting
Review of second draft and meet with all departments:
e Public Works, including Roads, Vehicle Maintenance,
Water and Sewer, Vehicles and Equipment Acquisitions
e Public Safety including Police, Community Services,
Communication and Municipal Court



e Transportation and Parking Services including Dial a
Ride, Parking Services, Employee Shuttle and
Gondola/Chondola

e Parks and Recreation

e Cable, Internet and Telephone services

¢ Administration including, Town Council, Town

Manager, Administrative Services, Human Resources,

Community Relations, Finance, Legal and Community

Grants

Capital Projects

Property Maintenance

Child Care and Development

Community Development including Building, Planning

Affordable Housing Development, Village Court

Apartments, San Miguel Regional Housing Authority

and Facility Maintenance

e Town Council convening as the Mountain Village
Metropolitan District for The Debt Service Fund

e Telluride Conference Center

e Tourism Fund

October 6 — October 31, 2016 Finance works with departments to make requested changes and
prepare proposed 2017 Budget and revised 2016 Budget for first
reading.

November 17, 2016 Council meets for First Reading and Consideration of 2016

Revised Budget and 2017 Proposed Budget and for the 2017
fines and fees changes resolution

November 18 — December 1, 2016 Finance works with departments to make requested changes and
prepares final 2017 Budget.

December 8, 2016 Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption of 2016
Revised Budget and 2017 Budget.

o
~
W



I\/I e I I lO Agenda Items #12, 13 and 14

To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council

From: Sarah H. Abbott

CC: File

Date: January 14, 2016

Re:  Ordinances Amending Municipal Code

The proposed Ordinances that you have before you were drafted by our office in
conjunction with the police department. The ordinances address regulating all-
terrain vehicle use and amending certain weapons provisions. The primary purposes
behind these ordinances are the following:

1. Provide clarity around existing ATV use in the Town and require certain safety
features on ATVs

2. Enhance the existing prohibition on discharging weapons to also prohibit the
possession of firearms, but only in or on certain Town-owned property

3. Clean up the provision related to discharging weapons to remove unenforceable
actions

There is currently unregulated use of ATV-type vehicles within the Town. This use
creates safety hazards for pedestrians and other vehicles because the ATV-type
vehicles are not subject to regulation. They often use Town roads but fail to go fast
enough, creating a traffic backup. They often do not have safety equipment such as
lights or reflectors, making them difficult to see at certain times of the day. There is
also no requirement that Town-owned or commercially-owned ATV-type vehicles
be labeled with any sort of identification, which makes it nearly impossible for the
police department to enforce a violation.

The current Code provision governing the discharge of weapons prohibits
discharging them “at” or “over” the Town. Because a person discharging a weapon
“at” or “over” the Town by implication is not physically in the Town limits, the
police department does not have jurisdiction to enforce this. The new ordinance
would keep the language prohibiting the discharge of weapons “within” the Town.



=
a1

We also believe that allowing a prohibition of both firearms and dangerous
weapons on all Town-owned property, not just Town buildings, is appropriate. The
new ordinance is drafted such that the prohibition applies only to Town-owned
property that has a sign prohibiting weapons. This allows the Town discretion in
deciding to which properties the prohibition will apply.

With that we would accept questions and comments.
Proposed Motion:
I move to approve on first reading the ordinance as presented and set a public

hearing and second reading of the ordinance as presented at the February Town
Council meeting.



ORDINANCE NO. 2016 -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN
VILLAGE AMENDING SECTION 9.17.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO
PROHIBIT THE POSSESSION OF FIREARMS AND DANGEROUS WEAPONS ON
TOWN PROPERTY

RECITALS:

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”), in the County of San Miguel and State of
Colorado, is a home rule municipality duly organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Colorado and the Town Charter.

B. The Town Council of the Town has determined that it is necessary to amend Section
9.17.020 of the Municipal Code to allow for prohibition of the possession of weapons on
all property owned by the Town, subject to certain rules and regulations with respect to
public health and safety.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Legislative Findings.

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Town Council in support of the
enactment of this Ordinance.

Section 2. Section 9.17.020 of the Town Municipal Code is hereby amended and shall read
as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 3. Severability.

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to
this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 4. Ordinance Effect.

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this
Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided however, that the repeal of any
ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance
or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not
affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in
violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.

=
(o))



Section 5. Safety Clause.

The Town Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated and adopted for the
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town.

Section 6. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect on , 2016.

Section 7. PUBLIC HEARING.

A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the day of January, 2016, in the Town
Council Chambers, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of
the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado on the day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor

ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain
Village, Colorado, this day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor
ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

Approved As To Form:

H
\l



James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney

I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village,
Colorado (“Town"), do hereby certify that:

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. (“Ordinance™) is a true, correct and
complete copy thereof.

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor
amendments and referred to public hearing by the Town Council of the Town (“Council™) at a
regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016 by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley

Bruce Mclintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public
hearing, containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the
subject matter of the proposed Ordinance, was posted and published in the Telluride Daily
Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on , 2016, in
accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule.

4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the
Town Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the
Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley, Mayor Pro-Tem

Bruce Mclintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me, as
Town Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.

1/8




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this
day of , 2016.

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

(SEAL)

179



EXHIBIT A
CHAPTER 9.17.020
POSSESSION OF FIREARMS AND DANGEROUS WEAPONS ON TOWN PROPERTY
Sections:

9.17.020 Possession of Firearms and Dangerous Weapons on Town Property

=
o



9.17.020 Possession of Firearms and Dangerous Weapons on Town Property

=
=

A. No person shall possess on his or her person or display any firearm (as defined in
C.R.S. § 18-1-901(3)(h)) or any dangerous weapon (as defined in C.R.S. § 18-12-
102) in or on any property owned or leased by the Town that is posted with signs at
the public entrances to such property informing persons that the open and concealed
carrying of firearms is prohibited in or on such property. Property owned or leased by
the Town shall include, but not limited to, buildings, Town owned vehicles, parks and
open space areas.

B. No person other than a law enforcement officer may carry or possess a firearm or
dangerous weapon in any building that is owned, occupied or controlled by the Town
of Mountain Village or that is jointly owned, occupied or controlled by the Town of
Mountain Village.



ORDINANCE NO. 2016 -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN
VILLAGE AMENDING SECTION 9.17.010 TO THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE
MUNICIPAL CODE

RECITALS:

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”), in the County of San Miguel and State of
Colorado, is a home rule municipality duly organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Colorado and the Town Charter.

B. The Town Council of the Town has determined that it is necessary to amend Section
9.17.010 of the Town Municipal Code to remove certain language prohibiting the
discharge of weapons from locations outside of the jurisdiction of the Town.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Legislative Findings.

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Town Council in support of the
enactment of this Ordinance.

Section 2. Section 9.17.010 of the Town Municipal Code is hereby amended and shall read
as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 3. Severability.

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to
this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 4. Ordinance Effect.

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this
Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided however, that the repeal of any
ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance
or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not
affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in
violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.

Section 5. Safety Clause.

=
N



The Town Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated and adopted for the
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town.

Section 6. Effective Date.
This Ordinance shall become effective on , 2016.

Section 7. PUBLIC HEARING.

A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the day of , 2016, in the Town
Council Chambers, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of
the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado on the day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor

ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain
Village, Colorado, this day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor
ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

Approved As To Form:

James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney

183



I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village,
Colorado (“Town"), do hereby certify that:

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. (“Ordinance™) is a true, correct and
complete copy thereof.

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor
amendments and referred to public hearing by the Town Council of the Town (“Council™) at a
regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016 by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley

Bruce Mclintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public
hearing, containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the
subject matter of the proposed Ordinance, was posted and published in the Telluride Daily
Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on , 2016, in
accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule.

4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the
Town Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the
Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley, Mayor Pro-Tem

Bruce Mclintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me, as
Town Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.

H
s




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this
day of , 2016.

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

(SEAL)

185



EXHIBIT A
CHAPTER 9.17.010
PROHIBITING DISCHARGE OF WEAPONS
Sections:

9.17.010 Discharge of Weapons

=
(o))



9.17.010 Discharge of Weapons
A. It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge any weapon of any description, including,
but not limited to, revolvers, pistols, shotguns, rifles, air guns, gas-operated guns, spring
guns or bows within the town limits.

B. This Section shall not apply to the following:

1. Any officer of the law discharging a weapon in the performance of his or her
duty.

2. Any citizen discharging a weapon when lawfully defending human life.

3. Any citizen discharging a weapon upon a supervised marksmanship range
approved by the Chief of Police.

H
\l



ORDINANCE NO. 2016 -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN
VILLAGE AMENDING THE MODEL TRAFFIC CODE TO REGULATE THE USE OF
ATVs, OHVs, SMMs AND GOLF CARTS WITHIN THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN
VILLAGE BY THE ADDITION OF SECTION 10.12 TO THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN
VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE

RECITALS:

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”), in the County of San Miguel and State of
Colorado, is a home rule municipality duly organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Colorado and the Town Charter.

B. The Town Council of the Town has determined that it desires to permit the use of all-
terrain vehicles (“ATVs”) and off highway vehicles (“OHVs”) within the Town, subject
to certain rules and regulations with respect to public health and safety.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Legislative Findings.

The recitals to this Ordinance are adopted as findings of the Town Council in support of the
enactment of this Ordinance.

Section 2. Section 10.12 of the Town Municipal Code is hereby adopted and shall read as
set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 3. Severability.

If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and, to
this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 4. Ordinance Effect.

Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters as embraced in this
Ordinance are hereby repealed and any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, provided however, that the repeal of any
ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Town shall not revive any other section of any ordinance
or ordinances hereto before repealed or superseded and further provided that this repeal shall not
affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in
violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Ordinance.

=
0
o



Section 5. Safety Clause.

The Town Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is promulgated and adopted for the
public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town.

Section 6. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take effect on , 2016.

Section 7. PUBLIC HEARING.

A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the day of , 2016, in
the Town Council Chambers, 455 Mountain Village Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of
the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado on the day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor

ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain
Village, Colorado, this day of , 2016.

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE,
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY

By:

DAN JANSEN, Mayor
ATTEST:

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

=
©



Approved As To Form:

James Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney

I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village,
Colorado (“Town"), do hereby certify that:

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. (“Ordinance™) is a true, correct and
complete copy thereof.

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor
amendments and referred to public hearing by the Town Council of the Town (“Council™) at a
regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016 by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley

Bruce Mcintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public
hearing, containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the
subject matter of the proposed Ordinance, was posted and published in the Telluride Daily
Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on , 2016, in
accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule.

4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the
Town Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on
, 2016. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and
approved without amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the
Town Council as follows:

Council Member Name “Yes” | “No” | Absent Abstain

Dan Jansen, Mayor

Martin McKinley, Mayor Pro-Tem

Bruce Mclintire

Dan Caton

Laila Benitez

Cath Jett

Michelle Sherry

=
o




5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me, as
Town Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this
day of , 2016.

JACKIE KENNEFICK, Town Clerk

(SEAL)

=
[y



EXHIBIT A
CHAPTER 10.12

UTILITY TYPE VEHICLES, OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLES, SPECIAL MOBILE
MACHINERY AND GOLF CARTS

Sections:

10.12 Utility Type Vehicles, Off Highway Vehicles, Special Mobile Machinery and Golf Carts

=
N



10.12 Utility Type Vehicles, Off Highway Vehicles, Special Mobile Machinery and Golf
Carts

A. Definitions: As used in this Ordinance:

1. "Utility Type Vehicle” or “UTV” means any recreational vehicle designed
for and capable of traveling over unimproved terrain: traveling on four or
more low pressure tires, having a width of 30 to 70 inches, having an unladen
dry weight of 2,200 pounds or less, having a seat height of 25 to 40 inches
when measured at the forward edge of the seat bottom, and having side by
side seating with a steering wheel for control.

2. "Off-highway vehicle" or “OHV” means any self-propelled vehicle which is
designed to travel on wheels or tracks in contact with the ground, which is
designed primarily for use off of the public highways, and which is generally
and commonly used to transport persons for recreational purposes. "Off-
highway vehicle" does not include the following:

i. Vehicles designed and used primarily for travel on, over, or in the
water;
ii. Snowmobiles;
ii. Military vehicles;
iv. Golf carts;
v. Vehicles designed and used to carry individuals with disabilities;
vi. Vehicles designed and used specifically for agricultural, logging, or
mining purposes; or
vii. Vehicles registered pursuant to article 3 of title 42, C.R.S.

3. "Special mobile machinery” or “SMM” means machinery that is pulled,
hauled, or driven over a highway and is either: (i) A vehicle or equipment that
is not designed primarily for the transportation of persons or cargo over the
public highways; or (ii) A motor vehicle that may have been originally
designed for the transportation of persons or cargo over the public highways,
and has been redesigned or modified by the addition of mounted equipment or
machinery, and is only incidentally operated or moved over the public
highways. "Special mobile machinery" includes vehicles commonly used in
the construction, maintenance, and repair of roadways, the drilling of wells,
and the digging of ditches, and riding lawnmowers.

4. "Golf cart" means a self-propelled vehicle not designed primarily for
operation on roadways and that has:

i. A design speed of less than twenty miles per hour;
ii. At least four wheels in contact with the ground;

=
O
w



H
~

o

iii. An empty weight of not more than one thousand three hundred
pounds; and
iv. A carrying capacity of not more than four persons.

"Toy vehicle™ means any vehicle that has wheels and is not designed for use
on public highways or for off-road use. “Toy vehicle” includes, but is not
